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300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702
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Telephone; (213) 897-5794
Facsimile: (213) 897-2804
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
Tn the Matter of the Statement of Issues Case No, 5585
Against:
ALBERT FARAH DAHER

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

Pharmacy Technician Registration ‘
Applicant

Respondent,

Complainant alleges:
PARTIES

L Virginia Herold (Complainaﬁt) brings this Statement of Issues solely in her official
capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs,

2. Onor about March 9, 2015, the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs
Ic,oelved an application for a Pharmacy Technician Registration from Albert Farah Daher
(Respondent). On or about February 23, 2015, Albert Farah Daher certified under penalty of
perjury to the truthfulness of all étaternents, answers, and representations in the application, The
Board denied the application on July 9, 2015, _

3. Onorabout March 12, 1985, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License .
Number RPH 39189 to Albert Farah Daher (Respondent baher). 'The Pharmacist License waé
revoked effective January 27, 2014, as sel forth in paragraph 5 below.
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4, Onor about June 27, 1995, the Board of Pharmacy issued Retail Pharmacy License
Number PHY 40912 to Jay Scott Drugs (Respondent), located at 220 North Glenoaks, Burbanic,
California, Albert Farah Daher was the sole owner of Jay Scott Drugs and was the Pharmacist-in-
Charge of Jay Scott Drugs from 1998 to January 27, 2014. The Retail Pharmacy License was
i'evol{ed effective January 27, 2014, as set forth in paragraph 5 below.

DISCIPLINARY HISTORY

5 . On December 27, 2013, pursuant to the Decision in the disciplinary action titled In
the Matter of the Accusation Against! Jay Scott Drugs, Albert Farah Daher, et al., Case No,
3482, the Board revoked Respondent's Pharmagcist License Number RPH 39189 and J ay Scott
Drugs’ Retail Pharmacy License Number PHY 40912, with Respondent as sole owner and
Pharmacist-in-Charge, ef:["ectiye January 27, 2014, for Respondent’s violations of the followﬁg:

a.  Business and Professions Code Sections 4301, subdivision (o), and 4063 |
(Unprofessional Conduct - Refill of Prescriptions without Prescriber's Authorization);

b. | Business and Professions Code Sections 4301, subdivision (0), and 4306.5,
subdivision (¢), and California Code of Regulations, title 16, sections 1707.3 or 1761
(Unprofessional Conduct - Failure to Review Drug Therapy and Patient Mediéation Record);

¢.  Business and Professions Code Section 4301, subdiv‘isions (d), (§) and (o), Health and
Safety Code section 11153, and California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1761, |
subdivision (b) (Unprofessional Conduct - Failure to Exercise Professional
Judgment/Corresponding Responsibility); |

d,  Business and Professions Code Section 4301 (Unprofessional Conduct),

A true and correct copy of the Decision is attached hefeto as Exhibit A.

JURISDICTION

6.  This Statement of Issues is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board),
Department of Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws, All section

references are to the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES (Case No, 3585)
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STATUTORY PROVISIONS

7. Section 480 of the Code states, in part:

"(a) A board may deny a license 1'egulatéd by this code on the grounds that the ﬁpplicant has
one of the following:, o

“(3) (A) Done any act that if done by a licentiate of the business or profession in question, -
would be grounds for suspeﬁsion or revocation of license. |

“(B) The board may deny a license pursuant té this subdivision only if the c.rime or act is
sﬁbstantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of the business or profession for
which application is made.”

8. Section 4300 provides in pertinent part, that every license issued by the Board is
subject to discipline, including suspensidn or revocation.

9. Section 4301 states, in part; |

"The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of unprofessional

conduct or whose license has been procured by frand or misrepresentation or issued by mistake.

Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the following;

“(p) Aétions ot conduct that would have warranted denial of a license.”

10, Section 4313 of the Code states:

"In determining whether to grant an application for licensure or whether to discipline or
reinstate a license, the board shall give consideration to evidence of rehabilitation, However, )
public protection shall take priority over rehabilitation and, where evidence of rehabilitation and

publi¢ protection are in conflict, public protection shall take precedence."

REGULATORY PROVISIONS

11, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1770, states:
"For the purpose of denial, suspension, or revocation of a personal or facility license
pursuant to Division 1.5 {commencing with Section 475) of the Business and Professions Code, a

crime or act shall be considered substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a

3
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licensee or registrant if to a substantial degree it evidences present or potential unfitness of a
licensee or registrant to perform the functions authorized by his license or registration in & manner
consistent with the public health, safety, or welfare,”

CAUSE FOR DENIAL

(Acts Warranting Revocation of Licensure: Aécusation No. 348-2)

11.  Respondent’s application is subject to denial pursuant to sections 4301, subdivision
(p), and 480, subdivisions (@)(3)A) and (a)(3)(B), in conjunction with California Code of
Regulations, title 16, section 1770, in that he c_omm‘i_tted acts while holding Pharmacist License
Number RPH 39189 and Jay Scott Drugs’ Retail Pharmacy License Number PHY 40912, as sole
owner and Pharmacist-in-Charge, which were grounds for revocation of the licenses, as set forth
in paragraph 5 above.

PRAYER | |

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:

1. Denying the application of Albert Farah Daher for a Pharmacy Technician
Registration;

2. Ta.kmg such othcr and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

patED: [/ /23//5 / )Mzmw

IRG]N HEROQLD
Executiyé Officer
Board of Pharmacy
Department of Consumer Affans
State of California
Complainant

LA2015501880
119%8382.do¢ -
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EXHIBIT A

Decision in In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Jay Scott Drugs,
Albert Farah Daher, et al., Case No. 3482

STATEMENT OF ISSUES (Case No, 5585)




BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the First Amended
Accusation Against:

JAY SCOTT DRUGS, " Agency Case No. 3482
P.l.C. ALBERT DAHER, . : o ~
Retail Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 40912 OAH Case No. 2011020500

ALBERT FARAH DAHER- :
~ Pharmacist License No. RPH.39189

AHMAD SHAT! NABHAN -
Pharmacist License No. RPH 41754

and

~ JUNYAMASAKI
Pharmacist License No RPH 19983

: Respondeﬁts.

" DECISION AFTER NONADOPTION -

Damel Juarez Admlnlstratlve Law Judge Offlce of Admmlstratlve Hearmgs :

heard this matter on October 30 and 31, and November 1, 5-7, and 13- 16 2012 and
May 23 and 24, and June 4 -7, 2013, in Los'Angeles, Cahforma

‘Nancy A. Kaiser, Deputy Attorney General, represented Virginia K. Herold
(Complamant) Exeoutlve Officer of the Board of Pharmaoy (Board).

Gregory P. Matzen, Esq., and Frledenthal Heffernan & Klein, and Daniel R,
Friedenthal, Esq., represented Jay Scott Drugs (Respondent JSD), Albert Farah Daher
(Respondent Daher), Ahmad Shati Nabhan (Respondent Nabhan), and Jun Yamasaki
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(Respondent Yamasaki). Responderits were each present on the first day of hearing.
During the hearing, Respondents Nabhanand Yamasaki requested leave to attend to
their employment dufies;-while havung Respondent ‘Daherpresent on every day of
hearing. Respondents Nabhan and-Yamasaki made themselves available for
examination as needed by both parties. The Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) made no

negative findings against Respondents from the requested and permltted absences of
Respondents Nabhan and Yamasaki.

The ALJ left the record open to allow the par’ues to file ctosmg briefs by July 12,
2013. The partles filed closing briefs timely.

The parties su_bmitted the matter for decision by the ALJ on July 12, 2013.

The proposed decision of the ALJ was submitted to the Board of Pharmacy on
August 14, 2013. After due consideration thereof, the Board of Pharmacy.declined to
adopt said proposed decision and theréafter on September 25, 2013-issued an Order
of Non-adoption. On September 25, 2013, the Board also issued an Order Fixing Date
for Submission of Written Arguments. Thereafter, Respondefits requested additional
time to submit written arguments. On October 15,:2013,-an"Order Extending Time for
Providing Written Argument was issued granting the parties until November 8, 2013 to
submit written arguments. ' '

Written argumenthaving been receivedifrbm Com'plainantean'd'Respbndents,
the time for filing written argument in this matter having expired, and the entire record, -
including the transcript of said hearing haVlng been read and considered, the Board of

“Pharmacy pursuant to Section 11517 of the Government Code hereby makes the
following decision:

' STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Complainant alleges that Respondents excessively dispensed controlled
substances to numerous patients, resulting in violations of pharmacy law, and in some
cases, patient deaths orthé exacerbation of drug addictions. Reference to the patients
is limited to initials to preserve their privacy. The patients are: A.S., J.S., NV,, S.R,,
GG Al -Deley DKBGH B S5, LB AW €6 TR KP-SP,-GLC Ir, NCLER,,
J.C.,andA. C The: alleged causes for. dtsmphne are:. 1) reﬂlllng prescnptlons thhout
prescnber authorization; 2) failing to-review drig therapiesand patlent medication
records; 3) failing to exercise professional;judgment; 4) failing to review patient profiles
prior to-dispensing prescriptions; and, 5) unprofessional conduct. Complainant seeks .
‘the revocation of each Respondent’s Board- lssued hcense and: the costs ot '
investigation and prosecution. =~ .

Respondents deny the allégations, asserting that they: consndered each patient’s
prescription before dispensing and exercised-their professional judgment accordingly.
Respondents seek thé dismissal of the Accusation.




FACTUAL FINDINGS
Jurisdiction

1. Complalnant filed. the Flrst Amended Accusatlon on February 24, 2012. .
The original Accusation was filed on August 4, 2010. Respondents Nabhan and
Yamasaki filed Notices. of Defense on August 21, 2010, and.August 23, 2010,.
respectively. Respondents JSD and Daher filed a Notice of Defense on August 30,
2010 (Respondents’ counsel frled this Notice of Defense on all Respondents behalf)

4 Llcense Certlflcatlon .

2. On June 27, 1995, the Board issued original permlt number PHY 40912
to Respondent JSD, authorlzrng Respondent Daher to do business as “Jay Scott
Drugs.” Respondent Daher has been the pharmacist-in-charge (P.1.C.) at Jay Scott
Drugs since June 1, 1998. Athearing, evidence of licensure established that .-
Respondent JSD's permit-expired.on-June 1, 2013. Subsequently, Respondent JSD
renewed its permit and it is currently-set to expire on June 1, 2014.. Even if. .

- Respondent JSD had not renewed its permit, however, the Board retalns jurISdlCthl’l

over all of Respondents’ licenses for purposes of this action, pursuant to Business and
Professlons Code section 4300 1.

3. On l\/laroh 12 1985, the Board issued original pharmaolst llcense number
RPH 39189 to- Respondent Daher rt expires on January 31, 2015, unless renewed

4. On April 20, 1988 the Board issued original pharﬂaolst llcense number
RPH 41754 to Respondent Nabhan; it exprres on May 31, 2015, uniless. renewed

' 5. " On July 28 1956 tlre Board issued orlgrnal pharmaorst Ilcense number ,
RPH 19983 to Respond_ent Yamasaki; it expires on March 31, 2014, unless renewed.

The Board’s lnspection—-—'Overall Findinas

- 6. Board lnspeotor Sarah Bayley' (Bayley) lnspectved'Res‘pondent JSD on-

--various-occasions-between-2008-ahd-2014 and-determined-that-Respondents-violated ... .. .

pharmacy laws and regulations involving the filling and dispensing of controlled

substances that Respondents knew or should have known were for lllegltrmate
purposes :

7. She received a Doctor of Pharmacy degree from the University of
Southern California in 1994. From 1994 to 2000, Bayley was a Staff
Pharmacist/Diabetes Care Pharmacist at Sav- On Pharmacy in Hawaiian Gardens
California. Bayley has been-a Board Inspector since 2000. During her time as an
inspector for the Board, Bayley has performed approximately six hundred (600)
investigations; thirty (30) of those cases involved allegations of a pharmacist failing to
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properly exercise his or her corresponding responsibility in dispensing controlled
. substances. -

-8. During Bayley's reviews, she found recurring issues with a number of

patients who received controlled substances. The characteristics.included, among
* other things, repeated, consistent preéscriptions for controlled substances for the. same
combination of drugs'in'the same dosage, same quantity, and with the. same directions
to a large number-of generally younger patients and to many types of patients
- regardless of agé or gender. The drugs aré described in detail later. According to

Bayley and as alleged by Complainant, these drugs, in combination, were a popular
combination sought by drug addicts. Bayley also found that the 'patients at issue paid
in cash exclusively, or almost exclusively, and traveled significant distances from their
- homes to obtarn the medrcatrons Whroh should have rarsed “ﬂags for Respondents

9. Bayley oprned that a prudent pharmaorst woutd questron Dr Bass' . .
prescribing pattern of issuing presorlptrons for:tHe 'same dosage, quantity and drug
combinations over a longiperiod of time-for differenttypes of patients.- This was ..
particularly true forthose combinations that should be closely‘monitored:; specrfrcally,
those drug-combinations that include ‘sedatives, *In-her view; Respondents had many .
chances ‘over a-long period-of time to re-evaluate, communicatewith the:prescriber,
talk to the patients about their drug therapies, and dociiment the :communications:for
best patient care. However, she found no evidence that Respondents had done this.

“Similarly; Bayley-found no documentation:of any communications.between
Respondénts and Dr. Bamdad about any patient. After.Bayley began-her investigation, .
Respondent Daher indicated that he had stopped dispensing prescriptions for the -
types of pain medications that Dr. Bass had prescribed."However, .on April 16, 2008,
Respondent Daher wrote Bayley ‘4 letter indicating that he was-experiencing a ' slow
down of our business” and he was “having to choose how many and which employees .
to \ay onc beoause ot the slow down ot our busmess ! (State . EX 13)

Bemard N. Bass M. D and l\ﬂassoud Bamdad M D

10. Comptarnant focused her case on the presonptrons rssued by two

physicians; Berniard N. Bass; M.D. (Bass), and, {o a-lésser-extent;. Massoud Bamdad,

-MB-(Bamdad)--Bass-treated-the-vastmajority-of:the-patients-at-issue-here-and issued.
the majority of their prescriptions. Unrelated to the instant disciplinary. rnatter and at
different times, -each physician admittedto.improperly prescribing controlled . |
substances. Each physician faced medical license disciplinary action and criminal
prosecution for his prescribing practices, among other things. Thosé actions are noted -
herein to establish that'the prescribing practices of Bass.and-Bamdad were below the
standard of carefor physicians. However, the license discipline and.criminal actions
against Bass'and Bamdad -are not dispositive of whether' Respondents violated the

. standard of-care forpharmatists: The Board didnot find. or conclude that

Respondents viglated any pharmacy{aw or regulation based on Bass' orBamdad’s -

Medical Board discipline or criminal prosecutions. The prescriptions at issue were
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analyzed independent of Bass’ and Bamdad's misconduct as physicians and viewed
from the perspective of a reasonable and prudent pharmacist. -

11. In March and Aprll 2008 seven patients of Bass died due to drug
overdoses. Respondent JSD dispensed prescriptions from Bass to five of the seven
deceased patients: A.S., L.G., AW., D.L., and D.K. Bass suffered criminal prosecutlon
and Ilcense discipline Wrth regard to his prescnp’uon actrvrty

12. On July 8, 2008 the Ventura County Superror Court ordered Bass to
cease and desist from the practice of medicine as a condition of bail or as a condition
of release on his own recognizance during the pendency of the criminal action against
him. The court further. ordered Bass to surrender all controlled substarice prescription

forms by July 11, 2008, to the court clerk (The People of the Staz‘e of California v.
Bernard N. Bass case no. 200802062956).

13. - Effective February 20, 2009, the California Medical Board revoked Bass's
medical license, stayed the revocation, and placed -Bass's medical license on-seven
years' probation with various terms and conditions. The terms and conditions of
probation included a 90-day actual suspension, Bass' surrendering of.his Drug
Enforcermnent Administration permit and prescription forms, abstaining from the use or .

possession of controlled substances, taking a prescribing. practrces course, a medical
" record keeping course, an ethics course, a clinical training program, and submrttmg to
a practice and billing monitor. The Board also prohibited Bass from engaging in the
solo practice of medicine (/n.the Matter of the Accusation Aga/nsz‘ Bernard N. Bass,
M.D., agency case no.-05-20056- 167939)

14. On May 29, 2009, foilowrng a guilty p!ea n case number 2008026956
the Ventura County Superior Court convicted Bass of violating Penal Code section
182, subdivision (a)(1) (conspiracy to commit a crime; the fraudulent prescription of
-controlled substances),-a felony. ‘"The evidence was inconclusive regarding the court’s
sentence; it appeared that the court sentenced Bass-to two years of probation.

5.  Bassdiedona date unspecified by the evidence, but before the instant -
hearlng ‘ ‘

. 16 At the tirne of the hearing, the Medical Board's website showed that Bass.
-had a primary general medicine practice and a secondary practice area of “pain
medicine.” The Medical Board’s website did not further explain or describe his pain

medicine practice. There was no evidence of What the I\/Iedrcal Board’s websrte
contained in 2006, 2007 and 2008

17.  Bamdad was prosecuted in federal court and is currently serving prison
time. On July 29,2010, the Central District of the United States District Court, in case
number CR 08-506-GW, following a not guilty plea, convicted Bamdad. of violating 21
U.S.C. section 841, subdivisions (a)(1), (b)(1), and (c) (distribution and dispensing of a
controlled substance, and distribution and dispensing of a controlled substance to
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persons under 21 years of age). -On-August 2,°2010, the court sentenced-Bamdad to |
- 300 months in prison, barred himfrom licensed -employment, and ordered. him to pay
fines and T’ees totaling more than $1,000,000.

The Medicatlons at Issue

18 The medicatiofis atissue here: include ‘Norco, Xahax, Valium, \/rcedln,-
and Soma. These medications are referred to herein oocasronally by. their brand
name, although the record refers to some by therr genene name :

19. " Norco is the arug’s brand name-and hydrocodone/APAP

(acetaminophen) is the drug’s generic name. Noroo isa sohedule tl controlled
substance used for pain. '

20.  Xanax is the drug's brand name and alprazolam is the dru‘g’s generic
“name. Xahax is a schedule [V controlled:substance used for anxiety, and it is a non-
barbrturate benzodrazeplne seda‘uve hypnotrc

21. Valrum is-the drug's- brand name- and drazepam s ’che drug s geneno
name: Vahum is' a schedule IV:controlled substance used for anxrety, and it is a hon=
barbrturate benzodrazeplne seda’uve hypnotrc ~

22, Soma is the drug's- brand name:and: carrsoprodol is. the drug’ s generic
name: Soma ‘bé&came a-scheduileV-controlled: substance in 2012 . Before 2012,
Soma was unscheduled; it is a muscle relaxarit. “The timé atissue here involves the
time Soma was an unsoheduled subSLance

23. " Other drugs noted hereln rnclude

/-\mblen (Brand name)/zolpldem (genenc name) ‘schedule 1V controiled
substance, used for insomnia; : ‘

Oxycontln (brand name)/oxyoodone (generic name) schedule Il controlied
substanoe used for paln

Subutex (brand name) or Suboxone (brand name)/buprenorphlne (genenc
name}, schedtifé 11l controlled substance, commonly used te treat narootro addiction
and Iess oommonly used to ’treat parn :

Adipex (brand name)/phentermrne HCL (genenc name) schedule IV controlied
-substanee used for werght Ioss

Bontnl——slew release (brand: name)/phendrmetrrzrne (generrc name) schedule
IV controlled- substanoe used for werght loss. .

24 Al of the drugs noted in Factual Findings 18-23 are dangerous drugs as




defined in Business and Professions Code section 4022.

The Generahzed Prescnptton Quantlty and Dosage Analyses

25.  While there was some variation in the prescnptlons assessed hereln
generally, the vast majonty of Bass' prescriptions to his patients were as follows; 125
tablets of 10/325 mg. Norco (1 to 2 tablets every-4 hours), a 10-day supply; 60 tablets
of 2 mg. Xanax (1 tablet every 6. hours), .a 15-day supply; 15, 20, 50, ‘or 60 tablets of
350 mg. Soma (1.tablet every 6 hours), a 3-day, 5-day, 12-day, or 15 da,y supply,
respectively; and 60 tablets of 10 mg. \/alium (1 tablet every 6 hours), a 15-day supply.

26. The quantlty and dosage of the medications Bass prescnbed to each
patient are-generally referred to here by their day’s supply

27. Unless otherwise lndlcated WIthln each patlent description, that follows,
Bass- lssued prescriptions for each.patient approximately every 12 to 15 days_ :
‘throughout the indicated periods.of treatment; and Respondents filled and dlspensed
the prescribed medications fo each patient.every.-42 to 15 days. Unless othenrv!se
indicated herein, generally; each patient or a person authorized by the patlent
consistently purchased and obtained the prescribed medications without interruption of
the 12-15 day interval. Where the prescription time interval was other than 12 to 15
days, or where the dispensing. and purchasing time was other than 12 to 15 days and

where no other time interval is noted, the time 1nterval was glven no weight in resotvmg
the allegations set forth in this case. :

Specmc Vatlent Facts

AS

28.  In 2008, A.S. was approximately 22 years old. Between January 5, .
2007, and March 18; 2008, Bass treated A.S: and issued him prescriptions for 10/325
- mg. Norco, 2 mg. Xanax, and 350.mg. Soma. A.S. purchased the prescribed .
medications from-Respondent JSD.as well as.other pharmacies, -in Fountain Valley,
California, and Thousahd Oaks, California. .Respondents filled and dlspensed
- approximately -90-Bass-issued-prescriptions-te -A-S;-on-and-between-January-5; 2007, -
and March 18, 2008. During this time period, Respondents dispensed 3,875 tabtets of
Hydrocoedone/APAP-10/325 mg. (generic for Norco), 1,860 _tablets_.of,/}\_,lprazo_lam 2mg
(generic for Xanax), and.405 tablets of Carisoprodel.{generic for Soma):to, A.S.. Of
- these prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 79 prescriptions, Respondent

Yamasaki dispensed 9 prescriptions, and Respondent Nabhan dispensed 2
prescnptlons for this patlent

29.  On January 19,.2007, pursuant io a Bass-issued prescription,
Respondent Daher dispensed a 10-day supply of the generic for.Norco
(Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325mg, 125 tablets — Prescription No. 182811). This original
prescription did not authorize any refills. Nevertheless, on January 22, 2007,




Respondent Daher dispensed another 10-day supply of Hydrocodone/APAP.
Respondent Daher did not document a reason why he dispensed Hydrocodone/APAP
seven days early, but hetestifiedthat he accepted Basds'prescription as legitimate.
However, that prescription was not authorized to be filled on January 22, 2007. On
January 22, 2007, Respondent Daher’s dispensed more Hydrocodone/APAP (10/325
mg; 125 tablets) under-Prescription’ No. 183159 and without prescriber. authorization.
This prescrlptron was dated January 30, 2007. However, the dispensing sticker onthe
original prescription shows that the:prescription was dispensed on January 22, 2007.
According to the evidence-and thelaw applicable in this case, such:a post-dated
prescription is not a fegal prescription: Therefore, the dispensing: of this prescription is
oonsndered an unauthonzed reﬂll of the January 19 2007 prescnptron

_ 30. For AS., the evrdence showed that over a four-day period from January .
19-22, 2007, Respondent Daher deviated from the prescribers’ directions by providing

A.S: with 250 tablets of Hydrocodone/APAP:(10/325'mg), 120 tablets of Alprazolam (2

mg), and 30 Carisoprodol (350 mg) tablets. This was enough Hydrocodone/APAP to
take 62 tablets'per day, more-than 4 times the 12 tablets as:directed by Dr. Bass;

" enotigh Alprazolam to take 30 tablets per-day; which is.7:times as:muchas the

maximum amount of 4 tablets perday-as directediby Dr.-Bass, and. enough

Carrsoprodol to take 7' tablets per day rnstead of 1 per day as: dlrected

31, At aH trmes retevant to this matter A S Irved in Thousand Oaks

approxrmately 43 miles*from‘Respondent JSD-and- approxrmately 40 mtles front Bass 8
office. Respondent JSD is five mrles from Bass’ offices S R

32. In2007,AS. was berng treated with Subutex by a physician: other than -
Bass. He received prescriptions for Subutex from Jonathan Reitman, M. D. on October
26, 2007, and November 5, 2007. The evidence did not establish whether
Respondents were aware that A.S. had been presorlbed Subutex.

33. On March 20, 2008, AS dred at the age of 22, from hydrocodene
intoxication: The évidence did not establish how many Hydrocodone/APAP tablets
A.S. consumed the day-he diedin hisbed. However, empty presoription bottles for -
Hydrocodong and Alprazolam, which-were prescribéd by Dr. Bass and dispensed by
"Respondent Daher—on I\/Iaroh 18;- 2008, were-found-er-the-night-stand-next-to his-bed.

34 @n June 3, 2008, A.S.'s parents filed a complaint with the Board allegrng
that Respondents rmproperty drspensed controlled substances to A.S.

35, ~K.8:, AiS's mother testrfred K S. explarned that A S had a-serious drug
problem. As a chrld A.S. had attention deficit disorder and-was in'special.education.
He also contracted spinal meningitis on an unspecified date. By the seventh grade,
A.S. was.using cigarettes, beer, other alcohol, and marijuana. K:S. conceded that as
‘an adult, A.S. was addicted to drugs, including-prescription drugs. She'believes Bass'
prescriptions and Respondent's drspensmg of medications furthered A.S.'s.drug-
addiction. K.S. believed A.8. had health-insurance that covered: prescnptron
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medication in some manner, but she understood that A.S. would obtain Bass’
prescribed drugs by paying cash. The evidence confirmed that A.S. purchased his
Bass-prescribed medications with cash. K.S. does not believe A.S was in chronic pain
when Bass prescribed his medications and when Respondents filled and dispensed
them. The evidence did not establish whether A.S. had chronic pain, but it did
establish that A.S.-was addicted to pain medications. On May 11, 2009, Respondent -
Daher wrote to the Board regardmg the complaint, stating:

“I did not sell {A.S.] his ~medtcatlon in.a dark alley, he walked into my st'ore.. We
regret his death but ultimately he is responsible for his own actions...Were his

parents aware of hlS drug addiction? Did they do anything about it?" (State's Ex.
18. )

36. Complainant argued that Respo& dents failed to evatuate A.S.'s needs io
assure that Bass' prescriptions were for a legitimate medical need. Complainant
further argued that had Respondents requested a CURES report for this patient after
December.1, 2007, they would have seen A.S presonptlons for-Subutex, and

understood that A.S.‘was being treated for opiate addiction.! As such, it would.have

further caused Respondents to questton the proprlety of Bass' prescrxptlons for Norco
and Xanax. -

37. a. Respondents argued that they evaluated A.S. generally and found
no reason torefuse to dispense Bass' prescriptions. They further argued that
accessing CURES data was difficult and not practical in 2007 and 2008. The parties -
did not dispute that online, “real time" access to:CURES was.unavailable in 2007 and
2008, and instead, pharmacists would have to make requests for CURES data by. .

_facsimile or regular mail. Such requests would require several weeks before
pharmacists would receive responsive data. While Respondents and their-experts
tended 1o {out or emphasize Respondents’ excellent recordkeepmg practices;
Respondents also argued that the early refills, as described in Factual Finding 292,

" were the result of Respondent JSD's transmon to a new computer system and was a
. record keeping error,

. b. .However, Inspector Bayley testified that when she started to‘investigate

-these allegations;-although-Respondents told-her abeutrecent computer-changes;: -
Respondents never claimed a data error was responsible for causing the unauthorlzed
refills. -In addition, Respondents failed to persuasively explain how the transition to the
new computer system would result in such-arecord keeping error or why, if the error-
did indeed occur, they would not have corrected their records upon discovery of the
error. Additionally, the evidence failed to-establish that the computer transition indeed

' CURES is the Controlled Substance Utilization Review Evaluation System. it is a database
maintained by the California Department of Justice’s Bureau of Narcotic Enforcement containing
schedule 1l through [V prescription data.

2 Similar arguments were made for the unauthorized dispensing of J.S.’s medications
discussed at Factual Finding 91.
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. caused a record keeping error in this circumstance. In light of the foregoing, .
Respondents”explanation was not-credible.

L.G.

38:  In 2008, L.G. was approximately 21 .years old. .Bass treated L.G. with
10/325 mg. Norco, 2 mg. Xanax, and 350 mg. Soma: ‘Respondents filled and = .
dispensed L.G.'s approximately 105 Bass-issued prescriptions to L.G. from September
20, 2008, to March 28, 2008. During this time period, Respondents- dispensed 4,625
tablets of Hydrocodone/APAP 107325 mg. (genefic for Norco), 2,160 tablets .of
Alprazolam 2 mg {(generic for Xanax), and 2,200 tablets of Carisoprodol (generic for
-Soma) to L.G. Of these prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 75 prescriptions,
Respondent Yamasaki dispensed 18 prescriptions, and Respondent Nabhan
drspensed 12 prescrrptrons for thrs patrent

© 39 OnJdune 21, 2007 Respondents dlspensed a 10- day supply of Norco
and a 15-day supply of. Xanax.: On.June 28, 2007, Respondents dispensed the same
medications in the samé quaritity ‘again, both based.on‘Bass’ prescriptions.
Respondents ‘did not document a reason why they dispensed the Norco . three days

early. Respondents explained that they trusted L.G. and accepted Bass’ prescrrptron ‘

as Iegrtrmate
]

4"0.'. L G purchased hrs Bass presorrbed medrcatrons wrth cash

41, At all times relevant to thrs matter L G hved in: Srmr Valtey, Cahfornra

approxrmatety 27 miles from Respondent JSD and approxrmately 31 mrles from Bass”
office.

42; L G. died on Aprll 13, 2008 from ox ycodone and methamphetamrne

rntoxrcatron however, Respondents never: drspensed oxycodone or methamphetamrne
to L.G. :

43. Complainant argued that even if Respondents did not dispense the drugs
that caused L.G"s death; Respendents still‘had a corresponding responsibility to
assure-thattheydispensed-prescriptions-that-were for:a-egitimate:medical-purpese -
and-by disperising the large quantities of controlled substances preseribed by Bass,
Respondents: Furthered each-patient's drug addiction.* Complainant- argued that Bass
prescriptions for A.S., L.G.,-and all of the patients discussed herein were not fora -
legifimate medical’ purpose because each-patient-was addicted.to:pain medications
and sought the prescribed medications to feed his or her addiction or. for recreational
purposes. '

® A pharmacist shares a corresponding responsibility, or liability, with the physician prescriber to
ensure the prescription is, among other things; legitimate.

A1Q
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AW.

44,  In 2008, AW. was approximately 31 years old. Bass treated her with
.10/325 mg. Norco, 10 mg. Valium, and 350 mg. Soma. Respondent filled and
dispensed approximately 12 Bass-issued prescriptions to A\W. from February 6, 2008,
to March 25, 2008. During this 48-day period, Respondents dispensed 500 tablets of
Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 mg. (generic for Norco), 300 tablets of Diazepam
(Valium),10 mg., and 240 tablets of Carisoprodol 350 mg. (generic for Soma) to AW..

Of these prescriptions, Respondent. Daher dispensed 9 prescriptions, and Respondent
Yamasaki dispensed 3 prescriptions for this patient. '

=45, At all times relevant o this metter AW. lived in Simi Valley, Cahfornl'e

approximately 28 miles from Respondent JSD and approx1mately 31 miles- from Bass’
office. : _

46. - AW. died at the age of 31 on April 11, 2008, dus to morphine,
hydrocodone, and diazepam.intoxication.

-47.  According to the \/entdra éounty Coroner's death- report"'A.V\‘/. had o
attempted sulmde by drug overdose three times before her death.

48. Respondents hever dlspensed morphlne to A W

- '49. ' The evidence did not estabhsh how many Norco and Vallum tablets A.W.
consumed the day of her death.. However, on March 25,2008, A.W.'s last -

prescriptions filled by Respondent Yamasakl included. Hydrooodone/APAP and
Dlazepam ' ST st

DL

50. . In 2008, D.L.. was apprOleately 25 years old. Bass treated h|m with
10/325 mg. Norco, 10 mg. Valium, 10 mg. Ambien, and 350 mg. Soma. Respondents
* filled and dispensed approximately 30.prescriptions to D,L. from May 2, 2007, to March

24, 2008. During this time period, Respondents dispensed 2,375 {ablets of

. Hydrecedone/APAP-10/325-mg -(generic-for-Nerce),-1 20 tablets of- Valium-10-mg., 520 .

tablets of:Carisoprodol (generic for Soma); and 90 tablets of Ambien to D L. Ofthese
prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 23 prescriptions, Respondent Yamasaki

dispensed 4 presorlptlons and Respondent Nabhan dlspensed 3 presonptlons to this
patlent . .

51.  In September and October 2007, D.L.’ was also prescribed Suboxone by
another physician in San Fernando, California. Suboxone is an opioid antagonist that
is commonly used to treat opiate addicts. Taking Suboxone and an opioid at the same
- time usually causes a negative effect in mostindividuals. However, Suboxone is also

used as a pain medication, although its use for pain is not common. .Respondents did

11
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not document knowledge of D.L."s Suboxone prescription history. Respondents did
not take any actlon to dlSCUSS D.L's Subvone presorrptron hrstory with Bass or D.L.

52. At alI tlmes relevant to this- matter D.L. hved in Newbury Park, Cahtornra

approytmately 47 mlles trom Respondent JSD and. approxrmatety 40 miles from Bass'
office. : : »

53. D.L. died at the age- of 25 on Aprll 10, 2008 The cause of death was’
cocaine, Valium, Ambien, and Soma toxrorty '

54. The evidence did not estabhsh how many Valium, Ambien, or Soma
tablets D.L. consumed the day of his'‘death. However, D:L.’s last prescription filled by
Respondent Daher on March 24,2008 included 80 tablets of Carisoprodol 350 mg
(generic for Soma), 30 tablets of Ambien 10 mg, and 60 tablets of \/ahum 10 mg..

'55.  Complainant argued that had Respondents reviewed D.L.'s.medical and
presoription history, they would have uncovered the fact that:D.L. had:been prescribed
Suboxone in the past. Complainant explained that a prudent pharmacist would have
uncovered D.L.'s*Suboxcrie prescription history and Respondents would have -
concluded or at least suspected that D.1.. was an opiate-addict and ‘then questioned
Bass’ prescriptions. Complainant argued that Respondents should have contacted
Bass to eXpress such a concern and perhaps refused:to dispense Bass' prescriptions
untlt recetvrng more lnformatlon trom Bass at the teast

586. Through thelr expert wrtnesses dlsoussed hereafter Respondents
argued that occasionally, physicians prescribe Suboxone as.a pain medication.
Respondents argued that had they had knowledge of a Suboxone prescription- hrstory,
and given the drug’s use for pain, it would not have been appropriate for them to
presume the patient was being treated for opiate addiction. Furthermore, it is within
the discretion of the prescriber to dlspense the’ oombrnatlon of medlcattons he or she
deems medrcalty appropnate :

57.- The -ev_rd_ence established that Suboxone can be used as a pain
- medication.: The évidence further established thatiits use for pain is uncommon and
- ——thataprddent:phaimacistivho-was-aware-of-Subexene:-or-Subutex-prescriptions....—...
would, at thie least, suspect that the patient had-an opiate addiction issue and conﬂrm
the patient’s’ treatment hrstory With the prescnbmg physroran
58. Respondents did not document any knowledge that D.L. was prescnbed
Suboxone. They did not contact Bass or any other of D.L.'s physicians.

D'..K
In 2008, D. K was: approx1mate|y 32 years old. Bass treated hlm wrth

10/325 mg Noroo 10 mg. Valium, 2 mg. Xanax, and 350 mg: Soma. Respondents
filled and dispensed 61 prescriptions to D.K. . between December 7, 2006, and March

12




11,.2008; 47 of those prescriptions were for the generic drugs for Norco, Xanax and
Soma . During this time period, Respondents dispensed 3,000 tablets of
Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 mg. (generic for Norco), 1,200 tablets -of Alprazolam 2 mg
(generic for Xanax), and. 90 tablets of Carisoprodol (generic for Soma) to D.K.. Of
these prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 33 prescriptions, Respondent,
Yamasaki dispensed 6 prescriptions, and Respondent Nabhan dispehsed 8

- prescriptions for this patient.

60. D.K. lived in Newbury Park approxmately 42 miles from Respondent JSD
and approxxmately 37 miles from Bass’ office. :

61. D.K. died, at the age of 32, on March 14 2008. The cause of death was
‘Lobar Pneumonia. :

62. D.K. had asthma. There was no evidence that Respondents questioned
whether Dr. Bass’ prescribed drug combination, which the experts testified was known

to cause respiratory depressmn was safe for someone with D.K.’s respiratory
condition.

B.G.

63.  In 2008, B.G. was approximately 27 years old. Bass {reated him with.
10/325 mg. Norco, 10 mg. Valium, 2 mg. Xanax, and 350 mg. Soma. Respondente
filled and dispensed 103 Bass-issued prescriptions (generic versions).to B.G. on and
between October 30, 2006, and March 31, 2008. Of these prescriptions, Respondent
Daher-dispensed 82 prescriptions, Respondent Yamasaki dtspensed 15 prescnptlons

and Respondent Nabhan dispensed 6 prescriptions to this patient..:
64, B.G. lived in Thousand Oaks, 41 miles from Respondent JSD. .
65. B.G.was addicted to'hydrocodone.

66. On January 10, 2008, B.G.'s mother called Respondents and told them
to stop filling Bass’ prescriptions. She alleged that Bass “owned” Respondent JSD.

-Respondent Daher-told-B:G.’s-mother that he-could net discuss -B.G.'s-prescriptions . — . ...

with her because B.G. was an adult. On that same day, Respondent Daher noted in
Respondent JSD'’s records that Respondents ‘would no longerflll B.G.'s prescnptlons

687. However, on January 18, 2008, B.G.’s mother Wrote a note to
Respondents stating that B.G. could be treated and medicated by Bass, as Bass sees
fit.” Respondents kept this note with-a copy of B.G.’s driver license in t_helr records. -

68. Reepondents Daher explained that he complied with B.G.’s mother's

requests because he presumed she had her son’s best interests at heart-and he did
not want to cause B.G. any problems.

. ‘_.13




69. Respondent' Nabhan asserted that B.G.'s mother's communications with
Réspondents did not raise.a “red flag” in ‘his.assessment.of B.G, as-a pharmacy
patient. As opined by Complainant's éxperts; discussed. l\ater, those communications
should ‘have reasonably raised a srgnlﬂoant concern regarding thepropriety.of B.G.'s -

‘prescriptions and the-strong-suspicion that'B.G. suffered from drug addiction.

C.G.

70. In 2008, C.G. was approxrmately 25 years old Bass treated -her with .
10/325 mg. Norco, 10 mg. Valium, and 2 mg. Xanax. Respondents filled and
dispensed 72 Bass-issued prescriptions to C.G. from-October 30,.2006 to April 9,
2008, all for Hydrocodone/APAP (generic for Norco) and Alprazolam (generic for
Xanax). Of these prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 52 prescriptions and
Respondent Yamasakr drspensed 20 presonptlons to thls patlent

.71, - C.G. and BG, dlsoussed in- Faotual Flndlngs 63- 69, are siblings.

72.  The Norco and Xanax presoriptions for C.G. and B.G. were identical. On .
seven different occasions, C.G.'s and B.G.’s prescriptions were presented together at
Respondent JSD and Respondents dispensed the prescriptions for both at the same
time. “The seven:occasions were: -October30, 2008, November 27, 2006, December
11,2006, January 23,2007, February 8; 2007 February 21,2007, and March 5,.2007.
Respondents savi'no problem with two'siblings: prese_ntlng sifriilar presgriptions at the
same fimefror ‘the samé prescnber C.G.'s'and B:G.'s tandem’ prescrlptlons should
have:réasonably raised a significant. concérm regarding the-propriety of B.G.’s and
C.G.'s prescriptions andthe stfong suspicion that B G.-and-C:G. were seeking
prescriptions for an rllegrtrmate purpose '

73.  C.G.and B.G. atways pald cash for all of their Bass- rssued presonptlons
-at Respondent JSD. . _

74.  C.G. lived in Thousand Oaks, 40 miles from Bass' offroe and 41 miles

. from Respondent JSD

JRSTUNSL S I N

T.P. R

75. - In 2008, T.P. was approximately 40 years old. T.P. was Bass' secretary.
T.P. was marfied 10*K.Px, discussed in.Factual Findings.7:8-80.- Respondents filled and
- dispensed prescriptions to T.P., KPP, and:S.P., the adult daughter of T.P. and K.P.
From November1; 2006 through Apnl 2008, Respondents dispensed. approxrmately
9,000 Norco or Hydrooodone/APAP 1,960 OxyContin, 1,230 Alprazolam, 480
drazep'am and '2 765 Cansoprodol to thrs famrty Bass treated TR with 10/325 mg.

dispensed 84 presorrptlons to T P 7/ of those prescnptlons were for - :
Hydrocodone/APAP (generic for Noroo), Norco and Carisoprodol (generic for Soma) .
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Of these prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 65 prescriptions and Respondent
Yamasaki dispensed 12 prescriptions to this patient.

76.  According to Respondents, T.P. and K. P were divorced, did not live

together, and paid separately for their respeo’uve prescriptions. The evidence did not
establlsh these fac’cs

77. Complalnant alleged that, in Bass ofﬁoe TP would aooept cash.

payments from patients in exchange for a prescription for controlled substances
without Bass’ examma’non The evidence did not establlsh this fact.

78. T. P lived in Sunland California, nine miles from Respondent JSD.
K.P.

: 79. . In 2008, K P. was approx1mately 45 years old K.P. was marned to T.P.,
discussed in-Factual Findings 75-78, Bass treated him with 80 mg. @xycontln 10/325
“mg. Norco, 2 mg. Xanax; 10 mg. Valium, and 350 mg.-Soma. From November3,.. -
20086, through April 1, 2008, Respondents-ﬁlled and dispensed 134 prescriptions to
K.P.z 106 of those ‘were Bass-issued jprescriptions for Hydrocodone/APAP, .
Alprazolam, Carisoprodol, Diazepam and OxyContin. Of these prescriptions, .
Respondent Daher dispensed 76 prescriptions, Respondent. Yamasaki dispensed 24
presonptlons and Respondent Nabhan dlspensed 6 to thls patlent

80. = K. P llved in'Los Angeles 13. mlles from Respondent JSD..
S.P.

: © 81 In 2008 S P was apprOXImately 20 years old S P is L"\e daughter of
K.P.and T.P. (Fac’cual Findings 75-80.) Bass treated S.P..with 10/325 mg. Norco.and -
350 mg. Soma. ‘FromMarch 22, 2007 through April 7, 2008, Respondents filled and
dispensed 53 prescriptions to S.P; 25 of those presorlptlons dispensed were for

Hydrocodone/APAP (generic for Norco), Diazepam (generic for. Xanax) and
" Carisoprodol (generic-for Soma). Of these prescriptions, Respondent Daher

—dispensed-22~ presorlptlons and-Respondent-Nabhan- dlspensed 3—prescnptlons to-this ... ...

patient.

«

82.. Complainant argued that Respondents failed {o review the T.P., K.P.;
and S.P. family drug history and failed to verify the legitimacy of the prescriptions,
taking into consideration that T.P., K.P., and S.P. were related, had similar
prescriptions of dangerous controlled substances, and were all prescribed by Bass.

83. Respondents argued that they deferred to .Bass' discretion and-did not
presume the familial relationship was evidence that the prescriptions were illegitimate. .
Respondent’s position was not credible. Three family members seeking similar
prescriptions, while not definitive of illegitimate prescriptions, should have caused
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Respondents concern and raised their:suspicions that the prescnptlons were not for
proper medlcal purposes for all three patients.

N.V.-

. 84. In 2008, N.V. was approximately 36 S/ears old Bass treated her w:th‘
10/325 mg. Hydrocodone/APAP. From January 18, 2007, through April 4, 2008,
Respondents ﬁlled and dlspensed 38 Bass issued prescrlptlons to N V.

85. N.V.livedin TuJunga Cahfornla nine. mlles trom Respondent JSD..

86. Respondents filled-and dispensed-a’ 10-day. supply of
Hydrocodone/APAP (generic for Norco) to N.V. on the following dates: March 21, and
29, 2007, two days early; May 22, and May 29, 2007 (Respondent Nabhan), three
days early; June 21, and June 26, 2007 (Respondent Yamasaki), five days early;
February 4, and 12, 2008, two days éarly (Respondent-Daher); March-4, and 13, 2008
(Respondent Daher), one day early; and March 27, and April 4, 2008- (ReSpondent
Daher); two'days early Respondents did:not-doctiment the reasons why they -
dispensed the-generic for Norco to N:Vizearly: Complainant. further alleged that had
Respondents Yamiasaki arid Nabhan consulted patient:profiles prior.to dispensing~ .
Hydrocodone/APAR on May 29, 2007-and. June 26; 2007, then the eafly refills woutd
not have-occurred.” At he‘a‘ring,"neith'et:RespOndent Yarnasaki_;norNabhan,coul_d recall .
this patient or these prescriptions: Though:they-asserted that they generally did
nothing wrong in their dispensing practices, there was no credible evidence presented

that Respondents Yamasaki and Nabhan:consulted -patient profiles on these occasions .
prior to dlspensmg

87. Complainant calculated a 14-day suppty of Norco for N.V. on the dates
noted in. Factual Finding 86, and alleged that those same early refills were six, seven,
nineg; three  six; and-five days early; Tespectively. Complainant's.14-day-supply
catculatlons were lnacourate As noted prevnously they were 10- day supplies.

88. Complalnant also alleged that Respondents ftlhng and dlspenslng of
Norco to'N:V. on‘October 15,-2007; constituted a three-day early refill. itwasa 10-day
~=stpply-—Respondents-illed:and- dispensed thessame-prescription-1o-N.V..on-October.4,
2007. Therefore, the October 15, 2007 dispensing was not early. ’

. 89. On various occasions, N V. confirmed in writing to Respondents that she
* required early refills for apparently-legitimate reasons:-On those-occasions, on August
10, 2007, November 17,2007, and September 13, 2009, Respondents filled Bass’
prescriptions for N.V. early, based on herwritten reasons that Respondents accepted

as true. Given Respondents’ documentation of N.V.'s reasons for needmg the early
refllls these three early retllls were appropnate
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J.S,

90. In.2008, J.S. was approximately 23 years old. Basstreated him with .
10/325 mg. Norco, 2 mg. Xanax, and 350 mg. Soma. Respondents dispensed 36
Bass-issued prescriptions to J.S. from October 31, 2006 through April 5, 2007. During
this time, Respondents dispensed 1,875 tablets of Hydrocodone/APAP (lnoludlng one
incident of Hydrocodone/APAP 10/500 mg.), 800 tablets of Alprazolam (generic for
Xanax) 2 mg., and a 110 tablets of Carisoprodol (generic for Soma) to J.S. Of these
prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 22 prescriptions and Respondent
Yamasakl dlspensed 14 presorlptlons to this patlent

91. - Respondent Yamasaki dispensed a 10 -day supply of Noroo o J. S on
January 15, 2007. Respondent Daher dispensed 10-day supplies of Norco to J.S. on
January 18.and 22, 2007. The evidence contained only .one written prescription from
Bass for the January 19, 2007 dispensing. Having received a 10-day supply of Norco: -
on January 15, 2007, the January 19, 2007 dispensing constituted an early refill by six
days. The dispensing on January 22, 2007 constituted an early refill by seven days.
Because there was no evidence of. Bass prescriptions for the. January 19.and 22, 2007
filling-and dispensing of Norco to J.S. , Respondent.Daher’s dispensing constltuted the
_ drspensrng of controlled substanoes Wlthout physician authorization.

- 92, Respondent Daher filed-and dlspensed a 15 day supply of Xanax to J.S."
on January 19;and 24, 2007. Thus, Respondents filled and dispensed Xanax to J. S
10 days early on January 24, 2007. Respondent Daher did not dooument a.reason for
~ the early refills; he argued that he deferred to Bass’ discretion..
.93, - Aooordlng fo. Respondents J.S. attempted to lmproperly obtaln early

reﬂlls after January.2007, and on April 5, 2007, Respondent Daher- refused to serve.
- J.S. further. :

‘ 94. : Complamant alleged that Respondents had ﬂlled a Noroo presonptlon SiX
days early, on January 30, 2007, without consulting:Bass. However the evidence did

-not establish that Respondents dispensed any Norco t0.J.S. on January 24, or 30
2007. :

95 J S. would alternate between paying cash and using his insurance. J.S.
paid cash for Norco on five occasions on January 19 and 24, 2007, and February 12,
'2007, and he paid cash for Xanax on February16 and 20, 2007 Lomplajnant argued
that Respondents should have determined that J.S." use of cash was due t0J.S!
health insurance refusing to cover the prescriptions due to the amount of drugs and the
frequency of the prescriptions. Nothing in the evidence, however, established that .
-J.S." health lnsuranoe had rejected coverage as Complalnant alleged.

96. J.S.lived in Thousand Oaks, 39 mrles from Respondent JSD and 35
miles from Bass otfloe .
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A.C.

97.  In'2008}AlC. was approximately 23 years old. Bamdadtreated him with
40 mg. Oxycontln and 2 mg. Xanax, he prescribed an approximately 30-day supply of
both medications! Respondents filled and dispensed eight:Bamdad-issued -
medications to A:C.-from Décember 11, 2007, to April 40;.2008.. During this period,

RespondentDaher dlspensed 270 tablets of Oxycodone and 240 tablets of- Xanax 2
mg. to this patient.

98. A.C. paid cash for all'of hls Bamdad lssued presorlptrons from
Respondent JSD. The evidence showed that Bamdad was a family medicine doctor.
There was no evrdence that Bamdad had any declared specralty ln pain- management,

S99, AC would present and: purchase hlS Bamdad lssued prescrlptlons at
Respondent JSD on an approxrmately monthly baSlS

100, Respondents did not maintain’ any wrrtten records supportlng
consultatlons with Bamdad" regardlng A.Cs diagnoses. ‘Respondents argued that
nothing in ‘Bamdad's: prescrlblng pattern for A C requrred any such consultatlons

101. AC. llved in Thousand Oaks 43 mlles from Respondent JSD and 36
miles from:Bamdad's office. The evidence showed thatA:C:rwould buy . OxyContin one
day and return the’ next day'to pick up the Xanax portion of hlS prescnptlon from Jay
Scott Drugs “This'was: an. approxrmate 86- mlle round trrp

102. A.C. died on April 13, 2008, in an in- patlent lehabllltatlon center in
‘Pasadena, ‘California, whére hehad’ been admitted-for. opiate addrctlon A.C. died from
multiple drug-effects; lncludlng gignificantly*high-Oxycodone levels..

| 103 Complainant argued that Bamdad’s Oxycontin and Xanax prescriptiOns
contributed to A.C.'s death. The evidence did not’establish how many:Oxycontin or
Xanax tablets A.C. consumed the day of his death:. However, A.C's-ast-prescription

dispensed by Respondent Daher on April 10, 2008 included- 90 tablets of Oxycodone
30 mg

. 104 A C s tather R C testrtled R C frled a complarnt wrth the Board R C
asserted that A.C. had ng-major sportsinjuries.. (Seealso Factual Finding-136.) R.C.
became aware of A.C.’ 'S drug Uséin 2006, whlle A C was a college student R.C.
descrlbed A C as addlcted to drugs e

S.R. and F.R.

105. In 2068 S.R. was approxlmately 31 years old Bass treated him with
10/650 mg. Lorcet: (Hydrocodone Bitartrate and’ Acetamlnophen) Soma 350 mg. and 2
mg. Xanax .
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106. Complainant alleged that Respondents dispensed 125 tablets of Lorcet
and 60 tablets of Xanax, six days early on four occasions: October 10, and 24, 2007,
November 7, 2007, and December 19, 2007 (Respondents dispensed Lorcet and
Xanax on November 21, 2007 also). However, this allegation presumed that the
quantity and dosage instructions on each medication equated to a 20-day supply, that
is, 1 tablet every 4 hours for Lorcet, and 1 tablet every 6 hours for Xanax. Only the
October 24, 2007 written prescription was in-evidence and that prescription showed a
. dosage that equated to a 20-day supply. With no other Bass-issued prescription in
evidence, and given that, from January through April 2008, Bass had directed the
dosage of Lorcet for S8.R.to be 1-2 tablets every four hours (a 10-day supply), the
evidence could not establish that the remaining prescriptions were a 20-day supply.
Further, the CURES report for S.R., on each of the dates in question, including :
October 24, 2007, described the quantltles prescribed as 14-day supplies. Thus, the -

gvidence was- m;ufﬁcnent to establish early refills f for any day other than chober 24,
2007.

107.: From October 10, 2007 to April 9, 2008, S.R..and F.R., who snared the
same last'name, paid cash for their Bass- |ssued prescriptions. Dunng this time penod
Respondents dispensed a total of 78 prescriptions for Hydrocodone/APAP. 125 tablets,
Alprazolam2 mg 60 tablets, and Carisoprodol 350 mg 60 tablets for both S.R. and ,
F.R. (39 prescriptions-each): Of these prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 66
prescriptions and Respondent Yamasaki dispensed 12 prescriptions to these patients.
S.R. and F.R. would frequently present their presonptlons for controlled substances
together at Respondent JSD, even though they lived in different cities. There was no _
evidence of their relatlonshlp, if any... As opined by-Complainant's expert, discussed
later, Respondents should have questioned Bass about why S.R. and F.R. were
getting prescriptions together with the same doses and directions. There was no - .

evidence that Respondents discussed medical Condltlons or the drug therapy for th-ese
two pa’nente With Dr. Bass pnor to dlspensmg

Lo 108. S:R: lived in Ventura, Callfornla 62 miles from RespondentJSD
G.C.lll | |

o e =409 —n-2008:-G.Ci-Hl -was: appréxnmately 32—yeers old.--Bass treated-him AWith.. .

10/325 mg.-Norco, 2 mg. Xanax, and 350 mg.-Soma.. Respondents dispensed 39.
Bass-prescribed generic drugs for these medications to G.C. il from October 10, 2007
to April 9, 2008. Of these medications, Respondent Daher dispensed 33 prescriptions
and Respondent Yamasakl dlspensed 6 prescriptions to this pa‘uent

110. ‘Respondent Daherﬂlled and dispensed 150 tablets of Alprazolam
(generic for Xanax) to G.C. Ill on November 21, 2007, a 37-day supply, and 28 days
later, Respondents filled and-dispensed 75 tablete of 'the same-drug.on December 19,
2007. The refillwas nine days early. On-each of 11 dates between October 24,.2007,
“and March 26, 2008, Respondent Daher dispensed Alprazolam to G.:C. Il four days
early. Respondent did not document the reasons for these early refills.
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111.  G.C..l was the son of G.C. Jr. (father)-and N.C.(mother). Between
October 25, 2006, -and April-7,"2008; Bass alsotreated 'G.C..d1.;:a-6 1 year-old-man, .
with Norco, Valium, Adipex, Bontril,-and Soma.and N.C. with Vicodin ES; Valium,
Adipex, and Bontril. Respondents dispensed prescriptions'to'G.C:-and N.C. from
October 10, 2007 to April 7, 2008.During that time, ‘Respondents filled ;prescriptions .
for G.C. that included Bdhtﬁl‘TOS’-mg 30 capsules, ‘Hydrocodone/APAP 10/650.125
tablets, Carisoprodol 350 mg 30 tablets, and Diazepam 10 mg 50 tablets. Of these:
prescriptions, Respondént Daher dispensed 30 prescriptions @nd Respondent -
Yamasaki dispensed 7 prescriptions to G:C. ‘During that time, Respondents also filled
prescriptions for N:C: for, among others, Hydrocodone/APAP (7.5/750) 125 tablets,
and Bontril 105 mg 30 capsules, - Phendimetrazine 375 'mg 60 fablets, and Diazepam"
10 mg 50 tablets. Of these presonp’nons Respondent Daher dlspensed 20 -
prescriptions to N.C. and Respondent Yamasaki dispensed 5 prescriptions to N.C.

112. G.C. Jr. and N.C. had the same address listed in their patient profiles.
They would-corne into- Respondent-JSD together 1o purchase:their Bass-issued
prescriptions. Complamant argued that this fact Was @notherred flag that-should have
raised Respondents” ‘suspicions. ’ ‘Through theiriexpeit opinions; discussed:later,
Responderits argued that it was. logical for the:married: couple’ta. present themselves
together &t Respondent JSD:“Respondents”argumentwas unpersuasive.. G.C. Jr,
and N.C.'s presentatfions should have, at.the very least, raised- Respondents
suspmons that the pa’uents preeonptlons had to be venﬂed by Base T

‘ 113 G C Hl hved in’ Ventura 62 mllee from Reepondent JSD
J.C.

114. 1n 2008, J.C. was 24 years.old. -Bass treated J.C.-with 10/325-mg. Nerco.
between October 30, 2008, and October 9, 2007, and with 2 mg. Xanax between'
January 23, 2007, to October 9, 2007, The-distance between Dr. Bass' office and Jay
Scott Drugs was approximately 17 miles.

115, During the time J.C. was purchasing his prescription medication from
Respondents:J-G-was-using-three-different-physicians-and-three-differentpharmacies
for prescription medication: Complainant arguéd that: Respondents would have
. uncovered-stich fac’cs had ’they aooeseed a: CURES repor’t for.J.C.:

1186. Respondente argued- that ‘accessing : CURES would nothave-given them
timely evidence of the multiple doctors and pharmacies, and that-even with that
information, such information would not'mean that the prescriptions.were for an
illegitimate purpose. Respondents further. argued that while physician shopping.is a
red flag for abuse anddiversion, it is ‘also & common :circumstance for:patients.dealing

with the undertreatment:of pain. There was no ewdenoe that J C had paln that was
being madequate\y treated.
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Other Patient Issues

117. *J.C., S.R,, G.C.lll, and G.C. Jr. were all members of the Hells Angels
motorcycle gang. ‘Complainant implicitly argued that this information should have
raised Respondents’ suspicions ahout the legitimacy of each of these patients’ -
prescriptions. However, there was no evidence to establish that membership in the
motorcycle gang, in and of itself, would warrant such a presumption. To begin to .
identify those types of factors as reasons to suspect lllegltlmate prescriptions would
lead to improper and inaccurate presumptlons

118. Complalnan’t argued that the followmg patients had illogical drug
combinations of non-barbiturate sedative hypnotics, benzodiazepines, and
nonbenzodiazepines. Valium, Xanax, and Halcion are benzodlazeplnes Ambien is a
non- barblturate sedative hypnotic..-

: D.L: Ambien and Valium-

D.K.: Xanax, Ambien, and Valium

K.P.: Xanax and Valium

'B‘G ' Xanax and Valium .

D. S Xanax Amblen and Vahum

L. G Xanax and Vahum

- Complainant failed to sufﬂolently explain why a reasonably prudent pharmacist would
find these drug combinations “iliogical.”. Complainant alleged that the combinations
were duplicative in the First Amended Accusation, but failed to put on evidence as to
why such combinations were sufficient to raise inquiry to the prescriber by 4
Respondents. Consequently, this allegation was not supported by the evidence. -

Respondents

Respondent Daher

119. - Respondent Daher came to the United States from Lebanon in 1978, He
‘attended the Oregon State University. (OSU), School of Pharmacy and graduated in
1983. He worked -as a pharmacist for Kaiser Permanente and CVS before opening his
first pharmiacy in Glendale in 1987 Respondent Daher purchased Respondent JSD in -
1995; he'was and is the P.1.C. Respondent Nabhan started with-Respondent JSD in
1987 and Yamasaki, in 1991. Respondent Daher is married and has four children. He
keeps close ties with OSU. He has set up a family scholarship foundation at the OSU
pharmacy program, providing internship opportunities for its students. Respondent
Daher has acted -as preceptor for students for the |ast five years.

21




120. Respondent Daher explained that one reason Reepondents got so much
pain-medication business-was their prices. ‘Hé stated that:he sells 125 tablets of -
10/325 mg. Norco for-approximately $40, while large chain pharmacies, like CVS,
charge more than $90 for the same medication. The evidence was unclear whether
these prices were the prices when Respondent.JSD-first opened or currently.

Respondent JSD was a larger, independent pharmacy Wlth a great volume of business -
for medications and durable medical equrpment

121. In his deposition in another case dated May 5, 2011 Respondent Daher
agreed Respondent JSD-had 600 patients” from Bass and approxnmately 90 of those, .
patients resided in Ventura County. He disputed that most-of-the patients were young,
asserting that from his accounting of the 80 patients from Ventura County, 30 patients
were under 26 years of age, 30 patients were between .26 and 30 years:old, and 30
patients were over 30 years old. There was no independent evidence to establish
Respondent Daher's age descriptions, but there was also insufficient evidence to
conclude that any sizeable population of Respondent JSD was under. 30. While the
evidence established that some of the patients atissue in this matter were under 30 .
years of age, of the 17 patients discussed herein (with the exception of N.C., who was
likely well over 30), nine patients were under 30 years of age. . - - . -

122. Respondent Daher did not feel that the patients exhibited evidence of
being drug addicts improperly seekmg pain rnedlca’uons Respondent Daher did not

have prompted concern in and of itself. He beheved that those paylng cash were
simply part of the many individuals in the community who are uninsured.

- 428:  According to Reepondent Daher, Respondents were conscious that the
oatrent demand increased in 2007 and 2008 and.developed policies to ensure they .
praicticed pharmiacy within the law and-did not-contribute to miedication.abuse.
Complainant argued that Respoendents:developed these policies after the Board began .
to investigate:the instant matter. - The evidence did not establish when Respondents _
developed the policies or when they came into effect.

- 124.- Respendente’-und-ateda--written poliey-for-filling pain management ... ..
prescriptions was signed by each Respondent, but undated. The policy. included the
following requirements, among others: 1) check prescriptions with physicians; 2) check
physician licenses; 3) patients must be present and must sign for their own

-prescriptions unless:they 'sign a release in the presence of the. patlent and authorrzed
' person; 4) educate: patlents on the dangers.of medications;-4) require patients to read
and sign the auxiliary warning labels; 5):use:professional judgment when patients use
~ multiple pain-doctors and call each doctor:and disclose that fact; .8)-no early refills
unless the patient is going to surgery, leaving toiwn (documented); and 7)) preeonptlons
'mue't'be‘ﬂned“in order and recorded daily intoa-book, and numbered for retrieval.

* Respondent Daher agreed that this amounted to an estimated $1 .7 million doliars that Respondent
JSD filled for Dr. Bass' patients over a two-year period.
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125. Respondents had additional policies.. They kept Pain Management
Prescriptions Policy and Procedures guidelines for receiving schedule Il drugs,
schedule HI-IV drugs, recording -of receivables, inventory, prescription filling, '

- prescription pick-up, and early refills. With regard to prescription filling, the policy had .
various requirements, including that: 1) Respondents should ask all out-of-area .

" patients why they are filling their prescriptions at Respondent JSD 2) Respondents
should check patient identification with their fraud detection unit;® 3) Respondents. .
should contact the physician office on all schedule Il through V prescriptions; 4) If the -
dose is out of the ordinary, contact thephysician and request a diagnosis; and 5) If a

“different person is to pick-up a prescription, both persons must be present the first ime
and Respondent must photocopy and keep a copy of the patient's and desrgnated
mdrvrdual s |dentlflcatlons with srgnatures and an explanation.

126.. Asto early refllls Respondents’ policies provnded that prescrlptlons could
generally be refilled two days ahead of the prescription’s finish date. Respondents
argued that the early reﬁlls descnbed hereln were dlspensed using thelr professronal
dtscretlon in-each case. o :

127 As to physrclan llcense vern‘lcatlon Respondent Daher asserted that all
physician licenses were to be checked monthly and printed. If they found that the -
California Medical Board had placed a prescribing physician's license on probation,
they were to stop filling the prescription regardless of reason for probation. All
physicians were to be telephoned-and questioned about their practice. Respondents

were 1o stop filling’ prescrlptlons from any physrcran suspected of any pattern of -
wrongful actrwty - : ca D NS

_ 128 Desplte the computer error: alleged by Respondents in thls case, in
: January 2007, Respondent Daher asserted that he did “not spare any expense on.
making sure that my records are kept up-to-date.” Respondent Daher also testified
that, with regard to patient prescription-history records showing-his initials-"AD” as the .
dispénsing pharmacist, it “could have been me” or he speculated that Respondent
- JSD's staff may have ‘used his initials because he was “there every day” asthe - *
pharmacist-in-charge. Respondent Daher did not explain why those records Would not -

~em === --bekept *up-to-date*-or-accurate-as-he-asserted in other-testimony:—These - ————q =« e

inconsistencies and lack of explanation cast doubt on Respondent Daher’s. credlbrllty
Generally, Respondent Daher asserted that he and the other Respondents did nothing
wrong. He and Respondent Nabhan each spoke with Bass after Respondent Nabhan
iriitially contacted Bass with his concem about the high doses of narcotic medication. .
Respondent Daher also spoke to Bass after B.G’s mother wrote him a note-saying
“Don’t fill my son’s prescription:” Bass convinced Respondents that he was a

- legitimate pain physician treating chronic pain sufferers and that his prescriptions. were
therefore, legitimate. Respondent Daher did not feel he could or should impose his
own concerns regarding the medication combinations or quantities on the physician.

® Respondents purchased and used a machine at the pharmacy that verified identification cards
and driver licenses. -
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He trusted Bass based on Bass’ representations and did not believe the amounts of
medications.Respondents dispensed were-so great as-to require:him o stop.
dispensing: Respondent Daher asserted that all Respondents counseled patients :
regularly asto the dangers of the medications and to-complying strictly with the dosage
instructions: ‘He did not-observe any actions or words from the patients that made him
believe the patients were addicted to narcotics or other drugs, e.g., the patients were
incoherent. He did not-observe any actions or words by the patients that-made him
believe the patients were improperly obtaining the prescriptions for illegitimate
purposes. Respondent Daher explained that his criteria for refusing to fill a .
prescription included suspicious behavior like the patient claiming he or she was.
“shorted” or lost tablets, or patients coming to the pharmacy with multiple prescriptions
from multiple doctors. Respondent Daher explained howRespondents kept the
auxiliary- warning labels from each prescription; placed them on:paper,-and had each
patient sign next to each label, memorializing Respondents’ counseling. Respondents
offered numerocus such-documents into evidence.

429, Respondents’initialbelief that Bass was a pain-specialist may have been
reasonable if no other “red flag” indicators were present. However,.as explained later,
a physician’s self-described pain management specialty does not relieve Respondents
from further reasonable inquiry into the prescriberwhen “red flags®,-including

consistently high volumes of. addnc‘uve medloa’uons and ques’uonable prescrlbing
patterns emerge : R Sl T

130.- Respondents presented numerous. prescnptlons and other documents on
which they documented:communications ‘with various physmlans other than Bass and
Bamdad, where Respondents were verifying diagnoses, confirming drgg choices, or
otherwise clarifying prescriptions. For example, Respondent Nabhan documented his
own verifications’ and:clarifications on Qctober.26, 2007; for Vicodin: E:S., on June 26,
2008; for 10/325 mng. Norco,-on-dune 10, 2008, for duphcate preecrlp’uons for 10/650
Lotcét and 2 mgr Xanax, and ‘othér similar: communlca’uons with physicians other than .
- Bass-or-Bamdad on May 9, 2008 (diagnosis verification for MS Contin),-May 14, 2008
(diagnosis ‘verification for Oxycontin', Xanax, and-Cymbalta), May 22; 2008 -(diagno_.sis
verification for Norco and-Motrin), June 13, 2008 (diagnosis -verification forz.Ofxycontin),
September 30, 2008 (prescription-clarificationfor MS Contin and Lortab), and.. -
November 5+ 20@8 -(diagnosis-verificatior-for-Oxycentin-and Actie)~However; httlem -
Welght was glven to this information:as supportive of Respondents’. claims, since there
wasno- ev1dence that such.communications with-prescribers happened.for the:
patients in this case. This information only demonstrates that : Respondents:were .
awarethat-such communications were an important part.of pharmacy-practice and ithat
they - wereable to:document such’ commiunications for some_of their. patients, but falled
to prowde any evndence that they did-so-for these: patlents in’ thls case:-

® Other than .the instance mentioned in Factual Finding 128 above, Respondents have either failed to
provide any other examples of specific inquiry. prior-to-dispensing medications or admitted that they did
not inquire because they deferred to Bass’ expertise.
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-131. Generally, Respondent Daher asserted that he and the other
Respondents regularly reviewed the patients’ drug therapies, their. medrcatron records,
and their patient profiles, as kept by Respondents at Respondent JSD, before
dispensing the prescribed medications to each. Respondent-Daher’'s assertion was
similar to Respondent Nabhan’s assertions. (Factual Finding 137.) The patient
profiles that Respondent kept showed the patients’ prescription history, including
medication quantities, estimated day’s supply, dates of filling/dispensing, payment
method, prescriber and patient identification among other things. However,

Respondents’ self-serving, bare assertions that the reviews were conducted accordlng _

to their alleged usual and customary practice are msuﬁ’rment to prove that they were
done in this case. -

132. Respondent Daher presented character w1tnesses who testrfred that he is
known in his community as a generous, truthful, caring.and trustworthy person.and
pharmacist. He is a practicing and faithful Roman Catholic. Respondents were
cooperative with the Board's investigation.

Respondent Nabhan

133. Respondent Nabhan was a shepherd in Jordan before comlng to the
United States. In the U.S., he became a licensed respiratory therapist.. He eventually .
entered and graduated from the University of Southern California, School of Pharmaicy.
‘He worked as a pharmacrst fora county entity for 36 years '

134. Respondent Nabhan did agree that. whenever the records showed hlS '
initials “AN?, that he had filled that prescription. Upon questioning, however, ...
Respondent Nabhan had.no memory of the patients’ names and the prescnptlons in
. this case. He did testify. that his documentation -of communlcatlons with the prescriber

_were typically “case-by case” or if “| feel | have to document it.” He generally consulted -

prescribers whenever he needed clarification, including When a prescrlptlon was . |
" missing things or exceeded the recommended dosing. Although he had no specmc
recollection of these patients or the prescriptions, he nevertheless asserted that he
and the other Respondents:did nothing wrong with regard to dispensing Bass'
prescriptions 1o the indicated-patients. He asserted that he received no financial

--incentive-to-fillkmore- prescnptrons —Respondent-Nabhan-did-agree-that,-generally,-any.—... -

prescnptlon that was post—dated" was not a legal prescription and that he would .not fill
it.” o o -

135. Early on in the prescription-flow from Bass?, Respondent Nabhan
testlfred that he talked with Bass to discuss his concern about the high doses of pain
medication. Bass explained to him that he was a pain physician and was aware of the
combination of drugs he was prescribing. Bass told Respondent Nabhan that he was

! See Factual Finding 29

® The record is unclear and Respondent did not testify as to the date when this conversation allegedly _
occurred.,
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‘obtaining good: results from his drug treatmenits and:that there was no ceiling dose for
~ Norco and thatthe dosage‘was left to the physician’s discretion. - Bass eventually
came to Respondent JSDand showed Respondent Nabhan his-(Bass):pain
management society certificates.” Respondents offered photographs:of Bass’
certificates from the American Academy of Pairi Nlanagernent, American Academy of
Pain Medicine, American Pain Society, the American:Society of Pain Educators, -and
the Western Pain"Society.- The evidence failed to establish the veracity; or substance .
of these certificates. Respondents-accepted Bass' assertlons and -did not further )
lnvesttgate Bass quahﬂoatlons : :

136. According to Respondent Nabhan Respondents dtscussed thetr contact
with Bass and decided to continue to fill Bass’ prescriptions. Based on representations
from patients and Bass, Respondent Nabhan Believed that many of-the younger
patients had sports injuries o worked for the'Biirbarik studios building*motion picture
sets. Thére was no évidence establlshlng thepatients’”. sports lnjunes or that any of
them worked for the Burbank movie studios.

137. Respondent Nabhan reiterated Respondent Daher's descriptions of
maintaining constant communication with patients and with phystolans as needed,
having patients:sign-the warning-labels, and'being conscious of abuse signs such as
lost or acoldentally Wasted prescnptlons and consistentlyearly refills:” He conceded. |
that he-did not'discuss specific patients with Bass because he was.convinced that
Bass was a pain-management-expert and Bass “knew What he was doing.” Despite
this admitted deference to Bass' expertise in prescribing pain medications,
Respondent Nabhan nevertheless claimed that he and the other Respdndents
regularly reviewed the patients’ driig-therapies:their:-medication-records; and their:
patlent proﬁles as- kept by Respondents at:Respondent JSD,-before: dlspensmg the
-presonbed meédicationsto each: ‘Acctording'to ‘Respondent Nabhan once
"Respondents learned of thepatient deaths 'Respoendents.stopped. dispensing paln

medication for pain management-physicians? The evidence was: unolear whether
- Respondents 1ndeed stopped :

138." Respondents contacted Bass™office to conflrm presonptnons diaghoses,
and/or dosages on presonptlons Tor-patients other than ithe patients at.issue in this
~riiatteron fimerous-dates: ‘including-October34-2006-(Sonata-and-Ambien)-January -
8, 2007 (Norco and Xanax), March 17, 2008.(Oxycontin, Valium, Soma), March 17,
2008 (Norco), March 26, 2008 (Lortab), March 31, 2008 (Norco, Xanax, Soma, and -
Motrin), April 2, 2008 (Norco) April 2, 2008 (Lorcet Xanax, and Soma), and April 8,
2007 (Noroo) “However, in this ‘case and Withthese patients, Respondent Nabhan

admiitted‘that: he did not consult Bass regardtng eaoh patlent pnor to dlspensmg the
medlcattons at lssue )

Respondent Jun Yamasaki

139.  On July 19, 2006, the Board recognized and commended Responderit -
Yamasakifor 50 years of service as aregistered pharmacist. Respondent Yamasaki
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asserted generally that he did nothing wrong by dispensing Bass’ prescriptions to the
indicated patients. The ALJ found that Respondent Yamasaki-answered the ques‘uons
posed during his examination, but at times during the questioning. from each counsel,
he appeared somewhat unclear in his understanding and he required- repetition and
additional explanations. The evidence did not establish whether this was due to his
age, being hard of hearing, or other factors. At hearing, Respondent Yamasaki .
acknowledged that whenever the pharmacy’s records showed a “Y” initial, that meant
that he had approved the prescription and filled it. However, he admitted that he could
not specifically recall any patient or prescription in this case.. Therefore when
questioned about specific patients or any circumstances surroundlng the filling and
dispensing of the prescriptions for these patients, Respondent Yamasaki could not
explain why prescriptions he filled may have been dispensed early or whether he
exercised his corresponding responsibility approprlately in each case prior to.
disperising. He did, however, testify that it would only be reasonable for ReSponuents

to fill a prescription early “if we had documentation.” He also testified that if he,

observed that a patient regularly obtained Hydrocodone and. then the patrent also _
obtarned Suboxone that he would “thrnk they were an addlot

Addrtlonal Asserirons by Respondents

140 Overall Responderts argued that their aotlons Were reasonable gtven
their dutres as pharmacists and not knowing the extent of Bass’ and Bamdad's .
improper actions as physicians. They pointed to an inspection report, dated July’ 2
2008, by-Bayley. By this date, they argued, Bayley had reviewed the same eVIdenoe

“and data as was presented in the instant matter, However,.in that report, after .

inspecting Respondents Bayley. found “[tjhere was. lnsuﬁlolent evidence whether
[Respondent :JSD] was in violation.of pharmacy law.” Respondents argument is noted

. but Inspector Bayley's conclusions on‘one report did nat- preolude a dtfferent
- conclusion thereafter,

‘The Optnlons of Darlene Fuumoto

141 Darlene Fujtmoto testrhed on behalf of Complalnant Stnoe August 2009

" Fujimoto has been the Assistant. Chief of Pharmacy Regulatory/Comphance and

-~ Accreditationforthe-University-ef -California-at-San-Diego-Health-Systems Medical .. ..
“Center. "She has held positions in the pharmacy industry since July 1986, tncludmg a
~board member of the:California Board of Pharmacy (July 1992 to 2001). She holds a

Doctor of Pharmacy. degree from the University of Southern Cahtornta School of
Pharmacy.- Since February 2007, Fujimoto has been an Assistant Clinical Professor at -
the University of'San Diego, Skaggs School of Pharmacy. .Fujimoto has held Assistant
Clinical Professorships at the University of California at Irvine, School of Medicine

(1987-2003), and the University of California at San Francisco, Sohoot of Pharmaoy
(September 1985- 1999)

® See Factual Findings 50-58 regarding dispensing dangerous drugs to D.L., who had also been
presonbed Suboxone




"142. Fujimoto set forth the apphcable standard:of care analysis: whata
reasonable, prudent; pharmaorst would do in the same situation... Fujimoto.opined.that -
Bass' prescriptions were “fed flags” that Respondents.should have noticed: Fujimoto.
rden’uﬁed ‘the red flags as: drug addicts .commonly seek the 'same drug: combinations
as Bass’ prescnptlons high doses whether the prescription was-the patient's frrst or
last; the same drug combinations in the same guantities and doses without - o
cus’romrzmg them for the patients; a great geographic distance between patlent and
prescriber, and between patient and pharmaoy, the patients® age (she described ,
anyone 30. years old or younger as “young"); paying cash for the medications, that ls_
they dld not use ‘healthinsurance:’ ST e e

143 Fujrmoto agreed wrth Respondents that pharmaorsts mus‘c evaluate . -
prescnptrons using their clinical expertise to determineif-each prescription is proper..
However,’ acoordrng to FUJlmOtO the quantity of controlled substances within Bass'
prescnp‘uons was excessive and, using their clinical expertise, Respondents should
have been aware of the potential dangers of dispensing these combinations of
medications to patients with the red flags meéntiohed-previeusly.- Respondents-.
accepted the prescriptions with no consistent periodic evaluation of the patients’

- treatment histories. Respondents’ early refillsidispensed additional; highly addictive...
drugs to patierits who displayed several red flags of addiction. Fujimoto explained that
filling prescnp‘uons éarly withiout.contacting the. prescnber could rmpede potentrally
»legrtrmate drug tredfments rnoludlng tltratron efforts AL

S 44 Fujlmoto oprned that Bass had o’ professronal quahflcatrons to support
his self—descnbed pain specialty: :She questioned. whether the young patients truly had
_chronrc pain, as presumed by Bass’ prescriptions.<Fujimoto-opined that the. .
"oombma’uon of opioids; ‘benzodiazepines, and muscle rélaxants; as prescribed by
Bass, was 4 danhgérous combination that could lead-to. serious medloal problems
lnoludrng respiratory depression and death.

145. Fujimoto opined that a prudent pharmacist would be.in frequent contao’r
with the prescriber to check the parameters of any pain contract, question the validity
of the’ prescnptron confirm the need'to continue all.of the- medrca‘rrons at the
presonbed dose and document Lhese oommunroatrons

146 \nstead Furrmoto found ‘rhat Responden’cs drd not keep de‘rarled records
of any such communrca’nons While Fujimoto believed Respondents should have been -
. cheokrng CURES reports; she conceded that CURES was not readily available online :

* between 2006 and 2008 Nevertheless, she'explained that in 2006 through 2008
pharmacrsts could still request CURES reports by mail-and facsimile.. Had .-
Respondents u’uhzed CURES, Fujimoto reasoned, Respondents would have
uncovered the earlier prescriptions-of Subutex, and Suboxone for A.S. and D.L., and
the prescription trends showing the use of multiple physicians; multiple pharmacies,
and the excessive quantities of highly addictive controlled substances,
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. 147. Fujimoto.explained that Respondents had and have an obligation not to
defer to prescribing physicians as they.did to Bass and Bamdad. They provided littie
or no oversight-over the prescriptions and continued to frequently dispense consistent
- and virtually uninterrupted large quantities of dangerous combinations of controlled
substances. I Fujimoto’s opinion, Respondents should have questioned Bass and
‘Bamdad and Respondents should not have taken Bass' word for his actions in light of .
what Fujimoto opined were highly suspect prescribing practices. She opined that a
reasonable pharmacist would have had suspicions about Bass’ and Bamdad's patients
and practices: Respondents did not document any suspicion.about the combination of
drugs, the physicians’ practices, or the drug combinations. Fujimoto opined that
Respondents’ failure to contact Bass and Bamdad as to their prescription practices .
and contlnue to dlspense the presonptlons Constrtuted unprofessional conduct.

The Oplmons of Rlchard R. Abood

148. Richard R. Abood testrfred on behalf of Respondents Slnoe 1991 he
has-been a Professor of Pharmacy Practice at the-University of the Pacific, School of
Pharmacy in Stockton, California.” From 1989 .to 1991, Abood was a Professor of .
Pharmacy Administration at the University of Wyoming, School of Pharmacy, in _
Laramie; Wyoming, and-from 1982 1o 1989, he was an Associate ‘Professor of .
Pharmacy Administration at the same. unlversrty He held-another professorship in.
pharmacy at the University of Texas, College of Pharmacy in Austin; Texas, from, 1983
10 1984. Abood held pharmacy positions from approximately 1972 to 1982. He ... .
obtained a'Bachelor’s degree in pharmacy in 1972 and a Juris Doctorate in May 1976
both from the University of Nebraska in Lincoln. He obtained a license to practrce .
pharmacy in Nebraska, lowa, and Wyoming. Since the 1980s, Abood has written--
numerous articles on the regulatory and legal issues within the pharmacy practrce He
has authored &-publication entitled “Pharmacy Practice and the Law,” 7th Edition
(October 2012), with earlier editions in 2011-and 2010 (6th edition), 2007 (5th edition),
2004 (4th edltlon) and sull earlier editions with a co- author from 1994 {0 2000.

149 " Abood oplned that Respondents aoted as reasonable pharmacrsts by
dispensing Bass':and:Bamdad’s prescriptions. Abood acknowledged that some.of the -
patients ' may have been addicted to drugs; but noted that Respondent’s actions-should
--be-assessedfrom-the: perspective-of-the-reasenably- prudent-pharmacist-and-not: Wrth -

hindsight“as to the criminal-actions of the prescribing physicians .or. the later knowledge ,

that certain patients were addicts.. Abood did not-find the typical actions or situations
that pharmacists find when patient-addicts are trying to obtain greater quantities of
controlled substances. Abood identified-thése actions and situations-as patients lying -
or otherwise attempting to deceive the prescriber or pharmacist (repeated assertions of
losing oraccidentally wasting medications); noncompliance with directions for use.and

~ dosages, and evidence that the pat|ent has sold stolen, or borrowed presonptron
drugs. . e .

150. As to some of the “red flags” highlighted by Complalnant Abood opined
that while some of the patients were young, young patients also suffer.from chronic
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pain and therefore, given the other information ‘Respondents received, such as
construction industry employment; patient.age need not have caused Respondents .
concern. Regarding the distance -between Respondent JSD-and patient residences,
Abodd noted that many physicians do. not treat:chronic-pain’and thus, it is reasonable
to have ‘chronic pain patients travel longer distances to find available physicians and
pharmacies. Abood also‘opined that.30 to 40 miles is not an unreasonable distance to
travel in'Los Angeles. Abood pointed to the great number of persons.who cannot
afford health insurance to support his opinion that cash.payments do not-constitute
addict behavior, Regarding the fact that famlly members received the same drug
reglments Abood found it “hardly impossible” that family members-could share the ,
same pain problems-and therefore share the same driig regimen. For this reason, he
found nothing significant about B.G, :and: C.G: obtaining-the same-prescriptions at -
same time, even if it was true that the siblings admitted they obtained the prescriptions
to support B.G.s addiction, as he believes there was no'way Respondents could have
known that at the time they dxspensed the medlcatlons

51, Regardlng the-great: quanhty :of controlled substances dlspensed Abood
oplned that the number of prescnptlons appeared greaterthan generally expected.
because Bass wroté'prescriptions for 10fo 15-day. supplies: Most: prescribers wrate -
prescriptions fora 30=daysupply, and therefore, Bass's’ prescrlptlons would amount fo
aoproxxmatelv two times miore prescnphons “Abood conceded that Bass did not -
appearto be hlghly sophlstlcated in treating pain, but:Bass’ prescriptions for Norco
Xanax; and Soma, were and are; in his-expérience;:a common combination for trea‘ung
“pain that pharimacists offen.see. “Further; it would not be. appropriate for: pharmamsts

to refuse to fill the prescnptlons because they dlsagreed wnth the medlcatlon
comblnahon P PN AL u

152 As to" early refills; Abood oplned that Respondents dld not viplate any
laws-orregulations, as they used their professmnal judgment to-decide to dispense the
prescnbed guantifies of medications to ‘eachpatient. .:Abood wcriticized - Gomplainant for
presuming, without direct evidence, that the patients were not following dosage
direttions and were ‘abusing the drugs resulting in; among other things,
acetaminophen toxicity: “On'this issue, Abood was accurate that there was no
evidence establishing the‘quantity of medication patients’ consumed:. Early refills,

- howeveér:-exposed-patientsto-the-risk-and-dangeraf-deetaminophen:texicity - great--
amounts of ‘addictive controlled: substances, and the potential impeding of medication
therapy in this way ‘the Iarge doses were. nonetheless dangerous {o'the patlents

1535 Abood conceded that CURES isa valuable tcol for pharmacusts but he -
no‘ted that “real-time” CURES data was not-available until September:2009,.and
- therefore, using CURES was not the standard:of care-when Respondents were
dispensing the prescriptions at issue in this.matter. . Abood further: opined that the use
of CURES by pharmacists is “not likely” the standard of care today. '

154.- As to Complainant's argument that.Respondents failed o adequately
evaluate patients,; Abood opined.that, after-Respondents’ contact with:Bass, he saw no.
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need for Respondents to assess Bass’ existing patients by further contact with the
physician and the gathering of medical data supporting the prescriptions. Abood
agreed that it is the standard of practice to contact the prescriber to verify the
legitimacy of a prescription and ask about the patient’s diagnosis if the pharmacist has
questions. Abood opined that the information Bass provided to Respondents
answered the pharmacists’ questions and concerns such that Respondents could
thereafter reasonably dispense his prescriptions.- Abood believes that had
Respondents made contact with Bass again regarding concerning patients, as
Complainant argued, Bass would have likely provided the same or similar information
to that which he had previously provided to-the pharmacists. In such a case, Abood
believes Respondents would still have had reason to continue dispensing Bass’
prescriptions. Abood further opined that the questioning and verifying of each
prescription each time is not the standard-of care and not good practice. He also
explained that, while helpful, it is not standard of care for pharmacists to obtain
physu:lan dlagnoses and lab tes’nng among other medical data.

155." Abood oplned that Respondents ao‘uons did not lead to the deaths of the
patients at issue in this matter and further asserted that the patient deaths were not
foreseeable from their dispensing of Bass ' medications. He opined that Respondents
acted reasonably, mettheir corresponding responsibility, dispensed drug combinations -
that were logical and in reasonable doses and strengths, for iengths of time that were
not out of the ordinary for chronic pain sufferers.. - '

156. Regarding A.S., Abood opined that the January 22, 2007 prescription
was not an early refill and was more likely a record keeping error, but Abood's opinion
on this was not persuasive and failed to account for the fact that Respondents had just -
dispensed a.10:day supply of Norco three days earlier. That A:S, did not return for

more Norco until February 12, 2007, dld not negate that A.S. was glven 250 tablets of
Norco within four days. . s _

The Oplmons of Adam Marc Kaye

: 157 Adam Marc Kaye (Kaye) tes‘uﬂed for Respondents.. Kaye isa Chnloal
Professorof Pharmacy Practice at'the Thomas J. Long School of Pharmacy and

- -Health Sciences-at-the-University-of-the-Pacifie-in-Stockton-California: He-has held- - - --- -

that position since 2012. Since 2007, Kaye has been an Associate Clinical Professor

+ of Pharmacy Practice and Coordinator of the-Intreductory Experience Program at the
_same university. Since 1999 and to the present, Kaye has worked as.a Pharmacy
Manager for Walgreens Pharmacy in Stockton. Kaye received his Doctor of Pharmacy
degree in 1995 at the University of the Pacific; School of Pharmacy. He holds
pharmacist licenses since 1985 in-California and Arizona. He is a_Fellow of the
California Pharmacists Association (since 2001) and a Fellow of the American Society
of Consultant Pharmacists (since 1996). Kaye has co-written guidelines on prescribing
opioids in non-cancer pain patients for the American Society of International Pain ™
‘Physicians:and.numerous other articles on pain medicine and opioid prescribing.
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158: Kaye largely echoed Abood's opinions-regarding the following issues:
Bass' younger patients (Kaye contested that the majority of the patients-were young
people, relying largely’ on Respondent’s descriptions of their patient population), the - -
seemingly-great number-of prescriptions for 15-day supplies; the distance between -
patient residence and ReSpondent JSD, Bass' drug combinations, prescribing similarly
to family members, the repeated and similar medications, quantities, dosage .
"directions, probable computer errors for early refills and-lack of prescriber.
authorization, and the use of CURES between 2006 and 2008..0On the issue of .
CURES, Kaye implicitly agreed with Abood that it is not the current standard of care. -
Kaye asserted that as of 2012, he was unaware-of any pharmacy using CURES online
consistently. After considering-the opinions of Fujimoto, Abood, and Kaye, there was
insufficient evidentce to conclude that, at the relevant tlme for thrs matter it was the
standard of care for pharmacrsts to use CURES

159. In his report, dated June 14 2012 Kaye oprned that the early refills
alleged by Complainant were not estabhshed by the CURES data because that data
only showed whei a medication was filled, not when the patientactually obtained the
medication. “That.opinion was unpersuasive and carries no-weight bécause the risk-of
harm-to*thg-patient occurs wheh a-prescription is*filled; meaning; when thie medication
is‘made available to the' patient.The fact that the patient could pick:it up-at:a later date
has no bearing on-a pharmacist's duty'to not put patients at risk:of-harm: by.making .

dangerous drugs avallable without justification or proper documentation, earlier than
prescnbed

'Respondents Reputatton

160 Respondents presented character wrtneeees who testrﬂed that they enjoy
a reputatlon as & good ‘pharmacy withiri-a portion of thé Iocal community. No-

Respondent has suffered any license discipline by the Board in all.of their years of
pharmacy practice.

161. Tim Stehr (Stehr) testified on behalf of Respondents. Stehr is a former
Chief of the Burbank Police Department:-and spent 32 years as.a police officer, six
years as a narcofics agent. He has used ‘Respondents as his pharmacy for many
- “years_He has-neéver-seen’ anythrng out'ofthe- “ordinary: with-regard-to the-over--i— — -
dispensing of medicatioris:” The vidence did not establish that; as a custemer/patient,
despite his 1aw enforcement background; that Stehr would:have noticed the excessive
furmshrng of medications-by- Respondents: Stehr.recalled .one time that-a-person
came’in t6 Réspondent-dSD with-aforged jprescription:and ‘Respondents immediately .
called thé police. He considers RespondentJSD an upstanding-pharmacy with .
upstanding pharmacists: Other character witnesses corroborated Stehr's opinion.

Costs™

- 182, The ALJ found that Complainant incurred $.61 541 in -.in'vestigat_ive costs
and $53,650 in prosecution costs, but reduced the award to $57,595.50, Pursuantto -
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Business and Professions Code section 125.3(d), this finding is not reviewable by the
Board to increase the cost award. .

LEGAL CONCLUSIONS

The Standard of Proof

; 1. Complainant must prove her case by clear and oonvmcmg evidence to a

. reasonable certainty. (Etfinger v. Board of Medical Quality Assurance (1982) 135
Cal.App.3d 853.) Clear and convincing evidence means the evidence is “so clear as to
leave no substantial doubt” and is “sufficiently strong to command the unhesitating .
assent of every reasonable mind.” (Mathieu v. Norrell Corporation (2004) 115
Cal.App.4th 1174, 1190 [citing Mock v. Michigan Millers Mutual Ins. Co. (1992) 4
Cal.App.4th 306, 332-333].) :

Appliceble Lews and Regulations

. 2. ‘Business and Professions Code section 4300 provideet“:rrat the Board
may suspend, revoke, or place on probation any Board-issued license, or take any
other license disciplinary action, as the Board in its discretion, may deem proper.

- 3. Busmess and Professuons Code section 4302 provrdes that the board
may deny, suspend, or revoke any license of a corporation where conditions exist in
relation to any person holding.10 percent-or more of the corporate stock of the .
corporation, or where conditions exist in relation to any officer or director of the: .
oorporatlon that would oons’utute grounds for dlsolplmary action against a licensee.

4, Busmess and Professmns Code section 4301, subdlwsxons (d), (), and
(0), provrde that the Board must take disciplinary action agalnst a licensee who.
engages in unprofessional-conduct. In subdivisions (d), (j), and (0), the Legislature .
has defined unprofessional-conduct to include, but not be limited fo:

(d) The clearly excessive furnishing of oontrol\edsubs’rancés

- - in-violation-of-Health-and-Safety-Gode-section 44453 R

(i) The violation of any of the stetutes of this state, of any .
other state, or of the United States regulating controlled substances
and dangerous drugs. : :

(o) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or-indirectly, or
assisting in or abetting the violation of or conspiring to violate any
provision or term of this chapter [Chapter 9 of Division 2 of the
Business and Professions Code] or of the applicable federal and
state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, including
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regulations established by the board or by any other state or federal.
regulatory agency.

5. Business and Professions Code section 4306.5, subdivisions (b) and (c)
define unprofessional conduct to include any of the following:

(b)  Acts or omissions that involve, in whole or in part; the -
failure to exercise or implement his or her best professional
judgment or corresponding responsibility with regard to.the’
dispensing o furnishing of controlled substances; dangerous drugs,
or dangerous devrces or wrth regard to the provrslon of services.

(o) Aots or-omissions that lnvolve in whole orin part the
- failure to consult appropriate patient; prescription; and other
records pertaining to the performance of any pharmacy function.

B. Business and Professions Code section 4113, subdivision (c), provides
that the pharmacist-in-charge of a pharmacy shall be responsible for that pharmacy's

compllanoe with all state and federal laws and regulatlons pertammg to.the practrce of
pharmaoy T . L

7. : Buslness and Profesemns Code sectlon 40.6“3MproV|des that no
prescription for any dangerous drug: may be refilled except upon authorization of the
prescriper. “The. authorization may_be.given:orally or at the time of:giving the original -

prescrlptlon and-no prescnptlon for- a controlled substance may be desrgnated
renllable as needed : 2 RNIPEETE

8. Health and Safety Code sectlon 11153 subduvnsron (a) expresses a
oorrespondlng responsrbmty standard of care and states '

A prescrlptlon for a oontrolled substanoe shall only be lssued
fora legitimate medical purpose by an individual practitioner acting
in the usual course of his or her professional practice. The
responsrbrhty forthe properprescribing and-dispensing: of oontrolled :

-substances-is upon-the prescribing:practitionerbut-as——+-- .
oorrespondlng responsibility rests with the pharmacist who fills the
prescrlptlon "Exceptias authorized by this division, the following are
not legal presorlptlons (1)an:order purportlng to be a prescription -
which is issued not in the usual course of professional treatment.or
in legitimate and authorized research; or (2) an order for an addict
or habitual user of controlled substances; 'which-is issued not in the
course ofprofessional freatment or as part.of an authorized .
narcotic treatment program, fot the purpese of providing-the user
with controlled substances; sufficient to-keep:him-or her
comfortable by maintaining customary-use.

34



http:part�.of
http:r.egard.to

9. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1707,3, states:
Prior to consultation as set forth in section 1707.2, a

pharmacist shall review a patient's drug therapy and medication

record before each prescription drug is delivered. The review shall

include screening for severe potentiel drug therapy problems.

10.  California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1707.2, states: |

(a) A pharmacist shall provide oral consultation to his or
“her patient or the patient's agent in all care settings: ‘

(1) . upon request; or

(2)  wheénever the pharmacist deems it warranted in the -
exercise of hIS or her professnonal judgment.

(bY(1) In addltlon to the obllgatlon to consult set forth in

- subsection (), a pharmacist shall provide oral consultation to his oi’ N

her patient or the patient's agent in any care settlng in Wthh the
patlent or agent is present :

: .:(A) Whenever the prescription drug has not
previously been dispensed to a patient; or

(B)  whenever a prescription drug not previously -
dispensed to a patient in the same dosage form, strength-or
with the same wntten dlrectlons is dispensed by the
pharmacy "

0. - . I

(c)  When-oral consultation is provided, it shall include at
Ieast the followmg :

(1) dlrectlons for use and storage and the
lmportance of comphance with directions; and

(2) precau‘nons and relevant Warnlngs lnoludlng
common severe side or adverse eﬁects or interactions that
may be encountered.

(d).  Whenever.apharmacist deems it warranted in the
- exercise of his or her professuonal judgment, oral consultation shall
‘also include:
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(1)  the name and desorip‘tion of the medication:

(2) - “the route of administration,"dosage form;
dosage and duratlon ofdrug therapy, '

L

- (B) - therapeutic-contraindications, avoidance of common
severe side or adverse effects or known interactions, including
serious potential-interactions with-known nonprescription-
medications and therapeutic contraindications and the action
required if such side or adverse effects or interactions or
therapeutic contraindications are present or-occur;

11.  California Code of Regulatlons title: 18, seo’uon 1761 states

(a) No pharmaolst shall compound or d!spense any presorlp’uon Wthh contains
any significant error;-omission, irregularity, uncertainty, ambiguity. or alteration. Upon

receipt of arly Such-prescription, the pharmacist: shall contaot the presonber to obtaln
the information needed to‘validate the:prescription..:

(b) Even after oonfernng with the prescriber, a pharmaolst shall not compound
- or dispense a controlled substance-prescription'where the pharmacist knows or has -

objective reason to know that sald ‘prescription-was notissued for a Iegmmate medical
purpose.

Applicable Case’Law -

12, Ekpert testimony is required >to establish the standard .:ofjoa-re;with respectfo .
a profession. See, Flowers v. Torrance Memorial Hospital Medical Center (1994) 8
Cal.4th 992,1001; Williams v. Prida (1999) 75 Cal.App.4th 14171424,

13.  Thétrier of fact may“accept part-of the testimony of a witness and reject
another part even though the latter contradicts the part accepted.” (Stevens v. Parke,
~“Davis & Cor(1973)-9 Cal:3d-54; 67-) The-trier-of fact-may-alse-“reject part-of-the - - -
testimony of a witness; though-net directly contradicted, and combine the accepted .
‘portions with bits of testimony or inferences from-thé-testimony.of other witnesses thus

weaving a cloth of fruth out of selected available material.” (ld. at 67-68 [citing
Nevarov v. Caldwell (1958) 161-Cal:App:2d:762;767)].) :Further, the fact finder may
reject the testimony of any witness,:even an expert:although-uncontradicted.
(Foreman & Clark Corp. v. Fallon (1971) 3 Cal.3d 875, -890.) -

14, The fact that a triet of fact"may disbélieve the testimony of a witness
who testifiesto the negative-of.an.issue-doesnot ofitself furnish any evidence in
support of the affirmative of that issue and does not warrant a finding in the affirmative
thereof unless there is other [supportive evidencel.” (Hutchinson v. Contractors’ State
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License Board (1956) 143 Cal. App. 2d-628, 632 [omng Marovich v. Central California
Traction Co. (1923) 191 Cal. 295, 304].)

15.. In license disciplinary matters, one need not wait for actual injury before
imposing discipline, if there is evidence of potentlally harmful misconduct. (/n re Kelley

. (1990) 52 Cal. 3d 487, 495-496; see also In re Hickey- (1990) 50 Cal.3d 571, 579.) -

16. The licensee, if he elects to operate his busnness through employees

~ must be responsible to the licensing authority for their conduct in the exercise of his

license...By virtue of the ownership of a ...license such owner has & responsibility to
see to it that the license is not used in v1olat|on of the law.” Banks v. Board of -

" Pharmacy (1984) 161 Cal.App.3d 708, 713, citing Ford Dealers Assn. v. Deparfn7ent of

Motor Veh/cles (1 982) 32 Cal.3d 347.

17 A Ilcensee may be dlsolphned on the basis of ordlnary neghgence When
charged W|th the “clearly excessive furnishing of controlled substances.” Smith.v.
State Board of Pharmacy (1997) 37 Cal.App.4™" 229, 246- 247

Analysis : .

The Flrst Cause for Dlsc1plme

18 Complalnant establlshed by clear and convnncnng evndenoe that
Respondent Daher dispensed Hydrocodone/APAP: (generic-for Norco) to J.S. on
January 15.and 22,.2007, respectively, without-evidence of the preecnblng doctors
authorization. - Respondents’ explanations as to how :or-why this might.have. happened

_were unpersuasive as discussed at Factual Finding 37. Asithe P.1.C., Respondent

Dahier was also'responsible for these violations pursuant to. Busmess and Professnons

‘Code section-4113, and Respondent JSD is responsible for all acts .of its. agents and

employees at the pharmaoy Consequently, Respondents.JSP and Daher violated
Business and Professions Code section 4063. Respondents® actions constitute. .
unprofessional conduct pursuant to Business and Professnons Code section 4301,

19. |n addmon Complainant. estabhshed by olear and convnnolng eVIdence
that Responderit Daher dispensed Hydrocodone/APAP for:patient A.S. without
prescriber authorization when he filled a prescription on January 22,2007 that was
post-dated January 30, 2007. As the P.1.C., Respondent Daher was responsible for
Respondent JSD's compliance with all laws and regulations pertaining to the practice
of pharmacy pursuant to Business arid Professions Code.section-4113, and
Respondent JSD is responsible for all acts of its agents and employees at the
pharmacy. - Consequently, Respondents JSD and Daher violated Business and
Professions Code section 4063. Respondent JSD's and Daher’s actions constitute
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unprofessional conduct pursuant to-Business and ProfeSSlons Code seotlon 4301,
subdivision (0). -

20. Cause exists fo discipline Respondent JSD's pharmacy license and
Respondent Daher's pharmacist license for filling prescriptions without the prescriber’s
- authorization; pursuant to Business-and Professions Gode sections-4300, 4301,
subdivision (0), 4302, and 4113, as set forth in Factual Findings 1-5, 18-27, 29-30, 37,
90, 91, 134, 137,.and Legal Conclusions 1-4, 6, 7,12-16, 18, and 19. -

The Second and Fourth Causes for Dtscrplme

21.  The Administrative Law Judge found that Respondent s patrent profiles,
as they maintained them, and their familiarity with them at hearing, lent credibility to
Responderit's dssertions that they:reviewed each patient's drug therapy and
medication records before they dispensed the patrent’s prescriptions.’® However, the -
law requires more than a familiarity with howrecords -aré maintained to support a
finding of compliance. . The law requires a pharmacist to “consult,”" “review,”'®" and
“screen”? the patient's records before dispensing. The evidence showed that
Respondents failed fo carefully or critically evaluate or examine the patients’ records:
prior to dispensing the prescriptions at issue in this case. The evidence showed that
despite the high volume of highly addictive medications being dispensed at Jay Scott
Drugs over a considerable period of time for different types of patients and despite the
risks of dangerous drug combinations for-particular patlents Respondents deferred to
the prescriber unguestioningly arid without further review-or:examination. Given the
fact that-Respondents are experienced.community pharmacists; the: Board .does not:
believe that Resporidents could-have-passibly consulted, reviewed or screened the -
patient: drug therapy; patient:medication or-other pharmaceutical records before - .
dispensing ‘or dispensing medications “early?; .If they had, the Board finds that they. ..

“eitherwould haverefused tofill the prescriptions-as requested. or documented reasons
for dispensing these medications after obtaining confirmation of the legitimate medical

- purpose forsuch treatment from the’ prescrlber However neither of the foregoing
occurred in thls case ‘ LT

'% Government Code section 11425.50(b) states, in pertinent part, “If the factual basis forthe decision
includes a determination based substantially on the credlblllty of a witness, the statement shall identify
~ any‘specific evidence of the observed deémeahor; manrief;or attitude.of the witness that supports the
determination,sand.on judicial review the courtshall give: great weight.to the determination.to the extent
the determination identifies the observed demeanor, manner;-or. attitude of the.witness. that supports it.”
The ALJ's findings of credibility did not contain. any observatlons of the demeanor or attltude of
: Respondents s0 the flndlngs are not entltled to great welght

Y “Consult’ nteans to "look at oarefully, examine;” (Websters New World chtlonary 3", ed. (1988) at p.
297) e

2 “Review” means to "examlne or rnspect ! (Webster S New World Dlotronary 3"’ ed (1988) at p. 1149 )
13 "Sereen” means 6 “sélect, Teject; t‘:‘on“slde‘r, or group by e}(’amlnlng systematically. Dictionary.com.”
Dicticnary.com Unabridged. Random House, Inc. http:/idictionary.reference.com/browse/screen (Web:
December 11, 2013).
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The evidence also persuasively showed that Respondents could not establish personal
knowledge aboutthe patients or the prescriptions, the circumstances surrounding the
prescriptions at issue in this case, or that their alleged usual and customary policies
and practices regarding the filling of prescriptions were followed in this case. The
evidence persuasively showed that Respondents’ personal opinions and testimony
regarding how a prescription.at issue in this case would have been handled at Jay .
Scott Drugs is speculative.and entitled to little weight. Consequently, the Board finds,
by clear and convincing.evidence, that there was a violation of Business and - .
ProfessionsCode section 4306.5, subdivision (c), California Code of Regulations, title
16, sections 1707.3 or 1761, and that, therefore, violations of Business and =~ .
Professions-Code sec’uons 4301 subdnvusmn ( ), 4302, and 4113 were also, - -
estabhshed R : '

22 Cause exnsts to dlsolphne Respondent JSD’s pharmacy Iloense and
Respondent Daher’s pharmacist license for failing to review drug therapy and patient
‘medication records, pursuant to-Business and Professions Code sections 4300,-4301, -
subdivision (0),-4302, and 4113, as set forth in Factual Flndtngst -5,.8,9,18-131, 134-
147, 154, 156 andLegal Cenclusions 1-6, 9, 11, 12-16, and 21.

23. Cause exists to discipline Respondents Nabhan s and Yamasakl s |
"pharmamst licenses for-failing to review patient profiles before dispensing
. prescriptions, pursuant to Business-and Professions Code sections 4300 and 4301,

subdivision (o), as set forth in Factual Flndlngs 1-6, 8, 9, 18-134; 134- 147 and Legal
Conclusnons 1-6 9,11, 12- 16 and 91 , S

The Thlrd and Flfth Causes for Dlscnplme

- ‘24 in Correspondlng responsnbthty cases pharmaolsts and pharmaoles must
’-determlne whether aprescription for a controlled substanoe was issued for a legitimate
medical purpose whenever the surrounding circumstances mdloate that suchan-.: .
inquiry-should be made. This means that Complainant was requ1red to establish that
circumstances were present that would cause a reasonable and prudent pharmacist-to
question whether.a prescription for-a controlled substance was issued for a legitimate

- ‘medical purpose-and-to-show-that the Respondents-failed-to-make-the-regquired inguiry. - - -

Complainant ‘established by clear and-convincing evidence that Respondents actions
in.dispensing large volumes of.controlled substances to patients without inquiry fell
below the standard of care of a reasonably prudent pharmacist and that Respondents
failed to meet their corresponding responsibility. During the times-at issue from 2006

- 102008, Respondent JSD, through its licensed personnel, had the duty to-determine
whether certain prescriptions.for controlled substances were issued for legitimate

- medical purposes. The evidence established that Respondents ignored, dismissed, or
made nothing of many factors contained within patient records and -information that
should have raised their.concerns about the legitimacy of the patients’ prescriptions.
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25.  Bass’ prescribing patterns were obvious. The prescriptions for all of the
patients at issue were for significant quantities of generics for Norco, Xanax, and Soma
and to a lesser extent, Lorcet, Oxycontin, -and Valium, when oonSIdermg that Bass was
prescribing them at a consistent time interval (approximately every.15 days) without
interruption. The prescribed medications were for controlled substances that have
significant addictive qualities: Respondents undoubtedly knew that persons with drug '
addiction:generally sdught these kinds of conirolled substances: Respondente
believed that the patients were chronic pain sufferers and that Bass was apain
specialist. However, there was no evidence-to support their conclusions: -
Respondents asserted that it was reasonable for. them to defer to Bass’ presumed .
expertise and discretion, and that after general discussions with Bass, their concerns
were adequately answered to continue dispensing the prescriptions. - However other
factors, together with the significant quantity of medication, should have raised ..
Respondents’ suspicions that Bass' prescriptions, or at least, the patients’ intentions,
were illegitimate. Bass issued virtually the same drug regimen to each patient over a
significantly long time. One would reasonably -expect that a pain specialist would- -
modify the drugs, doses, strengths;‘or quantities within. each patient’s overall treatment :
time ‘and between different patients.” Respondents ‘choiceto ignore these factors -

readily ascertainable within-each’ patient's-prestription-profile- constituted a failure to- |
exercrse therr professronal judgment )

26 Respondents rncorrectly drsmlssed the dlstances traveled by the: majonty of
the patients and their.cash payments that were- atso factors that should have raised-.:
Respondents’ suspicions. -Abood’s and-Kaye's opmlons ‘that the distances of 30 and
more miles were not great distances to travel to plrchase the medications, bordered
on the absurd. The distances of virtually every patient at issue here were
unreasonably long and should have raised'Resporidents’-concérns. “Similarly, the < =
majority of the patients paying with cash should have alerted Respondents to possible
illegitimate prescriptions. ‘Lastly; dispensing similar prescriptions to. tamlty members,
~andat the 'same time, should ‘have also raised Respondents'ssuspicions:. The failure ‘of

these factors 1o prompt Respondentsto suspect possibly. illegitimate - prescriptions- for
patients with addictions tonstitutes Respondents’failure to exercise their professional .
Judgment “The opiniens-of Fujimotoias-to these factors.and conclusions. were more:-.
perstasive than those of Abood and-Kaye: Thesefactorsshould have prompted

- Respondentstoratthe least; contact-Bass:and-verify-his: dtagnoses~h|s general-— - .

treatment plans,:and question him.regarding the quantities .and dosages.for each
patient at isste here. Under these circumstances;-a reasonably. prudent pharmaolst
wolld have made inquiries to the prescriber.regarding:the drugregimen for these
patients ‘and whether cther treatment methods.had been tried; including using or-;
switching to medications that'were less-addictive. - Respondents correctly asserted o
that the standard ‘of care does not require them to-make.such inquiries as.to every:.:
patient with every pain medication prescription; but the factors discussed in Legal:- -
Conclusioris25 and 26 provided erough’data toralert the'prudent, reasonable - -
pharmacist to inquire further regarding the :patients herein,:as £ujimoto opined. Had
Respondents communicated with Bass, they might have elicited questionable -
responses that would have prompted them to question Bass’ prescribing practices
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overall or questloned the patients’ intentions. ‘Had Respondents received responses
that they deemed adequate to continue dispensing, the question would then have been
whether Bass! responses were reasonable. Respondents might well'have fulfilled their
professional responsibilities by inquiring and assessing Bass’ responses without
further action. As it stands, however, Respondents chose to defer to Bass' judgment
in the face of obviously concerning prescribing patterns that could not and should not
have been ignored or dismissed as within the sole discretion of the prescriber. In this -
way, Respondents did not engage their corresponding responsibility to ensure the'
legitimacy of the prescriptions at issue. Respondents’ failures constitute.

unprofessional conduct and resulted in the furnishing of excessive quantrtres of hlghly
addictive controlled substances to numerous patients. .

B 27. The evrdenoe showed that slmllar red ﬂags for Bamdad S patrent A. C

were present A.C. started visiting Responden USD at the age of 22, always pald cash

for OxyContln and Xanax and traveled. approxmately 40 miles from his residence to
pick up.his prescriptions. The evidence showed that A.C. would buy OxyContin.one
day-and.return the next day to pick up the Xanax portion of his prescription from Jay
Scott Drugs _This was an approximate 86-mile round trip. Similar to Dr. Bass’ patients, |
Respondents had.no documentation .of consultations with Bamdad’ regarding A. C's .
diagnosis,; medication conditions; or. the legrtlmate medloal purpose forthe -

presonptlons

Consrstent wnth Fujimoto’s oplnlon when the foregorng “ﬂags emerged Respondent
Daher should have guestioned Bamdad before dispensing. A reasonable pharmacist
would have had susprcrons about Bamdad s patlent and practrces in light of the
foregoing and made inquiries. Respondents failure to contact Bamdad as to. his ,
prescription practices and the-continuous dispensing of the prescriptions fell below the
standard:of care and constituted unprofessional conduct. In light of the foregoing,

- Respondents had an obligation rot to deferto Bamdad but the evidence showed-
" Respondent-Daher provided little or ho oversrght over the presonptlons and continued

to frequently. dispense consistent and virtually unlnterrupted quantities of controlled -
substances to A.C. .Respondent Daher and Respondent.JSD’s actrons in dlspensmg
controlled substances to.A.C, therefore fell below the standard of care of a
reasonably. prudent pharmacrst and Respondents talted fo. meet thelr Correspondlng

28 Cause exists to dlsmphne Respondents pharmacy and pharmacrst _
hcenses tor farhng to exercise their professional judgment, pursuant to Business and
Professions Code sections 4300, 4302, and 4301, subdivisions (d), (), and( ), Health
and Safety Code section 11153, and Cahfornla Code of Regulations, title 16, Section
1761 as set forth in Factual Findings 1-161, and Legal Conclusions 1-4, 6, 8, 11-17,
24~ 27. Additionally, Respondent Daher,.as the Pharmacist-in-Charge, was legally

responsrble for the violations consistent with- Busrness and Professions Code section
4113 - .

o
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' 29, Causeexists to dlscrphne Respondents pharmacy-and pharmacist -
licenses. for engagrng in unprofessronal conduci, pursuant to Business and- Professrons
Code sections 4300, 4301 ‘and 4302, as 'set forth in Factual Frndlngs 1-161; and Legal’
- Conclusions 1-17, and 24-27. Addrtronally, Respondent Daher, as the Pharmaolst -in--

Charge was legally reSponslble for the vrolatrons conslstent wrth Busrness and
Professrons Code seotron 41']3 ' S

Factors Considered for the Appropriate Measure of Discigling

30.  According to the Board’s Disciplinary Guidelines, violations are examined
and categorized fo determine the appropriate disciplinary penalty (Category | through
Category V). In this matter, the most serious violations include: Category Il violations
for violations of correspondlng responsrbrlrty under Health and Safety Code section
11153, In those caseés, the Board recommends the maximurii penalty of revocation.
(See ‘Manual- of D/smpl/nary Guidelines“and Model DisCiplinary Orders at'p.15 and p.

7.y However, a determination that cause exists to revoke' Respondents’ ‘pharmacy
: and pharmaorst licenses: does not end the'i !nqurry “The Board has oomplled a list of .
factors to evaluate Whether a hoensee has béen téhabilitated from priof mrsconductf' ~"
That list, fouhd on page 3 of the Board's A Mahdal of Dlscrp/mary Guidelines‘and .-
Model Disciplinary Orders (Revised 10/2007), is incorporated by reference inter the
Board's regulatrons The criteria considered here include: actual or potential harm to
" the’ pubho ‘actual of’ potentral harm to any consumer: humber-and/or variety of current . .
violations; nature and’ severrty of the acts under consrderatron aggravatrng evrdenoe
mitigating evidence; tehabilitation evidence: whether the conduct was negligent or -
rntentronat and the frnanoral beneﬂt to the respondent from the mrsoonduct

31 “ Actual orpotential harm to the pubhc actual or potent/a/ harm- to any:
consumer Protectron of the pubhc is the Board's highest: pnonty The’ Board fulfllls rts
public mandate- by, among ‘other thrngs imposing discipling: “Ag'the record =
establishes; the drugs were drspensed to these patients Without: regard for: patrent
health" and safety or publlo safety The evidence established that some. of the patienits.

in this case (A'S., B.G.and'A.C.) were- addicts,” Respondents violations contributed to .

the ‘addiction of these patiefits and ‘put-other-patients ‘at risk of harm*from addiction; -
“overdoseor death: Further; patientsdid overdoseon-medications that-wefe* belng*—
regularly filled by Respondents. Their cause of death was, in part, if not entirely,
attnbutable to consumlng drugs presonbed by Bass or: Bamdad and drspensed by

»»»»»

s’ drug overdose was a llkely and foreseeabte oonsequenoe of Respondents
mlsoonduot '

327 particular, Respondents mrsoonduct contnbuted to the drug addrotron
of A S., which led to his untimely death at'the ‘age of 22 by overdosing on drlgs -~
dlspensed by Jay Scott Drugs. (Factual Findings 28-37.) Similarly, Respondents’

' Cal. Code Regs., tit 16, § 1760.

42



http:exists.to

misconduct contributed to-the drug addiction of the four other patients who died from
drug overdoses, whether ornot- any of the drugs consumed that directly caused their
demise were dispensed by Jay Scott Drugs. If Respondents contrlbuted to the drug
addiction, they contributed to the end result: death. .

33.  Number and Variety of Current Violations. 1t is very im portant that the
Board’s licensees comply with the standards of pharmacy practice and applicable
pharmacy laws. The five causes for discipline proven demonstrate that Respondents
failed to abide by those standards and laws and acted without due regard for public
health or safety. Respondents provided large quantities of controlled substances and
at doses and frequencies that fell below the standard of care. The public is protected
when pharmacists are knowledgeable about their responsibilities and act as patient
advocates in the dlscharge of those duties. '

34.  Nature and Severlty of the Acts. Respondents’ vioiations are senous and
demonstrate a fundamental disregard for the public’s health and safety. In this case,
Respondents chose not to exercise clinical judgment, to communicate and listen, to
assess the patients’ drug therapies or the effect the drug was having on the patlents to
interact with the prescnbers to understand the true nature of the prescnptlons or.to
intervene when there were “red flags.” Instead, Respondents appeared to choose .

profits over patient safety by continuously filling suspect prescriptions without question.
Thls mlsconduct is serious” and Warrants revocation. .

As explained by the Cailfornla Court of Appeal in Vermont & 7 OO”’ Medlca/ Arz‘s
F’harmacy v. Board of Pharmaoy (1981) 125 Cal.App.3d 19, 25: »

“A profession is a vocatlon or occupatlon requiring spectal and advanced
“education and skillxpredominately of an intellectual nature.. The practlce of
- pharmacy, like the practice of medicine, is a profession.

For this reason, society entrusts to persons in these 'professions the
responsibility for control over a force which, when properly used, has great
benefit for mankind, but when abused is a force for evil and human destructlon

It follows that socuety cannot tolerate the presence of 1nd|v1duals within these

themselves to be used as a conduit by which these controlled substances reach
the illicit market and become that force of evil to which we allude.”

35.  Aggravation/Mitigation/Whether the Conduct was Negligent or
Intentional. \n aggravation; the Board considered that Respondents Daher, Yamasaki
- and Nabhan were all experienced community pharmacists who,should have
fecognized the “red flags” presented to them. As a board that includes communlty
pharmacists, the Board finds it inconceivable that when presented with these facts,
over and over again over many months, Respondents did not immediately contact the
prescribers, ask questions, and document those inquiries in the patients’ records.
Respondents’ own evidence showed they were capable of doing this for other
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patrents but- Respondents failed to-produce any credible evidence that they did so in
this case.” In-additicn, the Board considered that: Respondent Nabhan is a licensed
resprratory therapist, who was well aware of the respiratory dangers of opiods and -

- their use in combination with sedatives::"However; he continued to dispense hlghty
dangerous- OpIOdS and dangerous drug combinations without-further inquiry of the
prescnber In"mitigation, Respondents had no-previous record. of discipline. - At best,
their viclations demonstrate that Respondents fell below the standard of care of what
a reasonably prudent pharmacist: wotild do:under the same or similar olrcumstances
‘However, at worst, Respondenits” mlsoonduct exhlbrts a reckless drsregard for the -
public: health and safety L T

36.  Rehabilitation Ewdence Respondents did not present any-rehabilitation
evidence. Respondents all consistently denied they did anything wrong in this matter.
They expressed no remorse for their:misconduct. "Respondent Daher, in particular,
appeared to'place blame on the patients for. theirdrug addictions and deaths. These
failures 16 aooept any responsibility‘and-minimize the patients as human beings are of
‘concern 1o the Board. Respondent Daher, Yamasaki,-and Nabhan's denials, lack of
understandrng of thelr responsrbllmes as pharmaolsts and therr laok of remorse :

37 Flnancra/ Benefu‘ to the Respondent from the Mrsconduct The evrdence
shows that Respondent JSD received-huge financial gains from dlspensrng controlled v
substances; partrcularly from Bassi~Respondent JSD-was paid approximately.$1.7 -
“million dollars in cash for Bass'prescriptions: ‘Respondent Daher admitted his-financial
interest in continuing to dispense these types of prescriptions in communications wrth

the Bodrd’s staff.” On April 16; 20085 Respondent Daher.wrote:Inspector Bayley a
' letter indicating that hé was expetiericing a “slow down of our.business” and might

have to lay off e’mployee’s'if hedid not continue-to fill prescriptions from-doctors like
. Bass.

C'onclusion

38.  When considering all of the faotors in Legal Conclusrons 30 37, outright
A revooatlon of Respondents licenses would beithe enly discipline appropriate to proteot
: ~thepublr_oMThrs;frndrng is-based-upon:all: Fl_nd_rngs of-Factand-Legal-Conclusions.. .

Costs

39. - “'Busiriess and Professions:Codersection 125.3 provides that “upon
request of the entity biinging the' proceeding; the.administrative law judge may direct a
licentiate fourid t6 have committed a-violation:or violations:of the {icensing act fo pay a

sum noﬂtto exceed the reasonable costs of the lnvestlgatron and enforoement of the
case” :

40.  The Board must exercise its:discretion to reduce or eli'minatecost awards
in a manner that will ensurethe. award does not.deter licensees with potentially.
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. meritorious claims or defenses from exercising their right to a hearing. (Zuckerman v.

State Board of Chiropractic Examiners (2002) 29 Cal.4th 32, 45.) “[T]he Board may
not assess the full costs of investigation and prosecution when to do so.will unfairly
penalize a [licensee] who has committed sorme misconduct, but who has used the
hearing process to obtain dismissal of other charges or a reduction in the severity .of
the discipline imposed. The Board must consider the [licensee’s] 'subjective good faith
belief in the merits of his or her position’ [citation] and whether the [licensee] has raised
a ‘colorable challenge’ to the proposed discipline [citation].” (Ibid.)

41.  The Administrative Law Judge in this matter found it appropriate to

| reduce the costs of investigation and enforcement ($61, 541 & $53,650, respectively), '

each, by 40 percent. The Administrative Law Judge also found that Respondents
cooperated with the Board's investigations. Thus, the ALJ further reduced costs, for a
total reduction in the costs of investigation and enforcement, each, by 50 percent.
Therefore, Complainant is entitled to $30,770.50, in investigation costs, and $26,825,
in enforcement costs. Pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 125. S(d),
thls determrnatlon is not: revrewable by.the Board to increase. the cost award.

42. Cause exrsts to order Respondents to pay the Board S reasonable costs
of investigation and enforcement, a total of $57,595.50, pursuant to Business and

. Professions Code section 125:3, as set forth.in Factual Ftndrngs 1- 162 and Legal

Conclusions 1 41

ORDERS -

Order Re Respondent Daher

""I. ' L.oense number RPH 39189, issued 1o Respondent Albert Farah Daher,

" is revoked.

2, Respondent Daher shall relinquish his Wall license and pooket reneV\raI
license to the board within 10 days of the effective date of this decision. Respondent
may not reapply or petition the board for reinstatement of his revoked license for three

--years-from-the- etfeotlve date -of-this- deCISIOn e e e e

3. Respondents Daher, Yamasakr Nabhan and. .Jay Scott Drugs shall pay
the board its costs of investigation and prosecution in the total.amount of $57,595.50
within fiffeen (15) days of the effective date of this decision.

Order Re Respondent Ahmad Shati Nabhan

1. . License number RPH 41754 issued to Respondent Ahmad Shatl

' Nabhan is revoked
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2. Respondent Nabhan shall relinquish his-wall license and pocket renewal
license to the board within 10 days of the effective date.of this decision. Respondent .

Nabhan may not reapply or petition-the board for reinstatement. of h|s revoked license--
tor three years from the etfectrve date of thls deolsron

Respondents Daher Yamasakr Nabhan and Jay Scott Drugs shall pay
theboard lts costs of investigation and prosecution:in the total amount of $57,595.50 .
within fifteen (15) days of the effective date of this decision. '

Order Re Respondent Yamasakl

1. Llcense number RPH 19983 rssued to Respondent Jun Yamasakl is -
revoked. " - A 3 PR
2. -Respondent"Yamasaki shall re.lino-uish-htswall license and pocket

renewal ficense to-the board within 10 days of the effective date.of this decision. ,
Respondent Yamasaki may not reapply or petition the board for reinstatement of hrs .
revoked hcense for three years trom the eﬁectrve date of thls decrsnon

F 3. Respondents Daher ..Yamasakr Nabhan and Jay Soott Drugs shall pay
the board lts costs of investigation and prosecution in the total amount.of $57,595.50
- within fifteen (15) days of the effective date of this decision.

-Order Re Resp'ondent Jay Scott Druqs o

: 1. Pharmaoy Permit number PHY 40912, lssued to Respondent Jay Scott
Drugs, is revoked (where “Respondent Jay Scott Drugs is:mentioned in this Order,
‘any and all owners of Jay Scott Drugs, its successors and assrgnees dorng busrness
as Jay Scott Drugs is rntended to be lncluded)

2. Respondent owner shall by the eﬁectlve date of thls decision, arrange :
-for the destruction of; the transfer to;:sale of or'storage-in:a facility licensed by the,
board of-all-eontrolled-substances-and-dangerouis-drugs-and-devices.-Respondent ... .
owner shall provide written proof of such disposition, submit a completed
Discontinuance of Businessform and return the wall and renewal license to the board
within five days of’ dlsposmon SR

3. Respondent owner shall also by the etfectlve date of this decrsron
arrange for the continuation of care for ongorng patients of the pharmacy by, at
minimum, providing a written notice to-ongoing patients that specifies the-anticipated .
closing date of the pharmacy and that identifies one or more area pharmaoles capable
of taking up the-patients' care, and by.cooperating as-may be necessary in the transfer
of records or prescriptions for ongoing patients. Within five days of.its provision to the
pharmacy's ongoing patients, Respondent owner shall provide a copy of the written
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notice to the board. For the purposes of this provision, "ohgoing patients” means th-ose
patients for whom the pharmacy has on file a prescription with one or more refills
outstanding, or for whom the pharmacy has filled a prescription within the preceding
sixty (60) days. : ‘ o

This Decision shall become effective on January 27, 2014

IT IS SO ORDERED this 27th day of December, 2013.

" STAN C. WEISSER
Board President
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Complainant alleges:
| PARTIES

- 1. Virginia K. Herold (Complainant) brings this First Amended Accusatlon solely n
her Offlclal capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy.

2. On or about June 27, 1995, theBoa.pdof Pharmacy issqed.Reiaﬂ Pharmacy
License Number PHY 40912 1o Jay Scott. Drugs (Re3pondent),l located at 220 North G‘lenoake,
Burbarik, California. Albert Farah Dahel_‘ has-been the sole owner of Jay Scott Drugs and
Pharmacist-in-Charge of Jay Scott Drugs.from 1998 fo the present. The Retail Pharmacy License
will expire_oﬁ June 1, 2012, unless renewed.. .

3, On.or about March 12, 1985, the Board of Pharmacy issp.ed Pharrnacist License
Number RPH 39189 to Albert Farah Daher (Respondent Daher). The Phamaoist iicense will
expire on January 31, 2013, unless renewed. - o

4 On or about Apnl 20, 1988, the Board of Pharmacy- issued Pharmaolst License A
Number RPI—I 41754 to Ahmad Shati Nabhan (Respondent Nabhan). . The Pharmacist License Was
in:full force and effeot at all times relevant to the _eharges brought herein and will :expire onMay
31, 2013 unless renewed . |

5. On or about July 28, 1956, the Board of Pharmaoy 1ssued Phannamst L1cense

Number RPH 19983 to Jun Yamasaki (Respondent.Yamasakl).. The Pha_rgnaolst.Lloense was in

full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire_ on Maroh

31, 2014, unless renewed. ’

- JURISDICTION.

-6 Thls Flrst Amended Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board)
under the authority of the following laws. All section references are to the Business and
Professions Code unless otherwise indicated.

7. Section 4300 of the Code provides, in-part, ,‘that ev.erj‘y. license issued by the Board
is subject to discipline, including suspension or revocation. .
o o
i

[0
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8. Section 4302 of the Code states:

“The board may-deny, suspend, or revoke any license of a corporation where conditions
exist infrélétioﬂ to aﬁy‘ﬁcﬁon"holdiné 10 percent-or more of 'the:c'orpdrate stock of the
cbrporation_. or where conditions-exist in relation to any officeror director of the corporation that
would constitute. grounds for discipliriary action against a licensee.”

| 9. Section 4113 of the Code states; in part:

"(b) The pharmacist-in-charge:shall be responsible for a pharmacy's compliance with all
state and federal laws-and regulations pertaining to the practice of pharmacy.”

10. Sectio.'n' 118, subdivisioii (b), ofthe:Code providés that the suspension, expiration,
surrender, or cancellation of a leense shall not deprive the Board of juz_:isdictiou to proceed with a

’discipl‘iﬁéry action’ diring the périod‘-bvithiﬂ\.ﬁfﬁch the licerise 11_1ay’bé renewed, restored, fcﬁssued

or reinstated.

Al 410 ¢ Sedtion 4301-ofthe Code states;

" “"The board shall takeé action against aiy holder of a licehse who!is-guilty of

| tinprofessiorial condudt® = Unprofessionaliconduct shall incltide; but-is not limited to, any of the

following:

. (@) The clearly excessive furnishing of controlled substances in violation of subdivision

 (a) of Section 11153 of the Health and Safety Code.

") The violation

of any of the statutes of this state, or any other state, or of the United

" States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs.

"(0) Violating or attempting té violate; directly or indirebﬂy, or assisting ih or-abetting the
violation of or conspiring 16 violaté-any provision orterm of this chapter or of the applicable
ederal and state laws and regulations governing phermacy, including regulations established by

the board or by any other state or federal regulatory agency.”

i

w
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- 12. - .Section 4306.5 of the Code states:
- “Unprofessional conduct for a pharmacist may include any of the followmg
"(a) Acts or omissions that mvolve in whole or in part, the mapproprla.te exercise of his
or her education, training, or experience as.a pharmacist, whether or not the act or omission arises
in the course of thepractice of pharmaoy or the ownership, m_anageinent; adm_inisf@tion, or
operation of a pharmaoy or other entity licensed by the board.

. "(b) Acts or omissions that involve, in whole or in part, the failure to exercise or .
implement his or her best professional judgment or correspondmg responsibility w1ﬂ_1 regard to
the dispensing or furnishing of controlled substances, dénge,rox;s drugs, or dangeréug devices, or
with régard tortheprovision of services. - . .. - . o cL

S o) Acts or omissions that involve, in whole or in part, the failure to ggns{ﬂt appropriate |
patient, presoription, and other records pertaining to the performance -of;;any pharthacy functien.
- -%(d) Acts or omissions that involve, in whole or inpart, the failure to ﬁlll)%.maihtain and

re’cain‘aiaprbpriate patient-specific information pertaining to the performance of any pharmacy

~function® -

+13.-2:7Section' 4063.of the Code states:..: . .

"No prescription for any dangerous drug or dangerous device may be refilled except upon

‘anthorization of the prescriber. The authorization may be given orally of at the time of giving the {

original prescnptlon No prescription for any dangerous drug that is a controlled substance may

be:designated reﬁllable as needed,". ;- -

1‘4 Health and, Safety Code: sectwn 11153 states

“%(a) A. prescription for-a controlled substance shall onl3; bé issued for a 1eg1t1mate medical
purpose by an‘individual practitioner acting in the usual course of his or her »professional practice.
The 'responsibillity for the proper prescribing and dispensihg of controlled substancés is upon the
p1escr1bmg practitioner, but a correspondlng responsibility rests with the pharmacist who fills the
prescription. Except as authorized by ﬂ’llS d1v181on, the following are not legal prescriptions: (1)
an order purporting to be a prescription which is issued not in the usual course of professional

treatment or in legitimate and authorized research; or (2) an order for an addict or habitual user of -

4
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controlled substances, which is issued not in the course of professional treatment or as part of an
authorized narcotic treatment program, for:the purpose of providing the user with controlled

. v
substances, sufficient to keep him. orher comfortable by maintaining customary use.”

- REGULATORY PROVISIONS ..

- 15.  ‘California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1707.3 states: -
“Prior to consultation as set forth in section 1707.2, é'pharmaoist shalLreviéw a patient's
drug therapy and medicationrecord before'sach prescription drug is delivered. The Teview .shall 4
include séreening for severe ﬁoten_tialtdrug therapy problems.” |
16.  California'Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1716 statés, in'pért:
“Pharmacists shall not deviate from the requirements of a prescription-except upon the

prior consent of the prescriber or to select the drug product in accordance with Section 4073 of

“ihe Business and Professions Code." s

‘17. ° California Code of Regulations; title: 16, section 1761 states:
©- %(3) Nopharmacistshall compound or dispense any prescription;which.coﬁtgiris any
significant etror, omission, irregularity, uncertainty, ambiguity or alteration. -,Upfoﬁj_ receipt of any

such prescription, the pharmacist shall contact the preséribér to .obtain the iﬁfqmnation needed to

" validate the prescription..

“(b) Bven after conferring with the ‘prescriber, a pharmacist shall not:compound or

. dispense 2 controlled substance prescription where.the pharmacist knows or has objective reason

‘to know that said prescription was not issued for a legitimate medical purpose.”

COST RECOVERY

18. Sec’uon 125 3 of the Codﬂ pr0V1des in part that the B@ard may requust the

administrative law judge to’ direct a licentiate found to have committed a v1olat1,o;1 or violations of

~the licensing'act to paya:sum not torexceed the reasonable costs of the imvestigation and

- enforcement of the-case. *

i
i
1

h
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19. DRUG CLASSIFICATIONS
Generic Name " Dangerous Scheduled: Indications For
Name(s) : Drug Per Drug per Use
Bus. & Prof. Health & -
. : Code § 4022 Safety Code

Adipex Phentermine HCL Yes Schedule IV . | Weight Loss

Ambien Zolpidem. Yes Schedule TV | Insomnia
(non-barbiturate, non- ' o
benzodiazepine sedative |.
hypnotic) : ' . :

Bontril Slow Phendlmemzme Yes Schedule I | Weight Loss

Release : . R :

Desyrel Trazodone Yes Not scheduled | Depression

' _ ' Y and anxiety

Halcion Triazolam (non— Yes Schedule IV . |- Short-term
barbiturate, ‘ . treatinent of -
benzodiazepine-sedative | insomnia
hypnotic) : : " :

Heroin | Opium derivative Not prescribed | Schedule I no currently

: ' | accepted
: ' | medical use’

Lorcet Hydrocodone/ . .. . Yes Schedule IIT | Moderate to

| Acetaminophen (A_PAP) Severe Pain

Norco' Hydrocodone/ - " | Yes { Schedule '~ | Moderate to
Acetaminophen (APAP) g Severe Pain

OxyContin Oxycodone . . Yes Schedule II - | Moderate to

e .| Severe pain

Soma’ Carisoprodol | Yes - not scheduled Muscle

) T o, o | relaxant

Subutex, Buprenorphine Yes Schedule IH. Narcotic

Suboxone o “ | Addiction

Valium Diazepam Yes Schedule TV . | Anxiety

‘ (non-barbiturate, : ) '

L benzodiazepine sedative | b
hypuotic) - :

Vicodin, I—Iydrocodone/Acetammo Yes Schedule IT Pain -

Vicodin ES phen ' :

Kanax '| Alprazolam Yes Schedule IV | Amxiety
(non-barbiturate, o
benzodiazepine. sedative

L hypno‘cic)
" Norco 10/325 mg contams 10 mg of hydrocodone and 325 mg of acetammophen (brand
name Tylenol). The maximum daily recommended dosage for aoetammophen is four (4) grams.
* Drug abusers combine Soma with hydrocodone to produce similar effects to those of
Heroin. :
6
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BACKGROUND |
20. . The Board 1n1t1ated1nvest1gat10nsofRespondents b'ésedlvtii)o':rf\tﬁej"'fo’llowing:
a. . . Three (3) .eompleirtts against Respondents Jay Scott Drugs and ’Dah'ér alleging that

they exoesswely chspensed controlled substances to patients, wh1ch resulied in the- deaths of

Patlents A S and AC. and the ch'wT addlotlon of .T 8.2 “atxents A S.and J. S Were Dr. Bernard
Bass' patients and Patient A.C. was Dr. Masoud Bamdad's patient.

b. Ventura County Sheriff Department’s criminal 111vest1oat10n of Dr. Bass for his
| 111volvement in the overdose deaths of seven of hIS patlents five of wh1ch had Dr. Bass

| prese11pt1ons ﬁlled at Respondent Jay Scott Drugs facility, namely, A.S. D L, AW,LG., and '

‘ D X. Dr. Bass’ ofﬁoe was located at 10843 Mavnoha Boulevard North Hollywood, California,

Whlch was approxunately five mlles ftom Jay Scott. Druvs faolll’cy

Cus: Cahforma MedlcalBoau d’s mvestlgatlon m!ALDr Bass’ medlcal praetlce and

' : subsequent dtsc1phne whlch involved allegations of gross negligence, exeessive presertomo of

controlled substances and other v1olat10ns, Wlth regard 1o seven () patients* and subsequent

i

d1sclp11ne acamst Dr. ‘Bass® medical’ Licehse. The aliford Mechcal Board‘s Decision and Orde1
m In re Matter of rhe Accusation aoramsz‘ Bei naz AN Bass MD Case No 05~2005 167939
dated J anuary 21 2009 prov1ded that Dr. Bass’ physwlan hcense No. G 28057 was revoked, Wlth

revocatlon stayed 90 days suspensmn ptaoed on seven (”) years probatton and requtred 1o

 surrender his United States Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) pemnt to ‘prescribe -

controlled substances.

3 For purposes of patient confidentiality, -all ;patients are referred to by thei'r initials. ’

* The sevén patients involved inthe California Medleal ‘Board’s 1nvest1crat10n regarding
Dr Bass are not the same seven pauents involved i in Ventura County Sheriff’s mvestwatlon

S Tyor about May ’)008 Dr. Bass surrenderedhw DEA perrmt to Ventura County Sheriff's
detectlves
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21, Bas_e_d on the foregoing and the CURESS data, the Board investigator selected
twenty six (26) patients (including deceased patients) of Dr. Bass, who recoived prescriptions
from Jay Scott Drugs, and reviewed their patient profiles and original prescriptions.

22, Patient A.C.'s doctor, Dr. l\/lasouo Bamdad, was inyostiga"ced and federally
indloated by fhe DEA for illegal drug distribution.” On or about J uly 29, 2010, in the criminal |
proceeding entitled US4 v. Masoud Bamdad, United States District Court, ContralDistriot of
California (W estem—b.ivis’ion ~ Los:Angeles), Case No. 2:08-cr-00506-GW-1, Dr. Bamdad was
convicted of ten felony counts of violating [ 21 U.8.C. § 841(2)(1),. ()(L)(C), and 18 U.S. C §'

2(b)] (knowmff and intentional unlawful distribution of controlled subs‘cances) and three felony

- counts.of v1olat1ng21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1), (b)(IXC), 1 in oon_]unctlon 21 1. S C § 859 and 18
U.S.C. § 2(b) (anlawful .dls.tul)utlon of controlled substances 1o ,;pers,ons under age 21),-as charged | .

'in the First Superseding Indictment. Dr. Bamdad was sentenced to prison for 25 yléars, finedin -

excess of $1,000,000, and forfeited his réa.l property. Upon release, Dr. Bamdad vlill be placed on
_supérvlsed release for a term of six years. The Ilirst Sﬁpersecllng:l;;cliot:néntprovide_s that Dr.
Bamdad, a physiolan licensed to practice medicine in the State of California, while acting and
intending to.act outside the usu4a1 course of professional practioe and without a legitimate medical
purpose, knowingly and intentionally distributed and dispensed, and caused the illtentional
dis’rribution and dispénsing of;'Oxycodoné, a Schedule T narcotic drug controlled stibstancé, o
numerous patients. - - : |

23, Inor about 2011, the Board conducted a supplerﬁental investigation into

Respondents pharmacy practice. The supplemental investigation revealed that Respondent J ay

Scott Drugs and Respondent Daher committed additional violations of the Pharmacy Law. |

*The Controlled Substance Utilization Review and Evaluation System or C.UR.E.S.is a
database maintained by the California Department of Justice, Bureau of Narcotic Enforcement,
which allows pre-registered users, including licensed healthcare prescribers eligible to prescribe
controlled substances; phannamsts anthorized to dispense controlled substances law
enforcement, and 1evulatory boards, to access patient controlled substancc history information.

7 According to a press release by United States Attorney’s Ofﬁce dated May 6, 2009, Dr.
Bamdad has been m custody since his arrest in April 2008, by DEA spec1a1 agents. The
Indictment was filed on April 29, 2008
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I8 prescrlp‘mons January.30, 2007,

FIRST:CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Refill of prescriptions without prescriber's authorizetion)
24, Respondenf;Tay Scott Drugs and Respondent Daher a’re subject to discipline
pursuant to Code sections 4300, 4301, subdivision (o), 4302, and 4113, on the grounds o‘f :
inprofessional condust, in that Respondents-refilled pfescriptioﬁs for controlled substances and

dangerous drugs, ‘without duthorization; in violation of Code section 4063. Speciﬁcally,

Respondent Daher refilled prescriptions that'did-not contain aufhorized refills on the original

prescription as follows:
. Patient I8,

a Ot Jarwary 15, 2007, Respondent Daher refilled Rx'no. 180576 (Norco 10/325

‘mg, 125 tablets) for T .S.'W.i’thout:tlle-prescribing doctor's authorization.

b,  On7January 22, 2007, Respondent Daherzefilled Rx no. 1 82é0.8 (Norco 10/325 |
mg, 125 tablets) for 1.8, without the prescribing doctor’s authorization. :
. Patient A v |
L g T Opd aﬁuery 22,2007, Respondent Daher.'dis'pense'd Rx No: 183159 Norco
10/3’) 5mg, 125 tablets), RaNo: 183160 (Xanax. 7mg, 60 tablets), Rx 183162 (Soma 15 tablets)

for A:S. without the presonbmg doctor’s. autherlzahon .The presciibing doctor dated thVSe

- SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE .

| (Failure to Review Drug Therapy and Patient Medication Record)

: 25 : Respondent J ay. Scott Druvs and Respondent DaheL are: subjeot to d1sc1p1111e

pursuant to Code sections 43 00 4301 subd1v1s1on (0),-4302, and 41 13, on the grounds of

unprofessmnal conduct, in that Respondents failed to review the patlent's drug therapy and

f med1cat1on reoord pmor to- dlspensmcr presorlpnone in .Vlola’uon of Code section 4306.5,

subd1v1s1on (c) and Cahforma Code of Revulatlons t1t1e 16 sectmns 1707 3 and 1761, The

cn*cumstances are as follows
M
1/
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Patient J.S.

2 2. . Respondent Daher filled prescriptions for highly addictive cont’rolléd.substanoos '
3 || early for I.S., without revietrving his patient profile, resulting in'over dispensing controlled
4 || substances and/or dangerous drugs toJ. S as follows _
5 a.. . OnlJanuary 24, 2007, Respondent Daher dlspensed Rx No. 183632 (Norco
6 || 10/325mg) and Rx No. 183633 (Xanax 2mg, 60 tablets)for J.S. six (6) clays earller than the
7 || written directions indicated. The prescribing doctor.dated the .presonptmns I anuary 30, 2007.
| ? b. From January 15, 2007, to January 24, 2007, over a 10~.da_y.period, Respondent
9-4| Daher 'di.spensed 500 tablets of Norco, altd from January 19, 2007, through J. anuary 24,2007,
10 || -over a 6-day period, Respondent Daher dispensed 120 tablets of Xanax, to.J .S_.,'as set forth in the
11. 1| tablebelow: - .
Rx # Drug Date RPH Dlrectlon ' Qty
13 ~ | filled - - L
14 180576 | Norco 10/325.| 1/15/07 | AD | Take 1-2 tablets every 4 125 | Unauthorized
[ | A | hours -~ - - .. | refill
15 || 182808 | Norco 10/325 | 1/19/07 | AD | Take 1-2 tablets every 4 125 |
o ' 1o 5 o hours ]
16 |[182809 | Xanax 2mg | 1/19/07 | AD | Take 1 tablet évery Chours |60
B3 182810 Soma 350 mg | 1/19/07. | AD | Take 1 tablet every might- | 10 :
* 11182808 | Norco 10/325 | 1/22/07 | AD | Take 1-2 tablets every- 4 1125 | Unauthorized
SR 30  IE PSS . ‘hours - e refill : -
- 183632 [ Norco 10/325 | 1/24/07 | AD | Take 1-2 tablets every 4 125 | Early fill -
19 W N ‘ -hours e EE '
20 183633 ' 'Xanax ;’Zm& | 1/24/07 | AD | Tuake l tablet every 6 hoursf - 1-60 - | Early fill
21 The ‘written d1rect10ns for these med1oat10ns are Norco 10/ 325mg, take 1—2 tablets every 4 hours
) A(equals 2 maximum of 12 tablets per day); kanax 2mg, take 1 every 6 hours (equals a maximum
-.23 (of 4 tablets per day); and Soma, take 1 tablet évery night (1 tablet per day). Based on Respondent
o4 || Daher's over dlspensin the patient was taking 20 tablets of Xanax per day and 50 tablets of
25 || Norco 10/325mg per day, which constitutes 16.25 grams of T ylenol per day. As aresult, the
26| patlont was exposed to Tylenol toxicity.
27 "
28

"
‘ 10
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Patient A.S.

—~

27.  Respondent Daher filled prescriptions for highly addictive controlled substances

for A.S., without reviewing his patient profile, resulting over dispensing controlled substances

and/or dangerous drugs to J.S., as follows: .

a2 OnJ anuary ?;2‘, 2007, Respondent Daher dispensed Rx No. 183159 (Norco
10/325mg, 125tablets), Rai No. 183160 (Xanax 2mg, 60 tablets), Rx 183162 (Soma, 15 tablets)
ft;)r A.S. eight (8) days eatlier than the written directions indicated. The prescribing doctor dated
the presciiptions January 30, 2007.

b, Tnaddition, three days earlier, on January 19, 2007, Respondent Dgher had
dispensed the identical prescriptions to-A.S. (Norco 10/325 mg 125 tablets, Xahax 2mg 60
taﬁets Soma 15 tablets). As a result, over a period of four days from januar'j 19, '2007 thrc;uch

] anuary 22,2007, Respondent Daher dlspensed 250 tablets of Norco 170 tablets of Xanax, and

30 tablets of Soma to A S » 88 set forth n the table below

Re# | Dater Drug o s :RPH;;_‘Dlrectmn e Qb
aned 1 T T T e '
182811 | 1719/07- | Norco 10/325% - -1 AD. - :Talce 1 2tablets every4 -] 125
| P AT T Ve B '
Il 182812 | 1/19/07- -|Xanax2mg .+ = AD- | Take1'tablet every6hours 60
182813 | 1/19/07 | Soma350'mg. | AD | Take 1'tablet évery night = | 15
183159 | 1/22/07- | Norco 10/325 - - - AD- |-Take-1-2 tablets every4 S 1125
o ' ! 1. |houss” )
183160 .| 1/22/07 | Xanax 2mg. - - | AD | Take 1 tabletevery 6 hours | 60
183162 | 1/22/07 | Soma350mg | AD | Take I tableteverynight |15

_Based on Respénﬁént Deher's over dispensing, the patient was talﬂnv 62 tablets of Norco
10/3 25mg, 30 tablets of '_Xanax ')mv ‘and 7 tablets of Soma per day. 62 table‘cs of Norco .

10/3251110 constitute ’70 mcr of Tylenol, five (5) times the recommended daily dose. Asa result,

the patient W‘ag. é)iposed 0 Tyleno] toxicity. ‘ P

Patient NV,
28.  Onfhree (3) occasions Respondent Jay Scott Drugs dispensed prescriptions for

highly addictive controlled substances early fér N.V., without reviewing N.V.'s pafient profile.
I

11
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1 || By filling the prescriptions early, Respondents over disPensed eontolled substances and/ of
2 || dangerous drucrs toN.V.,, as follows : | o
3 a. On May 29, 2007, Respondent Nabhan d1spensed a reﬁll of Norco 10/325mcr three
4 || (3)days early. ' 4 ' ‘ _
5 b. On June'26, 2007, Respondent VYamasaki dispensed a reﬁu ofNorco 10/323mcr
6 ﬁve (5) days early. ' _
7 c. - - OnApril 4 2008, Respondent Daher dlspensed arefill of Noreo 10/3'75m0 three
8 (3) days early '
9 Patient S.R.
210 |l .29.. . Onfive (5) occasions Respondent Jay Scott Drugs and Respondent _Albert Daher
1A1 | dispensed prescriptions fop highly .addictive controlled sube’ganoes'early for S_.R., without
12 reviewing S.R.'s paﬁent profile or CURES, .B,y_;ﬁlling'i;ne presoriptions earl_y; Respondents over |
'13. dispensed contrelled subetances and/or dangerous drugs to S.R., as follows: . ,
14 S W OnOotob_er 10,2007, R'espondent.Daheredispensed a refill of APAP/Hydrocodone
15 || Bitartrate 650/10.mg five (5) daysearly. - ...l o
16 b.=u: . On October 24, 2007 Respondent Daher dlSanSGd a prescrlpnon of
17 || APAP/Hydrocodone Bitartrate 65 O/ 10 mg 6) days eatly. o
18 © ¢ = On'November 7, 2007, Respondent Daher, «dispensed a refill of
19 APAP/Hydrocodone B1tart1ate 650/10 mg (6)- days early. . N
Co0 erds s On November 21, 2007, Respondent Daher- d1spensed a prescnptlon of
" a1 'APAIi/I:IXdEOEOEiEQE B1:cErtrate 650/10 mg (7) daysearly.. . . -
22 e.-. On Deoember 19, 2007, Respondent Daher chspensed a presonpnon of
23 APAP/Hydrocodone Bitartrate 650/10 mg twelve. (12) days early
' '24 30.°  Based on the early fills from October 10, 200,7 to January 1, 2008, 750 tablets of
25 || Lioreet 10/650mg were furnished to S.R. for 83 days. This meant SR was taking nine. (9) tablets
26 ‘ of Loroet 10/650mg (10mg nydroeodone and 650 mg acetaminophen) daily, and the total amount
27 || of acetaminophen (Tylenol) consumed by S.R. was 5.9 grams per:day, Wnioh was well above the
28 || maximum recommended dosage of Tylenol, 4 grams.

12

A
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Patient G.C. III.

30.  Respondent Jay Scott Drugs and Respondent Albert Dalier dispensed prescriptions
for highly addictive controlled substances early for'G.C, 111, without reviewing his patient profile

or CURES.. By filling the prescriptions early, Respondents over dispensed controlled substances

and/or dangerous drugs to G:C.II on Déceniber 19,2007, by-dispensing a reﬁﬂ of Alprazolam -

2mg nine (9) days carly..

TEIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Exercise Professional Judgment) |
31. | Respondents are subject o discipline pursuant to Code. sections 4300 and 4301,
subd:wisiori (&); () and (0), on the grounds of unprofessional conduct, in that they failed to.
exercise 'pfofess@onail judgment and failed to‘?sl?.‘are a c'oiﬂ:'esponaing.‘responsibili’ry with regard to
the dispensing or ﬁlfﬂish;lr:lg of cntrolled substances and/or dangerous drugs; in viclation of Code

section 4306.5, subdivision (b), Héalth and Safety:Code séotion'11153, and-California Code of

-Regulations; title 16, section 1761; subdivision (b}, Which put their patients at risk. Respondents

dispensed prescriptions that they knew ot had-an-objéttive Teasor to kiiow that sdid prescriptions
were riot issued for a legitimaté medical purpose. The. circumstances are as follows:

Dr. Bass’ prescribing pattern

32:-  Respondents failed to adequately. evaluate and/or address Dr. Bass' suspect
prescribing pattern or his patients' profiles prior to dispensing controlled substances to Dr, Bass’

patients, which presented clear indications that numerous prescriptions written by Dr. Bass were .

_mot issued for a legitimate medical purpose: 'Resp ondents failed to evaluate the totality of the

circumstances presented by Dr. Bass® preseribing pattern, including, but not limited to, the fact.

that Dr. Bass wrote an-unusually large number of controlled substance prescriptions, wrote few if

" any prescriptions that were not controlled substances except Soma, he prescribed the same drugs

with the same dosages, directions and-quantities without adjustments for numerous patients,
inchuding patients in the same family, he-prescribed illogical drug combinations, his practice

included an unusually large number of young patients for pain management, who traveled 30 or

" First Amended Accusation




14| 40 rniles to see Dr. Bass or have their prescriptions filled at Respondent Jay Scott Drugs, and paid
9 || for their presoriptions in oash.‘ - o |
3  Unusually large number of controlled substance preseriptions
4 33, Dr. Bass wrote an unusually large number of controlled substance prescriptions.
5 || From October 2006 through Aprﬂ 2008 Respondent Jay Scott Drugs dispensed 33,742 controlled
6 substance prescr1pt1ons wr1tten hy Dr Bass not 1nclud1nv fhe apprommatcly 9 481 prescnpuons
7 for Soma Durlng that penod the phatmaoy operated approx1mately 493 days Therefore,
8 'Respondent Jay Scott Druvs d1spensed approxnnately 1775 controlled substance prescrlpttons
o | Wrttten by Dr. Bass per month or an aver ace of approx1mately 68 controlled substance
1.()A 'prescnpttons per day for 19 months The large number of controlled substance prescnptlons
11 || dispensed per day written by Dr. Bass should have alerted Respondents to carefully monitor
12 pat1ents and carefully document that momtonng, Wthh they falled to do,
13 i Few i, any Drescrmtlons other than controlled substances and Soma .
14 A; 34 Respondents fa1led to cons1der that Dr. Bass patlents had very few 1f any
: 15 prescnpnons othe1 than those pam medlcanons and Soma ordered by Dr. Bass ﬁlled at Jay Scott
16 :Druvs Nonnally pahents have a number of d1fferent types of presonptxons dtspensed not Just
17 —conttollied substance prescnptlons Most plat1ents rev1ewed ither had 1o other prescnptwns for
18 || other types‘ of med1cat10ns or abpotmally _y few other types of ptescrlptlons dlSpBuSGd by
1§ Respondent Jay Scott Drugs, BN 4
20 Same drug recimen . . ‘ .

........ 21 | 235, T he typical druc reonnen that Dr Bass used and was dispensed by Respondent J ay
29 | Scott Drug was for the same drugs, N01co 1_0/325mb, Xanax. Zlng (or Valium 10r_n,:,), and Soma,
2.3 .Wltll the same dosages, quantities, and‘dil‘EStions, as follows:

24 mn

25 i

26

27 : : ' .
’8 ’ Dr. Bass' prescription history with Tay Scott Drugs was 608 pages long for the time

period January 1, 2006, through May 8, 2009, with very few prescriptions dispensed during 2006.
| 14
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pat1ent There were no 1nd10at1ons of any dosacre adjustm nts accordmcr to the severlty of the

L. bemodmzepme hypnotm Seven (7) of Dr Baes patlents that filled theu prescrlptlons at Jay

Diug name Quantity'(tablet) ~ - - | Direction. - . . |
Norco 10/325mg 125 Take 1-2 tablets every |
' 4 hotrs
Xanax 2mg 60 . Take ] tablet every 6
: hours
Soma T . 60 . | Takel tablet four
t1mes a day

The prCSCI'l_'Pth)nS were rarely varled for a patient from the ﬁrst visit to the 1ast or from patient to

pam Dr Bass rarely prescnbed other pam manacement dmcrs other than Norco 10/:»’75mcy
Respondents fatled to adequately evalua.te Why a pam manavement 3pec1ahst Dr Bass, Would
prescrlbe the same drug recrnnen f01 s0 many of thelr pat1ents w1thout d1fferent1at10n for age,
wetcht decree of pain, and medlcal hlStOl‘y

Iﬂoalcal druv combmatlons '

Xanax and Halclon are examples of benzod1azep1nes and Amb1en s an example of a non-

Scott Drucrs were prescrlbed more than one, non—barblturate sedatlve hypnotlo as t‘ollows
a. . D L. Amblen and Vahum.
b. D.X. - Xanax; Ambien, and Vahum
“c. K.P. - Xanax and Valium
d. . B.G - Xa_nax and Yaliom

- e_ e ]5§ _Xﬁaliax’ Alribiefl;and Vaﬁﬁiﬁ - [, ‘ e e e e e e “_-‘,.,..-. R E
£ JV. - Ambien and Halcion
L G. - Xanax and Valium.

uQ

There is no documentatlon of any inquiry of Dr. Bass by Respondents about the duplicate ther apy

for these patients.
m
U
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Unusual Age of Patients for Pain Management

. E - .
37.  Respondents did not consider the fact that most of Dr. Bass' patients for whom he

prescribed pain killers on a regular basis were in their 20's or early 30's. The five deceased
individuals invesﬁgated by. Ventura County Sheriff's Department who had prescriﬁtiqns filled at
Respoﬁdent Jay Scott Drugs ranged in age from 19 te 31. Respondents i<fiisp'e,nscd:’chese same
controlled substances and Soma to 16 younger adults less than 25 .years old,'primaﬁly during 2
19-month period frém October 2006 through April 2008, in addit_igr}: to other patiems of Dr. Bass.
_Late teens and early 20°s!is an unusual age for pain rﬁanage;ment. Most of the teeﬁs or young
adults were app,are'ntly‘ healthy individuals that would be expected to have occasional antibiotics

forinfections or for the females, perhaps bifth control pills. The;se p,atiants were, rérely treated for

~common medical problems.or'typical medical care for'this age group. . They were i_-egularly on

very high dosages of pain control medications, benzodiazepine controlled substance anti-anxisty
~agén1:s, and miuscle relaxants. -

. Distances trayeled .

- 38, Respondents failed to consider that many of Dr. Bass' patients traveled
approximately.30 or 40 miles ox more to see Dr. Ba_sé or have their presqﬁptions filled at
Respondent J a'y Scott Drugs, especially since. Dr. Bass' patients were allegedly mpam and had to |
‘retﬁm 1o see Dr. Bass every 1210 15 da;y.s to Obt?,iil anew prescription.i, PRt -

Method of Payment:-Cash | | | . _
39, Respondents failed to consider fhat numerous patients of Dr. _B_»ass;'paid fof their

_prescriptions only in cash. For %}Emple, Respondent Jay Scott Drugs' Daily Logé_for-Controlled

Substance for Schedule 111 to V, dated September 7, 2007, indicated that 93 -out df 132

prescriptions filled on that date were for Dr. Bass' patiehts. 71 out of 93 prescriptions were paid

w

by cash. Therefore, 76% of presqr’iptions written by Dr. Bass arid dispensed by Réspondents wer
paid by cash on that date. Similarly, the Daﬁy Logon September 19,—.2607 , Tor Controlled .
Substance for Schedule Il to V indicated that 75 prescriptions out of 105 prescriptions were for
Dr. Bass' patients. 56 out of 75 prescriptions were paid ’by cash. Therefore, T4% of ‘prescriptions

written by Dr. Bass were paid by cash. Also, four out of five patients of both Dr. Bass and

16.
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Respondent Jay Scott Drugs who died«(A.S:; D.L., AW, L.G.; and D.K.)paid only in cash for |
their prescriptions. Only patient D.L. appeared to have some ofher method of payméﬁt.
Family members |
" 40 Respondents did ot question the fact that Dr. Bass Wrote the same pain killer
préscﬂpﬁéﬁs for family memibers ofhis pétients, with "ﬁb differentiationi for age, weight or degree |
-off pain. ‘

“Palients B G. 2nd C.G.

- 'a. " Perthe patient’s-picfile, B:G. and C.@., who are siblings, started to visit Dr. Bass
~and Respondent Jay Scott Drugsin October 2006, when B,G. was 25 -years old'and his sister,
C.G:, was 23 years old. They alway_s ~paid,fo; their prescriptions in ca‘sh;.i They lived at the same
residence and-the distance from their i~e'sid‘encé'to Dr. Bass' office of jayh Scott Drugs was
approxiinéité}y~40 iles. | ' .
b. Respondents dispensed Dr. Bags' prescriptions for the"same drugs (No‘rco

10/325mg and Xanax 2mg) to B.G. and C.G., who are brotlier:and sister. On eight (8) occasions

' "R’ésp*dndéhts‘-dispeps;éﬂ the same drugs on'the same day 1o B.G. and C.G. for a total of 32 such
16

prescriptions: ‘Of these 32 prescriptions, Respondent Daher and Respondent Y amasaki each
“digpensed 16 such Preseriptions to the siblings: “Between:October 30,:2006, 'and‘Maréh 31, 2008, |
Respondent Jay Scott Drugs dispensed 103 prescriptions written by Dr. Bass for B_.G;; all for .
Norco, Xanax, Soma or Valium, Between October 30, 2006, and Apfi1'9, 2008, Respondents
dispensed 72 prescriptions, written by Dr. Bass-for'C.G;, all for Norco or Xanax.

' 0. - Respondent J ay Soott Drucs chd not hav'= any’ record 1nd1cat1n0 cormnunlcatlon

with Dr; Bass about the medical conditions and/or drug therapy of the siblings. .
‘4" B.G.and'C.G. later adittédto Ventura County detectives that they had these
- prescriptions-dispensed to' Support B:G's 'éddiciién*io the-drugs. B:G. also adwmitted that he paid
. T..P.,.'le. Basg’ sécretary, 580 in cash-for prescriptions without seeing Dr. Bass..
N
"l
T
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Patient T.P. and Family

e. T.P.was the only ernployee of Respondent that worked in his office. Responderits

dispensed Dr. Bass® controlled substance prescriptions to T.P., her husband, K.P., and their 20-

-year-old daughter, S.P. Per T.P.'s patient profile, between November 1, 2006, and April 7, 2008;

84 prescriptions, written by Dr. Bass, were dispensed for T.P. 77 out of 84 prescriptions were for |
drugs most comneonly‘ ordefed by Dr. Bass, Norco 10/325mg and Soma.. Out .of these 77
prescriptions, ResPondent Daher dispensed 66 presoriptions and Yamasaki dispensed 11
prescriptions. Per K.P.'s patient profile, between November 3, 2006, and Apnl 1 2008 134

prescriptions were dispensed for K.P., all wr1tten by Dr. Bass. 104 out of 134 prescnptlons were

for drugs most commonly ordered by Dr. Bass, Norco, Xanax, Valium and Soma, and also

‘||: OxyContin. Out of these 104 prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 75 prescriptions,

Respondent Yamasaki .-dis,pe'nsed 23 prescriptions, and Respondent Nabhan, dispensied 6-
preser1pt1ons Per S.P.'s patient proﬁle between September 13,2007-and April 7, 2008 23
prescnptmns ertten by Dr. Bass were dlspensed for S P. for druvs most. common]y ordered by

Dr. Bass, Norco. and. Sormna. Of these 23 prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 21

"prescriptions and Respondent Nabhan dispensed two prescr'ipﬁons From November 2006 to

April 2008 (17 months) Respondents dlspensed a total of 9 000 Noroo e 960 OnyContm, 1, 230

Kanax, 480 Valium and 2 765 ‘Soma to this fannly

1 Based on family relationship, prescnbmg the same narcotics, excessive furnishing and |

association with Dr. Bass, Respondents did not take proper steps to review the family’s drug

history and. faﬂed to verify if presonptlons were for a legitimate medical purpose or ultimately -

stop dispensing these prescriptions.

 Patient G.C. Jr. and family

g. Dr. Bass prescribed controlled substances and dancrerou-s drucrs to G.C.Jr., G.C..
Tr's son, G.C. IH and his daughter, N.C. (DOB: 05/21/75), who. aec01d1n0 to their patient
proﬁles all shared the same phone number. G.C. Jr. and N.C. shared the same residence. They
all lived in the'City of Ventura. N.C. paid for a majority of her prescriptions in cash. G.C. ITI

always paid for his prescriptions in cash.

18
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h.  G.C.Jr. and N.C. were on same meédications prescribed by.Dr. Bass: Bontril Slow

Release 105mg, Adipex 37.5mg, Valium 10mg, and hydrocodone products (Norco 10/325mg,

Lorcet 10/650mg; and VicodinES). Per their patient profiles, original prescriptions, and CURES

data, G.C. Jr. and N.C. regularly came togethcr and picked up their medications at the same time

' from Jay Scott Drugs or one of thein picked up:the other's prescriptions from 2006 to 2008,
~Although G.C. Tr. was 28 years olde;-than N.C., Dr. Bass treated both patients with highly habit

- forming controlled substarices; the same-medications (stimulants and relaxants), and the same

doses regardless of gender, medical-condition, and weight.

i - Dr. Bass always wrote préscriptions for the same medications for G.C. III:
hydrocodone products, Xanax;-and Soma: G.C. III-always paid cash for his prescriptions.

jo 7 Respondent Jay Scott Drugs did not have any recordiindioat‘ing communication
with'Dr. Bas§ about the medical .cc‘)nditic‘)hg and/or the drug therapy fot these patients.

Patients S.R. and FR.

ottt DrBass presotibed controlled substances and.dangerous drugs to S.R: and F.R.

"SR, ‘and PR, Have the same tast nafié. Per ‘their"'?pfoﬁle'S‘; SR’saddress was 1n Ventura and

FRs addfess was in " Santa Barbara, which 1s-about 90 miles away from: Jay Scott Drugs. They
always paid fot all their prescriptions froash. 'Ffo‘xh December 20, 2006 to April 7, 2008, S.R.
and F.R. came together to Jay Scott Driigs to pick up‘%héit preseriptions or picked up each other’s
prescriptions. Despite the fact that F.R; is 23-years older than SR., Dt. Bass always 4prescribed

the same highly addictive medications with tHe same-doses and the same directions to both S.R.

|| and PR Xanai 2ing, ‘Sotoa, and hyrdrocodone proditets (Norco 10/325mg or Loreet 10/650mg). |

Respondents did not discuss the medication conditions and/er the unusual drug therapy for these

two patients with Dr. Bass.

7 Failed t6 use C.U.RE.S.

C4Y -Respondénté’ failed to use the CUR.E.S. program as.a tool to evaluate new or

“existing-patientsto determine if they appeared to be substance abusers, .doctor shoppers, utilizing

more than one pharmacy, or if the patient was breaking their pain management contract with Dr. -

Bass, which 'required that all controlled sﬁbstances be obtained at the.same pharmacy.

¢
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Patient J.C.

.a. Patient J.C. started having his prescriptions filled by Jay Scott Drugs on October
30, 2006, at the age of 23 years old. J.C. alwayé paid cash for his prescriptions. The distance
from the patient's residence to Dr. Bass’ office or to Jay Scott Drugs was a,pproximaté]y 17 miles.
The CURES data for patient J.C. from January 1, 2006 to October 8, 2007, shpwsh.that when I.C.
had his first p:esoripti;m_s filled at Jay Scott Drugs on 10/30/06 and then on 1 1/10/06, J.C. had
been _éeeing three different doctors, Drs. Bass, John Kukirka and Conchita Goings, for the same
prescriptions, which were being filled at three different pharmacies other than .Respondent Jay
Scott Drugs in the previous 'seveh (7) Amonths. In one instance, 7.C. had prescriptic_ins for Norco,
which Were written by two different doctors, filled on at two ;differcnt phalmaqieé on the same |
day; March 27, 2006 ‘Had Resﬁondents filled the first prescription and then reéu;sted
information from the CURES system, Respondents would have seen the pdtient v;as seeing
multiple doctors and using mu1t1ple pharmacies and would have known ot to fill prescriptions
for this patient, as these factors mchcate that the- presorlptlons Were not fora 1eg1t1mate medical

purpose, -

Failed to adeguately evaluate patients

4D Despite-the foregoing red flags of excessive pfescribing,,Respondénts did not have

records to show Dr. Basy' pa’tien’cs‘ diaUnOSis laboratory testing; or communicatidn with Dr, Bass

regarding apploprlateness of therapy or legitimate medlcal need or evaluation of the pa‘uents

Respondents” decision to ighore these clear indications of excesswe prescribing of controlled

_substances by Dr. Bass andl drug seeking behavior of many of his patients and -Respondent; h

decision to not aggressively work to determine the -patients" diagnosis and evalnate ﬁatients for
potential drug intoxication, adverse effects, signs of addiction or adequate pain control, placed -
numerous patients at risk, inp'luding, but notl limited to, Patients A.S., D.L.; AW 5 L.G,DXK,
1.8;, and A.C., as follows:
o
"
i
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Patient A.S,

43.  Per A.S. patient profile; A.S. started to visit Dr. Bass and Respondent Jay Scott
‘Drugs'in January 2007, at the age of 21. A.S. always paid cashfor his ‘prescriptions.” The
-distance from the j)_atient’s residence to Dr. Bass’ ofﬁcé or to Jay ScottADr‘ugs was approximately
40 miles.

44 'Bet\x/eén January 5,,2007, and March 18, 2068 ‘(approximately 14 months),

""Respondent Jay Scott Drugs dispensed 89 prescriptions for A.S, all written by Dr. Bass. 88 out of |
-89 prescriptions were for Ndrco-, Xanax, or'Soma. During this time period, .A.S. received a total

-of 3,‘8'7'5jtab1'ets‘ of Norco 10/325mg; 1860 tablets:of Xanax 2mg, 375 tablets of Soma, and one

antibiotic. Of these 88 presoriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 75 prescriptions, Respondent
Yamasaki- dispensed nine prescriptions, and Respondent Nabhan dispensed one prescription for .
this patient. -

45. -7 Dr. Bass.did not.chahcre A.S. ding regimen:: Drr. Bass regularly prescribed Norco

“107325mg and Xanax 2m0 in the'same ‘quantities with fhe- same.directions every 12-15 days, and

Respondent Jay Scott Drugs was usually filling these prescriptions every 12 to 15 days.

46.  If Respondents obtained a C.4J RiE.S. xeport for A.S. after December 1; 2007, they

- woiild have: seen that on October 26,.2007, a.ndNovember{S», 2007, the patient was treated with

1t Subutex, a-drug used to treat opiate addiction. Respondent Jay Scott Drugs would have knownto |

inquire of Dr. Bass before dispensing further prescriptions to an addict. Obtaiﬁing aCURES.

' repdﬁ would also have informed Respondents that A.S. was filling his .con‘crolled substance

"plescnptxons at two other pharmacies; m+violation of his pain treatment contract w1th Dr. Bass

Also, Respondents permitted various other people to pick up A.S.' con’crqlled substance
prescriptiéns. |

| 47.' - Respendent Jay Scott Drugs did not have any written records supporting
consul’;aﬁons with Dr. Bass regarding A.S.' existing diagnosis, medical conditions er legitimate
medical purpose of the prescriptions. Respondents failed to continually evaluate the patient's -
needs and assure each prescription was written for a legitimate need, which ultimately resulted in

the patient's death.
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48. . A.S.died on March 20, 2008, at the age 0f22. A.S.' Death Investigation Report
states that the cause of death was hydrocodone intoxication. Empty presoﬁption containers for
Norco (Hydrocodone/125 tablets): and Xanax (60 tablets), \t(hioh_ Were_.presctibed by Dr. Bass and
dispensed by Respondent Daher on March 18, 200 8, were found ‘near his body.

Patient D.L. .

49. - Per D.I.'s patient profile, D.L. started to visit Dr. Bass and Respondent Jay Scott

Drugs in May 2007, at the age of 24. Th‘e distance from the patient's residence to Dr._Bass‘- office

-or to.Jay-Scott Drugs was approximately 40, mlles

50, . From May 2, 2007 to March 24, 2008 (10 months) Respondent Jay Scott Drucrs

. dispensed 30 controlled substances and/or dangerous drugs prescriptions for D.L. All of these

prescriptions were for ‘drugs most commonly ordered by Dr, Bass, Norcao, Sotna, Ambien, and

Valium. During this time period D.L. received a total of 2,375 tabléts of Norco 10/325mg, 120

‘tablets of Valium 10mg, 520 tablets of Soma and 90 tableis of Ambien. Accor dmg toD.L's

patient profile, Respondent Daher dispensed 23 prescrlpnons Respondent Nabhan dispensed

three (3) presenptmns, and Respondent Yamasaki dlspensed four (4) prescrlptlons for this patient. | :

' ;.51... IfRespondents obtained a C.U.R.E:S:report forD L. after. December 1,2007, they

I -would have seen that in. September ’7007 and- October 2007, the patient was treated with

Suboxone,a drug used:to treat- -opiate addm’non Respondent Jay Scott Drugs Would have lmown

to inquire of Dr. Bass before chspensmc7 further prescrlpttons to.an addict.

- 52, Respondent Jay Scott Drugs did not have any'tecords to show D. L s cl1a¢mos1s

" medical htstory, any laboratory testing, communlcahon with Dr. Bass.for pattent care, evaluation |

of D.L.’s condition, and effectiveness of his medication regimen although D.L. was regularly on

" Norco, Soma, Valium, and Ambien, all prescribed by Dr. Bass. Respondents failed to continually

evaluate the patient's needs and assure each prescription was written for a legitimate need, which
P b

ultimately resulted in the patient's death. -

-'53. - D.L. died on April 10, 2008, at the'age of 25. D:L.'s Death Investigation Report
states that the cause of death was Ambien, Soma, Vahum and'Cocaine toxicity. According to the
C.URE.S. report, the last prescriptions filled for D.L. b efore his death were for Norco, Valium,
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~-and Ambien, which were prescribed by Dr. Bass and dispensed by Respondent Jay Scott Drugs

on-March 24, 2008.
- Patient A.W. |

54. ~ Per A.W.'s patient profile, A.W. started to visit Dr. Bass and Respondent Jay Scott
Drugs in February 2008, at the age of 31. A.W. always paid cash for her prescriptions. The
distance from the patient's residence to Dr. Bass' office or to Jay Scott Drugs was approximately
28 miles. - | | |

55.° Between Februafy 6, 2008, and Mar011-25,‘2008 (48 days), Respon(_ient Jay Scott
Drugs dispensed 12:controlled substancé prescriptions. for A.W.- All of these prasériptions'v\fere
for drugs mds_t- comimonly ordered by Dr. Bass, Norco;. Valium and Soma. During this time
period, A, W.received a total of 500 tablets-of Norco 10/325mg, 300 tablets of Valium 10mg, é40

tablefs of Soma.: Of these 12-prescriptions, Reéspondent Daher dispensed nine (9) prescriptions

" and Respondent Yamiasaki dispensed three (3) prescriptions for -this:pafient.

56 = Respondent Jay ScottDrugs:did nothave any records to show A W.’s diagnosis,

|| “medical history; any laboratory testing; communication with Dr. Bass for patient care, evaluation

i1 of A.W:’s.condition and effectiveness:of her medicationregimen although A W. was regularly on

“Norco, Xanax,. and Soma, prescribed by Dr: Bass.: Respondents-failed to céhﬁnually evaluate the
~patien{‘é needs and-assure -'eaig‘n presfcript'idn-was- written for a 1e_§itimat,a need, which ultimately -
resulted in'the patient's death. .

57, A.W. died on April ll~,.2_008, at the age of 31. A.W.'s Death Investigation Report

states that she died from an overdose of Norce 10/325mg, Vélium, and Morphine. According to .

AW “spatient profile, A.W.'s last preécriptions filled at Respondent Jay Scott Drugs before her

 death were Norco, Soma and Valium, prescribed by Dr. Bass'and dispensed by Respondent . ..

- Yamasald on March 25, 2008..

Patient L.G: _
: 580 . PerL.G.s patient profile, L.G. started to visit Dr. Bass and Respondent Jay Scott

Drugs.in June 2006, at the age of 19 years old.. L.G. always paid cash for his prescriptions. The
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distance from the patient's residence to Dr. Bass’ office or to Jay Scott Drugsbwas approximately
30 miles. :

59. Betw.een September 70 2006 and March 28, 2008 (1 8 months), Respondent J ay.
Scott Drugs dispensed 117 prescnpnons for L.G. Outof 117 prescrlptlons 105 were for drugs

1| that were mosfc commonly ordered by Dr. Bass, Norco, Xanax and Soma. During this time

period, L.G. received a total of 3,500 tablets of Norco 10/325m g; 2160 tablets of Xanai, 2340
tablets of Soma, and 240 tdblets 'of Desyrel.” Of these 105 prescriptions, RespondéntDaher

“dispensed 75 prescriptions, Respondent Yamasaki d1spensed 18 prescriptions, and Respondent

|| Nabhan dispensed 12 prescriptions.

= 60.  Respondent Jay Scott Drugs did not know the reason L.G. was takiﬁg the
.'medications. There was no dooumentétion of communication with-Dr. Bass, documentation of
-discussions with the patient, or freview of C.UR.E.S. data for a person who was e%la,er 19 or 20
years old when he started receiving these prescriptions and paid-cash for all of the}s;e» prescriptions,
Respondentsfailed to continually evaluate the patient's needs and assure each prescription was
Wwritten for a 'legithnafe need; which ultimately '-resulted inthe p'afientis death. -
61. 'L.G. died on April 1352008, at the age of 21 The Death Tnvestigation Report
states that the cause of;déath' was:an-‘Oxycodone and Methamphétamine_.overdose::; His fcof;icolog_y
'fi'epoﬁ (blood) cietectéd: Methamphetamine, Soma, benzodiazepines, opiateé, and éxyoodone '
- 840ng/ml. Per the C:U.R.E:S. report, 1.Gs last prescription before his deat.hwa's; for Nbrco and
Kanax on Mar.‘ch 28,2008, which was prescri‘bed by Dr. Bass and diépsn;ed by I{ésppndeﬁt Jay
- Scott Drugs. ' | |

Patlen’c D K . A

62. Per D.K.’s pat1ent profile, D.X. started to visit Dr. Bass.and Respondent Jay Scott
Drugs in December 2006, at the age of 31. D.X. always pa1d cash for his :prescrlpnons. The
distancé from the pétient’s residence to Dr. Bass® office or to Jay Scott Dmgs.wés approﬁhnétcly

40 miles.

® Desyre] is an antidepressant.
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63, Between December 7, 2006, and March 14, 2008, the date of D.K.’s death'® (16
months), Respondent Jay Scott Drugs dispensed approximately 60 pfescripfions forDX. Out of

the 60- prescriptions, approximately 57 were for.drugs most commonly oxdered by Dr. Bass,

|l Norco, Xanax; Soma, Arnbien, and Valium. During this period, D.K. received a total of 2,750

-t_ablets of Norco, 1,200 tablets of Xanax, 240 tablets-of Valium, and 64 tablets of Ambien. Of
these 54 prescriptions, Responderit Daher dispensed 43 prescriptions, Respondent Nabhan
dispensed 8 presori};tions, and Respondent Yarasaki dispensed 6 prescriptions,.

-+-64:  There was no documentation that Respondents ever deteq:mined the legitimate need

for these prescriptions. Respondent Jay Scott Drugs failed to share a-corresponding responsibility _4

Il . while dispensing highly addictive medigations 10 D.K.., which put this patient at tisk.

PafientIS. - - f
© 65. + . Per].S. patient profile, JI.S. started to visit Dr. Bass;and Respondent Jay Scoit

-Drugs'in October 2006, at the age of 21. Thedistance from the patient's residence to Jay Scott

1| :Drugs-or.Dr:‘Bass!.office was:approximately 40.miles:; When prescriptions.were filled too soot,

Respbndén’cs:altematdd paynient methods by J.S. between the insurance comparny énd cash in

{l--order to dispense prescriptions without consulting Dr. Bass: When a new prescription for the

~sarme miedication is'billed too soon, the prescription insurahce company ‘would immediately reject
‘the billing claim. T.S.was alternating types:of payment between his insurance-and cash because
~his insurance would not:pay for the amount of drugs being prescribed and the frequency it was

being dispensed. -

66.  Between October 31, 2006, and April 5, 2007 (approximately five months),

Re‘spondehts dispensed a total of 36 controlled substance and/or dangerous drugs isre_soriptions.forﬁ
“1.8., all of which were written by Dr. Bass. Etlrhlg this period, Respondent Daher &ispensed a

total 6fi1,625 tablets of Norco (including Nortab 10/500 mg, one-incident); a total of 780 tablets
of Xanax 2mg, and a total of 120 tablets of Soma, to I.S. -Of these 36 prescriptions, Respondent

Daher dispensed 22'prescriptioné and Respondent Yamasaki dispensed 14 prescriptions to I.S.

D K. died of lobar pneumonia.

{0
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67.  Respondents did not proyidf; any rec_ords of communication with Dr. Bass -
recarding any of IS 'prescriptions. Respondents failed to share a COI‘rCSpondinc;- responsibility
while dispensing highly addictive medications to J. S., which put thls patient at risk.

68.  During this. perlod J.S. became add1cted to these drugs: He became extremely
depressed, suicidal and violent. He quit school and could not hold a job. He was in a
rehabilitation center on sevéral‘occasions; December 2006, Apﬁl 2007, J uiy 2007 and late 2007. -

Dr. Bambad's prescribing pattern.: -

69.  Aswith Dr. Bass, Respondents failed to evaluate and/or address D'r; Masoud
Bamdad’s suspect prescribing pattern. Dr. Bamdad's Prescriber Activity Report for the period of
December 2006 through May 2008, provided that Respondcnts dispensed the following

prescriptions written by Dr. Bamdad:

2. 543.prescriptions for Schedule TI controlled substances, out of whiich all but eight

8y prescrlpuons were written for oxycodone products L

b. - 136pr escriptions for.Schedule T controlied substances out of which all but two

2) prescriptlons were hydrocodone_ products, mainly Norco, -

c. . 302 prescriptidns_for Schedule TV controlled substances, 6u‘c of which all but 13

“prescriptions were written for Xanax or Valium, mainly Xanax 2mg, and,. ... =

d. 7 prescriptions-of :S_chedulé V controlled substances. A B
. .70.  From Décember 2006 through May 2008, Respondent J éy-S,cott Drugs dispénsed a
total of 1 357-'prescriptions' written by Dr Bamdad, out of which 980 pi*escriptiorfé were

controlled substances and 369 were dancerous drucrs ThlS meant that 73% of the prescrlptlons

written by Dr. Bamdad were for controlled substanccs, whlch is a much higher percentage of

-controlled substances written by.one prescriber than normal., Despite the forecroin0 factors,

Respondent Jay Scott Druvs conmnuously filled 1,357 pr escnptlons for Dr. Bamdad's patients
between Decermber 2006 and May 2008. | -

"

"

"
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“substances to him, which presented clear indications that the prescriptions written by Dr. Bamdad
-for A.C:-were generally notissued for-a legitimate medical purpose, Per A.C.'s pa’nent proﬁle
- A.C. started to visit Dr. Bamdad and ReSpondent Jay Scott Drugs in. December 2007, at the age of

Scott Drugs or Dr. Bamdad's office was approximately 40 miles.

eight (8) controlled substance prescriptions for A.C., all of which were written by Dr. Bamdad.

|| disciplinepursuant to-Code sections 4300 and 4301, subdivision (o), on-the. orounds of

- unprofessional: conduct in that Respondents Nabhan and Yamasaki failed to rev1ew NV.’s

Patient AC.

71. * Respondent failed'to review A:C.’s patient profiles prior to diSPGIlSiJIJO‘ controlled

22. AC. always paid cash-for his prescriptions. The distance from the patient's residence to Jay
- 72, " From December 11, 2007 to April 10, 2008 (5 mon’;hs), Respondent Daher filled -

During this period, Respondent Daher dispensed to A.C. 270 tablets of Oxycodone énd 240
tablets of Xanax 2mg,

-+73.. - ‘RespondentJay Scott Drug-sdid‘not haveany documentation of consultations with
Dr. Bamd;ad regardihg A.Cls:diagnosis;medication conditions-or the legitimate medical purpose
of the prescriptions. Respondent Daher-failéd to contiriually evaluate the patient's needs and
assure each prescription was written-for-a-legitimate. ned; which-contributed to A:Cs death.

74 A.:é.?was found:dead on April 14, 2008, at the age of 23. A.C.'s Death
Investigation Report states that the cause of death was multiple drug effects,.including
significantly high Oxycodone levels.. His last prescription was-on Anrll 10, 2008, for 90 tablets of
OxyContin and 60 tablets of Xanax ‘written by Dr. Bamdad and dispensed by Responderit Daher..

| FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE '

(I‘auure o review: pat.ent proﬁles prior to dlspensmg presr'rlpﬁons)

75, - Responden’cs Ahmad Nabhan and Jun Respondent-Y amasali are subject to

profiles prior to dispensing prescriptions, in violation.of Code section 4306.5, subdivision (c), and
California Code of Regulations, title 16, sections 1707.3. Specifically, Respondent Nabhan and

Respondent Yamasaki each filled one (1) prescription of Norco 10/35mg for N.V. early, without

27
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reviewing N.V.'s patient profile, resulting in over _dispensing of contiolled substances, and/or,
dangerous drugs, as set forth in paragraph 28, above. | .. - o
FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Unprofessional Conduct)
76.  Respondents are subJeot to discipline pursuant to Code seotlons 4300 and 4301, in

that Respondents committed unprofessional conduct, as more fully dxsoussed in paragraphs 24

through 75, above. A _
PRAYER
WHEREFORE Complamant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that followmc the hearmg, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:
L. Revoking or suspendmo Pharmamst L1oense Number RPI-I 39189, 1ssned Albert
Farah Respondent Daher; ;

2, Revoking or suspenchncr Pharmacist License Numb er RPH 41754 1ssued to
Ahmad Nabhan _ . | - ,

3, Revoking or suspendingsP.-herma‘cist Lioense_'Nn@pef RPH:IQQSS, issued"lto Jun
Respondent Yamasaki | ' o .

4. Revokmg or suspendmv Retail Pharmacy Lloense Number PHY 40912 1ssued to
Jay Sco‘ct Drugs, with Albert Fa.rah Respondent Daher.as Pharmao1st—1n~0harcre

5. Ordering Jay Scott Drugs, Albert Respondent Daher Ahmad Nabhan and Jun
Respondent Yamasaki to pay the Boa1d the reasonable costs of the 1nvest10at1on and enforcement

_of this case, pursuant to Business and Professmns Code seot1on 125 3 and

6. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

VIRGINIA K. HER@LD
Exeeutive Officer

Board of Phatmacy
State of California
‘Complainant

DATED: ' B
7 /?A o o L\;)M//\:g_)

1.A2009604600
60731069.doc
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EDMUND G. BROWN JR.
Attorney General of California
GREGORY J. SALUTE

Supervising Deputy Attorhey General -
NANCY A. KAISER
Deputy Attorney General -
State Bar No. 192083
300 Se. Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013

. Tclephone (213) 897-5794

Facsimile: (213) 897-2804
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AITA.IRS

Burbank, CA 91504

“Phiafmacist License Number RPH 39189,
| Ahmad Shati Nabhan
: La Crescenta, CA 91214

STATEOF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 3482
J ny Scdﬁ D rugs
PIC Albert Daher '
2200 N, Glenoaks ACCUSATION

Retail Pharmacy Ticense Number PHY
40912,

Albert Farah Daher

456 ‘Audraine Drive
Glendale, CA 91202

3234 Henrietta Ave

Phar mqmst Lxcensc Number RPH 41754,

. Pharmamst Lxcense Numbcr RPH 19983

Jun Yam-asaki
511 E. Mount Curve Ave,
Altadena CA 91001

Respondents.

I
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Complainant alleges:
PARTIES
1, Virginia K. Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official

capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy. | |

| 2. On or about June 27, 1995, 'the Board of Pharmacy issued Retail Pharmacy
License Nmﬂber PHY 40912 to Jay Scott Drugs (Respondent), located at 220 North Glenoaks,
Burbank, California. Albert Farah Daher has 'be'eri fthe sole-owner of J ay .Sdott Dru ng and-
Pharmécist»inéCharge..o.f Jay Scott Drugs from 1998 to the present, The Reta: harmacy License

will expire on June'l; 2011, unless renewed.

a

3. ‘On or.about March 12, 1985, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License .°
Number RPH 39189 to Albert Farah Daher (RespOndent Dahex) The Pharmaclst License will

expue on J'mualy 31,2011, unless renewed

4, Onot about Ap1 i1 20, 1988, ‘the Board of Pharmacy issued Phalmacxst License
Numbe1 RPH 41754 to Ahmad Shati Nabhan (Respondent Nabhan) The Pharmacnst License was

.in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brou ght herein and w111 expire on May

31, 2011, unless renewed. . '

S. On or about July 28, 1956, the Board of Phar.maoy issued Pharmaci:;t License
Number RPH 1998mto Jun Yamasaki (Respondent Yamasaki).-The Pharmacist License was in
full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges b1 ought herein and will expire on March

31, 2012, unless 1enewed.

JURISDICTION

6. . Tlus Accusation is brouvht before the Board of Pharmacy (Board) under the
aﬁthority of the following laws. All section references are to the Business and Profess;ons Code

unless otherwise indicated.

7. . .Section 4300 of the Code _prov‘ides, in part, that every license issued by the Board
is subject to discipline, including suspension or revocation.

i

i
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8. Section 4302 of the Code states:

“The board may deny, suspend, or revoke any license of a corporation where conditions

. exist in relation to any person holding 10 percent or mors of the corporate stock of the

corporation, or where conditions exist in relation to any officer or director of the corporation that
would constitute grounds for disciplinary action against a licensee.”
9. . Section 4113 of the Code states, in part:

"(b). The pharmacist-in-charge shall be responsible for a pharmacy's compliance with all

~state:and federal laws and-regulations pertaining to'the practice of pharmacy:”

10, Section 118, subdivision.(b), iof the:Code provides that the suspension, expiration,
surrender, or cancellation of a license-shall not deprive the Board of jurisdiction to proceed with a

disciplinary action during the period within which the license may be renewed, restored, reissued

or reinstated.

11. - Section 4301 of the Code states: -
© . "The board shall take action against any holderof a license who is guilty of
unprofessional:-conduct : . , Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the

following: .

(d) The clearly excessive furnishing of controlled substances in violation of subdivision -~

(a) of Section 11153 of the Health and Safety Code.

© "(j) The violation.of any of the statutes of this state, or any other state, or of the United

States regulating controlled-substances and dangerous drugs.

"(0) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or-assisting in or abetting the

-violation of or-conspiring to violate-any.provision or term of this chapter or of the applicable

federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, including regulations established by
the board or by any other state or federal regulatory agency.”

/.

(5]
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- with regard to the provision of services, -

" authorization of the prescriber, The authorization may be given orally or at the time of giving the

() =y

....... /
e . .

12. .Secition 4306.5 of the Code states:

“Unprofessionél conduct for a. phanﬂa'cist may include any of the foi]owing:

- "(a)-Acts or omissions that involve, in whole or in part, the inappropriate exercise of his
or her education, .tl‘é_tining‘, or experience as a pharmacist, whether or not the act or omission ariées
in the course of the practice of pharmacy or the ownership, management, adminiétration, or
operation ‘of a pharmacy or other entity licensed by the board. ‘

~."(b) Acts or omissions that involve, in whole or in part, the failure to-exercise or

implement his or her best professional judgment or-corresponding responsibility with regard to

the dispensing or furnishing of controlled substances, dangerous.drugs, or dangerous devices, or

. ++(c) Acts or omissions that involve; in whole or in part, the failure to consult appropriate
patient, prescription, and other records pertaining to the performance of any .pharmac'yvfunction.
"(d) Acts or.omissions that involve, in whole or in part, the failure to fully maintain and

retain appropriate.patient-specific information pertaining to the performance of any pharmacy

function.”. -

w0130 o s Section 4063-of the, Code .states:. R

"No prescription for any dangerous drug or dangerous device may be refilled except upon

original prescription. No prescription for any dangerous drug that is a controlled substance may

be designated refillable as needed.” -

+ 14, Health'and Safety Code section'11133 states:

*“(a) A prescription for a controlled substance Shallion.lny‘ be issued fora leg‘i‘timaté“;ﬁedical
purpose by an individual practitioner acting i.rl'the usual course of his or her p;'Qfeésignal practice,
The responsibility for the proper prescribing and dispensing of controlled substances is upon the
prescribing practitioner, but a corresponding responsibility rests with the pharmacist who fills the
prescription. Except as authorized by this division, the folléwing ére not legal prescriptions: (1) ' ,
an 0rder purporting to be a prescription which is issued 116‘[ in the usual course of professional

treatment or in legitimate and authorized research; or (2) an order for an addict or habitual user of

4
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controlled substances which is ISSUBd notin the course of professional treatment or as pau of an

, authonz d narcotlc treatment program, forthe purpose of providing the user with controlled

substances, sufficient to keep. him or her co‘mfortable.byrmaintaining customary use,”

REGULATORY PROVISIONS.

15.° C"alifo'l‘nia Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1707.3 states:

“Prior to consultation as set forth in sec;fcion 1707.2, a pharmacist shall review a patient's

. drug therdpy and imedication record before each prescription drug is delivered. The review shall

il include screening for severe potential drug therapy problems.”

16.  California Code of Regulations; title 16, section 1716 states, in part:
“Phérmacists shall not deviate from the requirements of anpriescription except upon the
prior consent of the presériber or to select-the drug product in accordance with Section 4073 of
the Business and Profegsions Code."
“17. - California-Code of Regulations, title 1:6,.saotion 1761 states;

- “(e) No-pharmacist-shall compound- or aisjjensé any prescription. which contains any
'sign'lﬂcant error, omiséion, irregularity, uncertainty, ambi ngity or allteration,,Upon receipt of any
such prescription, the pharmacist shall corntact the pr.escribcr to obtain the information needed to

" validate the prescription: )
“(b) Even after confen"ing withthe prescriber, a pharmacist:shall not compound or
dispense a controlled substance preseription where the pharmacist knows or has objective réason
to knoyw that séid prescription was not issued for a legitimate médioa] purpose.”

COST RECOVERY

18. Secuon 123 3 of the Code pr owdes in part, that the Board may 1equest the

administrative law judge to direct a licentiate.found to have committed a violation or violations of

|l the licenising act to'pay asum not to exceed the reasonable costs of:the investigation and

enforcement of the case.
N
-
1
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DRUG CLASSIFICATIONS )

=

Ambren

Zolpldem
(non-barbiturate, non-
benzodiazepine sedative.

Dangerous
. Drug Per

Bus. & Prof,

. Code § 22

Drug per
Health &
. Safe’r_y Code

Indications For
Use

Shedule Tnsomnia

Insomnia

hypnotic) C
Desyrel Trazodone Yes Not scheduled | Depression
. : and anxiety.
Halcion Triazolam (non- Yes Schedule TV Short-term
barbiturate, - treatment of
A benzod1azepme sedatwe insomnia
hypnotic) - | IR AR
Heroin Opium derivative | Not presoribed | Schedule I no currently
’ ‘ o ) Lo accepted
e | medical use
Norco', | Hydrocodone/ Yes "| Schedule III Maoderate 1o
Vicodin Acetaminoplien (APAPY) . e - . | Severe Pain
OxyContin Oxyoodone - | Yes Schedule II Moderate to
. Severe pain
Soma* Carisoprodol - Yes not scheduled Muscle
' 1 relaxant
Subutex, Buprenorphine Yes Schedule II].  { Narcotic
Suboxone ' Addiction -
Valium Diazepar Yes 1 Schedule TV | Anxiety
{non-barbiturate, N :
benzodiazepine sedative
: hypnotic) v | v , .
Vicodin Hyd1ocodone/Acetannno Yes Schedule TII Pain
phen : . B
Kanax, | Alprazolam Yes Schedule IV | Anxiety
e .2 {(non:barbiturate, _...._....| _ SR U S B
benzodiazepine gedq’;w& i
hypnotic) - o
I
7

''Norco 10/325 mg contains 10 mg of hydrocodone and 325 mg of ace taminophen (brand
name, Tylenol). The maximum dailyr ecommended dosage for acetaminophen is 4 grams.
“Drug abusers. combme Soma with hydrocodone to produce similar effects to those of

| Heroin.
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BACKGROUND

20, ,Thé‘B'o'aiﬂ"'ihiffaited’invés'tica‘tioﬁs of Respondents based upon the following:

a Tln ee (3) complamts acramst Rcspondents Jay Scott Drugs and Daher alleging that

 they excessive y dlspensed oontrolled substances to patlents which resulteo in the deaths of

Patlents A. S and A.C, and the dr uv ac\dlotlon of I S Patients A.S, and J S. wcre Dr. Bernard
Bass' patients and Patient A.C. was Dr. Masoud Bamdad s patient,
i b.':‘: Ventura County Sheriff Departmunt’s criminal mvestigation of Dr. Bass for his

involvement in the overdose deaths of seven-of his patients, five of which had Dr. Bass'

'ptescl iptions filled at Respondeni Jay Scott Druvs facility, namely AS., D. L A W., LG, and

D I, Dr. Bass office was locqted at 10843 Magnolla Boulevald North Hollywood California,
which was appr ommately five mlles from Jay Scott Dr ucrs faclh‘cy

c.w C hrorma Medical. Boaxd s 111VvSthat101'l mto Dr. Bass’ medloal practice and

| ’.subsequent d1soxplme which mvolved allegations oi" orross necrhcrence excesswe prescribing of

: _-:Scon‘u oHed substances, and other Vlolattons, with re gard £6 Seven (7) patients* and subsequent

descxplme“agamst Dr, Bass medical Ticense. The Callfomla Medwal Board‘s Decision and Order
| inin re ]\/Iatier of the Accusation against Bernard N, Bass, M. D.; Case No. 05-2005-167939,

'dated JanuaryZl 2009 provided that Dr, Bass’ physmxan hcense No. G 28037 was revoked, with

revocation stayed, 90 d’L)’S suspension,- plac°d on sevc-m (7) yeals probatxon,. and ruqmred to
surrender his Umted States Drug Enforcement Adm mlstratlon (DEA} permit to p1 escribe

5

A 21. ' Based on the foreoomo and the C. U R ESS data, the Board mvestlcrator selecied

e

® For purposes of patient conﬂdentnhty al\ pauunts are xefen ed to by thelr mmals Upon
a proper request for discovery, all patient records will be made available to Respondents

* The seven patients involved in the California Medical Board’s mveshgat]on regarding
Dr. Bass are not the same seven patients involved iiy Ventura County Sheriff’s in\/nstication

> In or about May 2008 Dr. Bass sunende) ed his DEA permit to Ventura County Sheriff's
dctectwcs

‘“The Contiolled Substance ‘Utilization Review and Evaluation System or CUR.E.S. isa

 database maintained’ by the California Department of Justice, Bureau of Narcotic Enforcement, .

‘which allows pre-registered users, including licensed healthcare prescribers eligible to prescribe
controlled substances, pharmaclsts authorized to dispense controlled Substancﬂs law

(oontmued )
7

Accusation



http:allov.is

S : A

twenty six (26) patients (including deceased patients) of Dr. Baés, who received prescf‘iptions

from Jay Scott Drugs, and reviewed their patient profiles and origina] prescriptions,

22, Patient A.C.'s doctor, Dr. Bamdad, was investigated and federaﬂy iﬁdicated by the

- DEA for illegal drug distribution.’ According to the indictments and a press release by United

States Attorney’s Office, dated May 6, 2009, in the criminal proceeding entitled_USA v. Masoud

- Bamdad, United Staies District Court Central District of California (Western DlVlSlon Los

Angeles), Case No, 2:08-0r-00506-GW-1, Dr. Bamdad was convicted of 13 felony counts of

federal narcotics char ges for writing prescriptions for Oxycodone for‘pe.ople he did not examine

in exchange for as much as $300 in cash. Three of the charges upon which Bamdad was

| convicted concern prescriptions that were written for people under the age of 21, .

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Reﬁll of preseriptions without prescriber's. 42__u;t}_1,_qﬁzgiion)’
23, _ResPon‘dent.Jay Scott-Drugs and Respondent Daher are subject to diéﬁipiine
pur.suémtto .Cod_é sections 4300, 4301, subdivision (0), 4302, and 4113, on the .grounds .of
unprofessional conduct, in“th'at.-Requﬁdents.reﬁlled prescriptions for. ngltrol_legi _sufalstances and

dangerous drugs, \}vithout'authorization, in violation of Cade section 4063. Speciﬁéally,

‘Respondent Daher refilled prescriptions, which did not contain authorized refills on the original

| prescriptionas foﬂowsf’-* !

Patient J.S,

a. On January 15 2007 Respondent Dahex refilled Rx no. 180576 (Nm co 10/325

mg, 125 tabl ets) for J S w1thout the pI‘CSOl 1bmg doctor's authomatl on.

b. On Janualy 22 007 Respondent Dahel 1eﬁlled Rx.no. 182808 (Norco 10325

mg, 125 tablets) for J S. WlthOut the prescribing doctor’s authorization.

enforcement, and regulatory boards to access patlent-oontrolled substance history information,

7 According a press release by United States Attorney’s Office, dated May 6,2009, Dr.
Bamdad has been in custody since his arrest in April 2008, by DEA special acents

, Thejuly found Dr. Bamdad Gmlty of ten felony counts ofwolatlng 21 U.S.C. §
841(a)(1), ())(1)(C) (knowing and intentional unlawful distribution of controlled.substanées) and

three felony counts of violating 21 U.S.C. § 859 (unlawful. d15t1 tbution of con‘crol]ed substances.to| .
persons under age 20, .
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SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Failure to Reviéw Drtug Therapy and Patient Medication Record)
24, Respondent Jay Scott Drugs and Respondent Daher are subject to discipline
“pursuant to Code sections 4300, 4301, subdivision (0), 4302, and 4113, on the grounds of
unprofessional conduet, in that Respenderits failed to review the patient's -drug therapy and

e T . . . . N . . !
medication record prior to dispensing prescriptions, in violation of Code section 4306.5,

" subdivision (c), and California-Codeof Regulations, title 16, sections 1707.3. The circumstances

‘are as follows:
N .‘P'éxﬁeh’t J.S.

25, Respondent Daher filled prescriptions for highly addictive controlled substances
early for J .S};-wi’th“dut'-‘réview.ing_his.peiti.ent .pl'_ciﬁlé, resulting in over dispensing oéntrolled
si‘ibstancéé éﬁd/ér -'dzinge’r‘éus drugs to I:S:, as follows: - ,

‘4. On Janiary'24; 2007, Respondent Daher dispensed Rx No. 183632 (Norco
107333mg) and R No. 183633 (Xanax 2ing, 60 tablets) for 1.8, six«(6) days earlier than the

| “ritten directions indicated:“The presoribing doctor:dated the prescriptions January 30, 2007.

b From January 15,2007, to January 24, 2007, over a.]0-day period, Respondent -

| Dalier disperised'500 tablets of Norco, and from January-19, 2007, through January 24, 2007,

over a 6-day period, Respondent Daher dispensed 120 tablets of Xanax, to J.S., as set forth in the |

table below:

Rx# Drug - Date | RPH | Direction Qty |.
S R 1) (s S R - . ,
-\l 180576 | Norco 10/325 | 1/15/07- | AD | Take 1-2 tablets every4 | 125 | Unauthorized | -
e hours : refill
182808 | Norco 10/325 | 1/19/07 " | AD | Take.1-2 tablets-every 4 125
b - - Jhours. b
1828097 Xanax 2mg- }1/19/07 {-AD - ‘| Take] tablet.every 6. hours. {60
182810:.| Soma 350.mg | 1/19/07 .1 AD . | Take 1 tablet every night 10 :
"182808.:{-Norco 10/325 |1/22/07 | AD | Take 1-2tablets every 4 | 123 | Unauthorized
- | lhours o ] vefill
1l 183632+ Norco 10/325 | 1/24/07 '} AD- | Take 1-2-tablets every 4- 125 | Early fil)
” R v ) o] hourss - L .
1183633 | Xanax 2mg | 12407 [ AD" | Take 1 tablet every 6 hours | 60

" Early fill

9
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The written directions for these medications are Norco'10/325myg, take 1-2 tablets every 4 hours
(equals a maximum of 12 tablets per day); Xanax 2mg, take 1 every 6 .hoﬁrs (equals IeLmaximum ‘
of 4 tablets per day); and Soma, take 1 tablef every night (1 tablet per day). Based on Respondent |.
Daler's over dispensing, ithe patient was taking 20 tablets of Xanax per day and 50 tablets of
"Norco 10/325mg per day, which constitutes 16.25 grams of Tylenol per day. As_.g result, the
patient was e,\:pose.d to"fyleml toxicity. . |

Patient A.S.

26.  Respondent Daher filled prescriptions for highlﬁ/ addictive controlled substances
for A.S., without reviewing his paﬁent profile, resulting over dispénsing gqntrolléd substances -
and/or dangerous drugs t0.J.8;, as follows: |

a. OnlJ anuary 22, 2007, Respondeﬂt Daher dispensed Rqu.;'l 831.59 (Norco
10/325mg, 125 tablets), RxNo.. 183160 (Xanax 2~mg',_.60 tablets), Rx 183162 (Soma, 15 tablets)
for A.S. eight (8) days earlier fhan the written directions indica’tgd.“_..'l"_h.e‘:_ pre_:sor,.i‘bjng doctor dated
the pre.scriptim‘is~J-.a'nua1*y 30, 2007. | o

‘ b.  In addition, three days earlier, on January 19, 2007, Requn@grx_t Daher had
dispensed the identical préscriptions to.A.S. (Norco 10/325 mg 125 tablets, Xanax; 2mg 60
tablets, Soma 15 tablets). As aresult, over a period of four daysq from J _zynﬁ_gry‘,l9,.2007, through
“January 22, 2007, Respondent Daher dispensed 250 tablets of Norco; 120 tablets of Xanax, and

30 tablets of Soma to A.S., as set forth in the table belo\x}:

Rx# |Date _|Drug . RPH | Direction - ' Qty
Mewe ffilled o f RN N IR
182811 | 1/19/07 - | Norco-10/325 1 AD | Take 1-2 tablets every 4 2125
R * | hours : :

182812 | 1/19/07 | Xanax2mg : - AD | Take 1 tablet every 6 hours 160

182813 | 1/19/07 | Soma 350 mg AD | Take ] tablet every night 15

183159 | 1/22/07 |Norco10/325 AD | Take'1-2 tableis every 4 125

L hours

183160 | 1/22/07 | Xanax 2mg . | AD | Take 1tablet every 6 hours | 60

| 183162 | 1/22/07 { Soma 350 mg AD | Take ] tablet every night 15

Based on Respondent Dahei's over diSpénsing, the patient was taking 62 tablets of Norco
10/325mg, 30 tablets of Xanax 2mg, and 7 tablets of Soma per day. 62 tablets of Norco

10
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10/325mg consh’mte 20 mg of Tylenol, five (5) times the Tecommended daily dose. As a result,
the patient was exposed to Tylenol toxicity.

Patient N.V.

27, On seven (7) occasions Respondent Jay Scott Drugs dispensed prescri;ﬁtions for

“highly addictive controlled substances early for N.V., without reviewing N.V.'s patient profile.

By filling the prescriptions early, Respondents over dispensed controlled substances and/or

dangerous drugs to N.V., as follows:

a. On March 29, 2007, Respondent Daher dispensed a refill of Norco 10/325mg six
(6) days early. | .

b. ‘OnMay 29, 2007 Respondent Nabhan dispensed a refill-of Norco 1 0/325mg seven
(7) days early. B SRR T

‘e. © OnJune 26;2007. RespOndent Yamasaki dispensed a refill of Norco 10/373mcr.

nine(9) days early,

d. On October 15 2007, RGSpondent Daher dispensed a refill:.of Norco 10/325mg

five (5) dayé-early:

e.  On February 12, 2008, Respondent Daher dispensed a refill of Norco 10/325mg

six (6) days early.

£ On'March 13,2008, Respondent‘Daher dispensed arefill of Norco 10/325mg five |- -
(5) days early. '

g On April 4, 2008, Respondent Daher dispensed a refill of Norco 10/325mg six (6)

THIRD CAUSE I‘OR DIS CIPLINE

. (1“111111 ¢ to Exercise. Px ofessional J udgment)-
28, Respondcnts are SL\bJoct to d1301p1||1e pm suanﬁo,Code sections-4300 and 4301,
subd1v1snon (d), (§):and (0) on the mounds of- unplofessmnal conduct, in that they failed to

exercise pr ofessnonal Judoment and falled to share.a oom:spondm0 responsibility with regard to

the dispensing or furnishing of controlled substances and/or dangerous drugs, in violation of Code

section 4306.5, subdivision (b), Health and Safety Code section 11153, and California Code of

1]
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Regula’ci_ons, title 16, section 1761, subdivision (b), which put their patients at risk, Respondents
dispensed prescriptions that they knew or had an objective reason to know that said prescriptions
were not issued for-a legitimate medical purpose. The circumstances are as follows:

Dr. Bass® prescribing pattern

29. . ‘Respondents failed to adequately evalvate and/or address Dr. .Bass'_SLlspect_prescribing 4

| pattern or his patients' profiles prior to dispensing controlled substances to Dr. Bass® patients,

which presented clear indications that numerous prescriptions written by Dr, Bass were not issued
for a legitimate medical purpose. Respondents failed to evaluate the totality of the circumstances

presented by Dr: Bass’ prescribing pattern, including, but.not limited to, the fact that Dr. Bass

| wrote an unusually large number of‘controlled substance prescriptions, wrote. few if any

prescriptions that were.not controlled substances except Soma, he-prescribed the same drugs with

‘the same closavos directions and quantities without adjustments for numerous patients, including

pa‘oen’cs m the same. faml ,y; he prescribed 1llocloal drug combmatlons hls plaotloe moluded an

unusually. la1 ge numbel of" young patients Tor pain manacrement who traveled 30 or 40 miles to

see Dr. Bass or have then pl'CSCl iptions filled at Respondent ] ay: Soott Drugs -and pald for their

plescuptlons in cash

Unusuallua\ ge numbel of controlled substance m esorlplxons Y

30.-  Dr. Bass wrote an unusually large number of controlled substance prescriptions.
From October 2006 through April 2008, Respondent J ay Scoft Drugs dispensed 33,742 controlled
substance presgriptions written by Dr. Bass, not inoludlno the approx’imately 9,481 prescriptions

f01 Soma Dux ing that ponod the phal maoy operated applommately 493 days Thel efore,

Respondent Jay Scotl DlLlCTS chspensed approxim alely 1775 oontrolled substanoe prescrlptlons B
written by Dr. Bass per month or an aver age of appr ommately 68 con‘molled substance

plCSCl iptions per day for 19 months. The lal ge number of controlled substanoe pIGSGl iptions
dlspensed per-day written by Dr. Bass should have aleltoq Respondents 1o car efully monitor

patients and carefully document that monitoring, which they failed to do. .

’Dr. Bass pmsca iption history with Jay Scott DIUO‘S was 608 pacres long for lhe time
penod January-1, 2006, through May 8, 2009, with very few prescriptions dlspensed during 2006.
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“tweight, degree of pain, and medical history.

Few if any prescriptions other thar conirolled substances and Soma

31. - Respondents failed to consider that Dr. Bass:patlenté'had'very few if any
pre\scriptionsi other than those pain ‘medioeltion‘s and Soma ordered by Dr. Bass, filled at Jay Scott
Dmvs. Normally patients have a number of different types of prescriptions dispensed, not just
contlolled substance’ prescriptions. Most patients reviewed either had no other prescnptlons for

ther types of medications or abnormally few other types of' prasonp‘clons dispensed by

Respond ent Jay Scott Drugs.

Same drug regimen

32, Tllé'typlcal drug regimen that Dr. Bass used and.was dispensed by Respondellt Jay
S_cotl Drug was for the same drugs, Norco l'0/325mg, Xanax 2mg (or Valium 10mg), and Soma,
with the same dosages, quantities, and directions, as follows:

Dot Lam e .

-|.Drug name ... | Quantity (tablet) . | Direction .
N01 co 10/3') 1257 | Take1-2 table’cs‘e‘vew
oy f.o 0 o7 e |44 hours .
ana\ 2mc 60 Take 1 tablet every 6
o : ChL e e et b oy T
Soma 60 Take 1 tablet four
times aday”

The prescriptions were rarely varied for a patient from the first visit to the last or from patient o

Apat'ient'." Theire were no indications of any dosage adjustments according to the severity of the

pain. Dr. Bass rarely prescribed other pain management drugs other than Norco 10/325mg

Respondents failed to adequately evaluate why a pain management specialist, Dr. Baés, would

_prescribe the same drug regimen for so'many of their patients, without differentiation for age,

Ullogical drug combinations -

33. " Respondents failed to question illogical diug combinations. There are two
subtypes of nonbarbiturate sedative hypnoties, benzodiazepirie and non-benzodiazepine. Valium,

Xanax, and.I—lalo'lon are examplcs of benzodiazepines and Ambien is an example of a non-

! beluodlazepme h )’pﬂO’Clc Spven (7) of Dr. Bass’ patlents that ﬁlled their pTEaCI‘lp'ElonS at Jay

Scott Drugs were presonbed more than one non- balbmuate seda’cwe hypnotic, as follows

13
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a. D.L. -Ambfm and Valiom
. b DK -Xanax, Ambien, and Valium
c. K.P:-Xanax and Valium
d B.G.-.—' Xanax and Valium
e.r  D.S..- Xanax, A.inb'len, and Valium
£ -1.V. - Ambien and Halcion
g. - - L.G. - Xanax-and Valium.
There is no~.documentatic>in of any inquiry of Dr. Bass by R_esppﬁdents about the duplicate therapy
for these patients. B | |

- Unusual Age of Patients for Pain Management . .

34, RGSpondents did not consider the fact that most.of Dr. Bass' patients for whom he
‘prescribed pain killers on a regular basis were in their 20's or-carly3 0 s. The five deceased
" individual s investigated by Ventura County S werlff‘s Department ,who _-had prescrlptxons filled at
Respondent Jay-Scott Drugs ranged in age from 19 to 31, -Respondents dispensed these same
“controlled substances and Soma to 16 younger adults less than 25 years old, pumanly dulmg a
19-month penod from'October 2006 through April 2008, in addition to oihe; ‘,pgxtxenis of Dr. Bass,
Late teens and carly 20°s is an unusual age for pain n}én%ggme_nt.- Mogt Qf the teens or young
" adults were apparently healthy individuals that would be expected to have occasional antibiotics
common medical problems or typical medical cave for this age group. They were regularly on

vexy hwh dosaﬂes 01" pam contlol med1cat10ns benzodnzepme contlolled substance anti- anxlety

agents and muscle T elaxants

" “Distarices traveled

35, Respondents failed to consider that fnany of Dr. Bass' patients traveled

approximately 30 or 40 miles to see Dr. Bass or have their prescriptions ﬁlled‘ at Respondent Jay

"Il Scott Drugs, especially since Dr. Bass' patients were allegedly in pain and had to return to see Dr. |

‘Bass every 12 to°T'5 days to obtain a new prescription. -
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Method of Payment: Cash

o]

36. Respondents failed to consider that numerous patients of Dr. Bass paid for.their
prescriptions only in cash: For'cxaniple, Respondent Jay Scott Drugs' Daily Log fcn" Controlled
Substance for Schedule i1 to V, dated September 7, 2007, indicated that 93 out of 1 32
prescriptions filled on that date were for Dr. Bass' patients. 71 out of 93 prescriptions were paid
by cash. Therefore, 76% of prescriptions writﬁen by Dr. Bass and dispensed by Respondents were
paid by cash on that date. Similax'l‘y, the Daily Log on September 19, 2007, for Controlled

-Substance for Schedule II1 to V indicated that 75 prescriptions out of 105 prescriptions were for
Dr. Bass' patients. 56 out of 75 prescriptions were paid by cash. Therefore, 74% of prescriptions
written by Dr. Bass were paid by cash..’Also, four out offive pétienfcs of both Dr. Bass and
Respondent Jay Scott Drugs who dié_d' (AS,D.L,AW, LG, and D.K.) paid only in cash for
fheir prescriptions. Only pﬁtient D.L. appéated to'have some other method of p.e;yfmept.

Family members”

37. - Respondents did not question the fact that Df. Bass wrote the same pain killer
‘preseriptions for family members of his patients, with no differentiation, for-age, weight or degree
~of pain.

- Patients B.G. and -C.G,

" a. Perihepatient’s profile, B.G.and C.G.; who: are siblings, started:to visit Dr. Bass
“and Respondent Jay Scott Drugs in October 2006, when B.G. was 25 years old and his sister,

C.G., was 23 years old. They always paid for their prescriptions in cash. They lived at the same

residence and the distance from their residence to Dr. Bass' office or Jay Scott Drugs was

appréximately 40 miles.
b. Respondents dispensed Dr, Bass' prescriptions for the same drugs (Norco
* 10/325mg and Xanax 2mg) t6 B:G. and-C.G., who are brother-and sister. On eight (8) occasions
Respbndent’s-d-i"spe'ris'ed the'same drugs-on the same day to B.G. and C.G. for-atotal of 32 such
prescriptions, OF i:l.nese 32 prescriptions, Respondent Daher and Respondent Yamaéalgi each
dispensed 16 such prescriptiors to the siblings. Between October 30, 2006, and March 31, 2008,

Respondent Jay Scott Drugs dispensed 103 prescriptions written by Dr. Bass for B.G., all for

15
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Norco, Xanax, Soma or Valium, Between. October 30,2006, and April 9, 2008, Respondents
dispensed 72 plv‘€SCI‘i'ptiOHS, written by Dr. Bass for C.G,, all for Norco o.r Kanax.
c. Respondent Jay Scott Drugs did not have any record indicating communication
\'vith Dr, Bass about the miedical conditions and/or drug therapy of the siblings.
" d. B.G.and C.G. later admitted:to Ventura County defeotives that they had these

prescriptions dispensed to support B.G.'s addiction 1o the drugs. B.G. also admitted that he paid

TP, Dr. Bass’ secretary, $80"in cash for prescriptions without seeing Dr. Bass. -

. Patient T.P. and Family

~e’ T.P. was the only employee of Respondent that worked in his office. Respondents

dispensed Dr. Bass’ controlléd $ubstance prescriptions to T.P., her husband, K.P., and their 20-

'-)'/é'al‘-‘()l‘d‘ daughter, S.P. Per"T.Ps-patient profile; between November 1, 2006,; and April 7, 2008,
| 84 prééci'ip_tidns, written by Dr. Bass; were dispensed for T.P. 77,6ut of .84prcscriptiolris were for
‘drugs most commonly orderéd by Dr. Bass; Norco 10/325mg:a_1f1d Soma.. Out of these 77

V"bi‘ici:'s"oriptidhs; Respondent-Daher dispensed 66 prescriptions and Yamasaki dispensed 11

prescriptions, Per K.P.'s patient profile; between November 3, 2006, and April 1, 2008, 134

’p’fres-oriptions were dispenséd for K.P., all written by Dr, Bass. 104 out of 134 ﬁrescriptions-were

for drugs most commonly ordered by Dr. Bass, Norco, Xanax, Valium and Soma, and.also

OxyContin. Qut of these 104‘prescriptioﬁs, Respondent Daher dispensed.75 prescriptions,

“Respondent Yamasaki dispensed 23 pi'escrip{‘ions, and Respondent Nabhan dispensed 6 .

" prescriptions. Per S.P.'s patient proﬁle between September 13, 2007 and April 7,72008, 23

p105011pt10ns wr ltten by Dr. Bass were dlspensed for S P, for drugs most commonly ordered by

Dr. Bass, Norco and Soma. Ofthese 23 prescriptions, ReSpondent Daher dlspcnsed 21 S

pl‘CSCl‘lpthnS and Respondent Nabhan dispensed 'tWQ‘pl‘eSCrlptIOnS. From November 2006, to

April 2008 (17 months) Respondents dispensed a total of 9,000 Norco, 1,960 OxyContin, 1,230
Kanax, 480 Valium and 2,765 Soma to this family. .

f. Based on family relationship, prescribing the same narcotics, excessive furnishing and

association with DrBass, Respondents did not talce proper steps to review the family’s drug
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history and failed to verify if prescriptions were for a legitimate medical purpose, or ultimately
stop dispensing these prescriptions.

Failed to use 'C.U.R.E.S.

- 38, Respondents failed to usé the C.U.R.E.S. program as a tool to-evaluate new or
existing patients to determine if'they appeared to be substance abusers, doctor shoppers, utilizing
- moré'than one pharmaﬁy, or if the patient was breaking their pain.management contract with.Dr.
Bass, which required that all controlled-substances be obtained at the same pharmacy. |

Failed to adequately evaluate patients

39.."  Despite the foregoing red flags of excessive prescribing, f&e;s;aondents did not havé
records to show Dl;. Bass' patients' diagnosis, laboratory testing,. or;communioaﬁbn with Dr BaSS_
regarding appropriateness of therapy or legitimate med_i';ga] need or evaluation éf the pa;tients.'
Respondents® decision to-ignore th.eseclear-iﬁdipationé of excessive prescribing of controlled
substances by Dr. ‘Bags and drug seeking behavior of many of hiS'p'atien’cs‘ and Respondents’
" decisionfonot 'aggressiv;ily‘worktddetérmin_e th.e.pat-jen’cs;.'di:agqosis and. _evaluateipétients fof
potential drug.mtoxication;.sadv.erse effects, signs of ad'd‘itotion or. gdequ_atég pain conitrol, placed
‘.numel‘oﬁs patients atrisk, including, but.not limited to, Patients A.S., D..L., AW,LG,DK,
I8, and'A.C., as follows: | -
Pafient A.S.
40. er-A.S.' patient profile, A.S. started.to visit Dr, Bass a'r.xdb Respondent Jay Scott
Dl‘tll gs in January 2007, at the age of 21, A.S. always paid cash for his prescriptions. The

distance from the patient’s resideﬁcc to Dr. Bass’ office or to Jay Scott Drugs was approkimately

40 miles.

47, Between January 52007, and Mdroh 18,2008 (approximately 14 months),
" Respondent Jay Scott D.fugs dispen:scd 89 p_r.esc.r.ipt;igns for A.8, all written by Dr. Bass. 88 out of
89 prescriptions were for Norco, Xanax, or Soma. _Duriné this tume p_c—:ﬁo'q, A.S. received a total
of 3,875 tablets.of Norco 10/325mg, 1860 tablcts__éf){an'ax 2mg;, 375 tablets of Sbnj_;é, and one

antibiotic. Of these 88 prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 75 prescriptions, Respondent

i
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|| this patient.

Yamasaki dispensed nine prescriptions, and Respondent Nabhan dispensed one prescription for

42, Dr, Bass ‘did“n"ot change A.S.' drug regimen. Dr, Bass regularly prescribed Norco
10/325mg and Xanax 2mg in the same quantities with the same direotiéns every 12-15 days, and
Respondent J ay. Scott Drugs was usually filling these .prescriptions every 12 to 15 days. -

43, If Respondents obtained a C:U.R.E.S. report for-A.S. after December 1, 2007, they
would have seen that on October 26,2007, and November 5, 2007, the patient was treated with
Subutex, a drug used to treat opiate addiction. Respondent Jay Scott Dru gs would have known to
inquire of Dr. Bass before 'dispens'ing further preéoriptions to an addict. Ob‘t'aining aC.URE.S.
report would also have irformed Respondents that A.S. was filling his'controlled substance
’prcscr'i pt'i'o'ﬁ's' at'two other pharm acies,'r'in violation of his pain treatment contract With-Dr. Bass..

44,  Respondent Jay Scott Drugs dia not have any written records supporting |
consultations with Dr. Bass regarding A.S!' existing dfagnosis, medical conditions or legitimate
medical putpose of the prescriptiotis: Respondents failed to continually evaluate the patient's
_nesds and assure each prescription was written for a legitimate need, ‘which ultimately resulted in’
the patient's death. 4 / - _

: 45 A.S. died on Mfaii'chi"ZO, 2008, at the age of 22. AS! Déath Investigation Report
states that the ¢ause of death was hydrocodone ihtoxicatioﬁ, Emptj/-prescription containers for-
Norco (Hydrocodone/125 tablets) and Xanax (60 tabléts}, which were pr.escribed by Dr. Bass and
dispensed by Respondent. Daheron March 18, 2008, were found near his boldy. .

Patient D.L. ' |

1| orto Jay Scott Drugs was approi’imﬁtel)l 40 miles.

46.  PerD.L.'s patient profile, D.L. started to v'fsit Dr:'Bass and Respondent J a}; éc&ct

Drugs in May 2007, at the age of 24. The distance from the patient's residence to'Dr. Bass' office

47.  From May.2, 2007 to-March 24, 2008 (10 months), Respondent Jay Scott Drugs -
dispensed 30 controlled substances and/or dangerous drugs prescriptions for D.L. All of these
prescriptions were for drugs most commonly ordered by Dr. Bass, Norco, Soma, Ambien, and

Valium, During this time period, D.L. received a total of 2,375 tablets of Norco 10/325mg, 120
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tablets of Valium 10mg, .520 tablets of Soma.and 90 tablets of Amb{en. According to D.L.'s
patient ﬁ]‘oﬁle, Respondent Dahé,r dispensed 23 prescriptions, 'Respondent.Nabhan dispensed
three (3) prescriptions, and Respondent Yamasaki dispensed four (4) prescri;;tions for this patient,

| 48, If Respondents obtained a C.U.R;E.S. report-for D.L. after December 1, 2007, they
wquld have seen that in September 2007 and October 2007, the patient x{;as treated with 7
Suboxone, a-drug used to treat opiate addiction. Réspondent Jay Scott Dru gs woﬁ]d have lonwn
to inquire.of Dr. Bass before dispénsing further prescriptions to an addict. -

49,  Respondent Jay‘Scott Drugs did not have any records to show D.L.’s diagnosis,
-medical history, émy laboratory testing, communication with Dr. Bass for patient care, e'waluation
- -of D.L.’s condition; and-effectiveness of his medication regimen although D.L. was regularly. on
Norco, Soma, Valium, and Ambien, all prescribed by Dr. Bass. Respon_dents_fe}iled ta- continually
evaluate the patient's needs and assure each prescription.was written for a legitimate need, which
ultimately resulted in the patient's-death. | .

© 50, D.L.died on April 10,2008, at.the age of 25. DL Death In#é;tigation Report
il..states that the cause-of death was Ambien, Soma:, Yalium and Cocaine toxicity.. According to the
C.U.R.E.S. report, the last prescriptions filled for D.L. before his diea_t_th were for Norco, Valium,
and Ambien, which were prescribed be Dr. Bass.and dispensed by Respondent Jay Scott Drugs
| on.March 24, 2008. ' .

Patient AW, ‘

51.  Per A.W.s patient profile, A.W. started to visit Dr. Bass and Respondent Jay Scott
Drugs in February 2008, at the age of 31. A.W. always paid césh for her prescriptions. The .
d1;,1anceflon{ the pa.t‘i—eﬁ{"s‘ residence o Dr. Bass' office o to Jmay Scott Dlugs \}'v'as“ﬁp';;i;pﬁliméte]y :
.28 miles. ‘ |

52.  Between February:6, 2008, .and March 25, 2008 (48 dayys),.Respbnden.t Jay Scott

- Drugs dispensed 12 controlled substance prescriptioris for A, W. All of these prescriptions were
for drugs most commonly. ordered by Dr. Bass,.Norco, Valium and Soma. During this time
 period, A.W. received a total of 500 tablets of Norco 10/325myg, 300 tablets (f Valium 10mg, 240
i . . |
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tablets of Soma.-Of these 12 prescriptions, Respondent Daher dlspensed nine (9) prescrlptxons
and RGSpondent Y amasaki dlspensed three (3) prescrlptxons ‘for this patient,

53. Rcspondent Jay Scott Drugs did not have any records to show A.W.’s diagnosis,
medical history, any.laboratory testing, communication with Dr. Bass for patient care, evaluation
of A.W.’s condition and effectiveness of her medication regimen although AW, wag regularly on
Norco, Xanax, and Soma, pICSCl ibed by-Dr, Bass. RESpondents failed to contmually evaluate the
patlent's needs and assure-each ]:)16801 iption was wrltten for a-legitimate need whloh ultlmately '
resulted in the patient's death. - o

54. AW, died'ori April 11,2008, at the age of 31. A.W.'s Death Investigation Report
states that she died from an overdose of Norco 10/323mg, Valium, and Mmphme According to’

A. W s patient profile, A.W.'s last prescriptions filled at Respondent Jay. Scott Drugs before her

death were Norco, Soma and Valium, prescribed by Dr, Bass and dispensed by Respondent

Y amasalki on March 25;2008.
Patient L.G.

55.  Per L.G.'s patient profile, L.G. started-to visit Dr. Bass and Respondéﬁt Jay Scott

It Dru gs'ih‘June 2006, at the age of 19 years old: L:G. always paid cash for.his presci'_iptions. The

‘ dlstancc from the pati€rit's residence to Dr. Bass’ office or to Jay Scott Drugs was apprommately

50 miles, - .
36.  ‘Between ‘Sep‘teinber 20, 2006 and March 28, 2008 (18 months), Respondent Jay
Scott Drugs dispense"d 117 prescriptions foi L.G. Out of 117 pres’oripti.ons 105 were for drugs -

tlmt were most commonly 01clex ed by Dr Bass Norco Xana>. and Soma During thls time

per 1od L. G received a total of 3,500 tablcts of Norco 10/325mg, 2160 1ablets of Xana\ 2340
tablets of Soma, and 240'tablets of Desyrel.' Of these 105 prescriptions, Respondent Daher

dispensed 75 prescriptions, Respondent Y amasaki dispensed 18 pl'esdriptions, and Respondent

1| Nabhan dispensed 12-préscriptions.

57. Respondent Jay Scott Drugs did not know the reason L.G. was taking:the

medications. There was no documentation of communication with Dr. Bass, documentation of

'Y Desyrel is an antidepressant.
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discussions with.the patient, or.review of C.U.R.E.S. data for a person who was either 19 or 20
years old when he started receiving these presoriﬁtions and paid cash for all of these prescriptions.
Respondents failed to continually evaluaie the patient's needs and assure each presorip.tion was
written for a 13§itimate need, which uitimately resulted in the patient's death.

-58.  L.G. died on April 13, 2008, at the age of 21, The Death Investigation Report

- states that the cause-of death was an Oxycodone and Methamphetamine -overdose, His tomcolocy

report: (b 0od) detected: Methamphetamine, Soma, benzodiazepines, opiates, and axycodone
840ng/ml. Per the C.U.R.E.S. report, L.G.’s last prescription before his death was for Norco and-
Kanax 6n March 28, 2008, which was preécribed 'b)ll Dr. Bass and dispensed by Respondent Jay

- Scott Drugs:

Patient D.JC

59, - PerD.K.*s patient profile, D K. started to visit Dr. Bass and Respondent Jay Scott

Drugs in December 2006, at the awe of 31, D.K. always paid cash.for h1s prescriptions. The

dxstancg from the patient’s residence to Dr. Bass’ ofﬁoe or to Jay Scott. Drugs was approximately

~40-miles.: -

1:60.-  Between December 7, 2006,.and March 14,;2008,;che..'da:‘;¢ of D.K.’s death'"! (16

months); Respondent Jay Scott:Drugs dispensed.approximately 60 présgriptid_ns for D.K. Outof

“the 60 prescriptions, approximately 57 were for drugs most commonly ordered by Dr. Bass,
Norco, Xanax, Soma, Ambien, and Valium, During this period, D.K. received a total 0of 2,750
tablets of Norce, 1,200 tablets of Xanax, 240 fab\eté.of Valium, aﬁd 64 tablets of Ambien. Of

these 54 prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 43 prescriptions, Respondent Nabhan

di'spénsed 8 prescriptions, and Respondent Yamasaki dispensed 6 prescriptiané

* 61, - There was no documentation that Respondents ever determined the legitimate need

- for these prescriptions. Respondent Jay Scott Drugs.failed to share a oqr,,resp,o;nd_ing responsibility

while dispensing highly addictive medications to D.K.,.which put.this patient at risk.
N/
i

"D K. died of lobar pneumonia.
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Patient J.S,

62.  Per].8. patient profile, I.S. started 1o visit Dr. Bass and Respondent Jay Scott
Drugs in October 2006, at the age of 21. The. distance from the patient's residence td Jay Scott
Drugs or Dr. Bass' office was approximately 40 miles. When prescriptions were filled too soon,
Respondents alternated payment.methods by I.S. between the i'r;surarioe company and cash in
order to dispense prescriptions without consulting Dr. Bass.. When a new prescription for the
same medication is billed too soon, the prescription insurance comparny would immediately reject
tﬁc billing claim.J.S. was alternating types of payment between his insurance and cash because
his insurance would-not pay for the amount of drugs being prescribed and the frequency it was
being dispensed. . : -+ ' coen

63.  Between October 31, 2096, and April 5,.2007 (approxim ately five months),
Respondents-dispensed a-total of 36 controlled substance and/of dangerous.drugs prescriptions for
1S, él] of which were written by Dr. Bass, During this period, Respondent Daher dispensed a
total of 1,625 tablets of Norco (including Nortab 10/500 mg, one incident), a total of 780 tablets
of Xanax 2mg, and a total of 120 tablets of Soma, to J.S. Of these 36 prescriptions, Respondent
Daher dispensed22 prescriptions and Respondent Y.arnasaki' d.isp:ensed 14 prescriptions to J.S.

64. - Respondents did not provide any records of 601nmu_nica.1t_i<jn_w_ith Dr. Bass
| regarding any of IS preseriptions. Respondemts failed to share a corresponding responsibili;ry‘--
while dispensing hig hly addictive medications to J S., which put this patient at risk,

- 65."" Dutingthis period, J.S. became addicted to these drugs. He. became extremely

dcplessed sutcxdal and v1olent IIe qmt school and could not hold aJob Hewasina:

rehabilitation centcx on sever al occasions: December 2006 Apnl 2007 July 2007 and’ Iate 2007v '

Dr. Bambad's prescribing pattern.

66. As with Dr. Bass, Respondents failed to evaluate and/or addré_és Dr. Masoud

Bamdad’s suspect prescribing pattern: Dr. Bamdad's Prescriber Activity Report for the périod of’
December 2006 through May 2008, provided that Respondents d..ispensed the following
'prescriptions written by Dr. Bamdad: |

" '
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a. 543 prescriptions for Schedule IT controlled substances; .out.of which allbut eight
(8) prescriptions-were written for oxycodone products,

b. 136.prescriptions for Schedule 1T controlled substances, out of which all but two
(2) prescriptions were liydrocodone produgts, mainly N"orco,_

c. " 302 prescriptions Tor Schedule TV controlled substances,. out of which all but 13

presciiptions were written »»-fO]‘ Kanax or Valium, mainly Xanax 2mg, and

d '7-prescriptions of'Schedule.V controlled substances.

67.  From December 2006 through May 2008, Respondent Jay Scott Drugs dispsnsed' a

|- total of 1,357 prescriptions written by Dr. Bamdad, out of which 980 prescriptions were

controlled substances and 369 were dangerous drugs. This meant that 73% of the prescriptions

{ written'by Dr. Bamdad were for controlled-substances, which is a:much higher percentage of

controlled substances written by one prescriber than nermal.. Despite the foregoing factors,

Regponderit »TE‘L}"*S'cétt Dru gs continuously:filled 1,357 prescriptions for Dr. Bamdad's patients

| Betweei Decernber 2006 and May 2008, -

68.  Respondentfailed o review A.C.’spatient profiles prior to dispensing controlled

| ‘substances to hini; which presented clear indications that the preseriptions written by Dr. Bamdad

for A.C, were generally:not: issned:fora legitimate médipal purpose. Per A.C/'s patient profile,

A.C. started to visit Dr. Bamdad and Respondent Jay Scott Drugs in December ,?_007, at the age of

22. A.C. always paid cash for his prescriptions. The distance from the patient's residence to Jay

Scott D1 ugs or Dr. B'Lmdad s office was app1 ommaicly 40 miles

69. “From December 11,2007 to April 10, 2008 (3 mionths), Respondem Daher filled |
eight (8) controlled substance prescriptions for A.C,, al] of which were written by Dr. Bamdad,
‘During this period, Respondent Daher dis@ensed‘to A.C, 270 tablets of Oxycodone and 240 ‘
tablets of Xanax 2me. '

70.- Re oondvnt Jay Scott Drugs did. not have any documentation of consultations with
Dr. Bamdad regarding A C.'s diagnosis, medlca’uon conditions or the legitimate medical purpose

of the presoriptions. Respondent Daher failed to continually evaluate the patient's needs and

23
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Ahmad Nabhan;

assure eachi prescription ‘was written for a legitimate ﬁged‘,.whic_h contribute;d o A.C's deéth.
71, A.C.was found dead on April 14, 2008, at the age of 23 A.C.'s Death
Investigation Report states that the cause of death was multiplg drug effeotg, including |
si gniﬁcanﬂy high Oxycodone levels. His last prescription was on April 10.,. .2008,.er 90 tablets of
OxyCoritin and 60 tablets of Xanax, written by Dr. Bamdad and dispéns’ed by Réépondent Dabher.
. - FOURTH CAUSE ¥OR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to review patient profiles prior to dispensing prescriptions) |

72, -~ Respondents Ahmaa Nabhan and. Tun Respondent Yamasaki are subjéﬁ to
dlsclplme pmsuant to Code sections 4300 and 4301, subdivision (0), on the grounds of
unplofcsswnal conduot in ‘chat RCSpondcnts Nabhan and Yamasakl failed to review N, V 5
profiles p1 ior to dlspensm p1__qgcuphons, in violation of Code seqtlon 4306.5, subdmsm_n (c), and
California Cod_e of R@gulaﬁoﬁ:s; tifle 16, sections 1707.3, Specifically, Respondént i\Tabhan filled
one (1) prescription and RéSpondeﬁt Yamasaki filled one (1) prescription for N.V. eijarly? namely
Norco, without reviewing N.V.'s patiexﬁ profile, resulting in over dlspensmg of contf-o lj]éd
substances, and/or, dangerous drugs, as set forth in paragraph 25, above.

I‘IT‘TH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Unprofessmnal Conduct)
73. " Respondents are subject to discipline pursuant to Code sections 4300 and 4301, in- |.
that Respondents committed unprofessional conduct, as more fully discussed in paragraphs 23

through 72, above.
PRAYER

WHEREFORE Comp\amam requests that a heanng be held on ’che matters hereln allecred
and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy i issue a decision:

1. Revoking or suspendmv Pharmacist License Number RPH 39] 89, issued Albert

Far ah Respondent Dabher;

2. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPH 41754, issued to

Accusation
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3. Revoking or suspénding Pharmaocist License Number RPE 199 83, issued to Jun

Respondent Yamasaki;

4, " Revoking or suspending Retail Phalmacy ‘License Number PHY 40912, issued to

) Tay Scott Drug gs, with Albert Farah Respondent Daher as Pharmacist-in-Charge;

5. Ordering Jay Scott Drugs, Albeit Respondent Daher, Ahmad Nabhan, and Jun

'Respondent Yamasaki to pay the Board the reasonable costs of the mvcstlga’non and enforcement |

of this case, pursuant to Bu'sineSs and Professions Code section 125.3; and,

6. Taking such otherand farther actibn as deemed'neoessary ang propet.

VIRGINTA 1. HEROLD
{Exedutive Officer
Gard of Pharmacy

State ‘of-California-
Complainant
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